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STATE OF MINNESOTA 

SEVENTY-EIGHTH SESSION -- 1993 

TWENTY-NINTH DAY 

SAINT PAUL, MINNESOTA, THURSDAY, APRIL 1, 1993 

The House of Representatives-convened at 2:30 p.m. and was called to order by Dee Long, Speaker of the House. 

Prayer was offered by the Reverend Dr, Donald M. Meisel, House Chaplain. 

The roll was called and the following members were present: 

Abrams Davids Hausman Krinkie Murphy Reding Tompkins 
Anderson, I. Dawkins Holsten Krueger Neary Rest Trimble 
Anderson, R. Dehler Hugosan Lasley Nelson Rhodes Tunheirn 
Asch Delmont Huntley Leppil< Ness Rice Van Dellen 
Battaglia Dempsey Jacobs Lieder Olson, E. Radosovich Vellenga 
Bauerly Darn Jaros Linuner .olson, K. Rukavina Vickerman 
Beard Erhardt Jefferson Lindner Olson, M. Sarna Wageruus 
Bergson Evans Jennings Lourey Onnen Seagren Waltman 
Bertram Farrell Johnson, A. Luther Opatz Sekhon Weaver 
Bettermann Frerichs Johnson, R. Lynch Orenstein Simoneau Wejanan 
Bishop Garcia Johnson, V. Macklin Osthoff Skoglund Welle 
Blatz Girard Kahn Mahon Ostrom Smith Wenzel 
Brown, C. Cooeino Kalis Mariani Ozment Solberg' Winter 
Brown, K. Greenfield Kelley McCollum Pauly Sparby Wolf 
Carlson Greiling Kelso Milbert Pawlenty Stanius Worke 
Carruthers Cruenes Kinkel Molnau Pelowski Steensma Workman 
Commers Gutknecht Klinzing Morrison Perlt Sviggum Spk. Long 
Cooper Hasskamp Knickerbocker Mosel Peterson Swenson 
Dauner Haukoos Koppendrayer Munger Pugh Tomassoni 

A quorum was present. 

Clark and McGuire were excused. 

Orfield was excused until 3:00 p.m. 

The Chief Clerk proceeded to read the Journal of the preceding day. Opatz moved that further reading of the 
Journal be dispensed with and that the Journal be approved as corrected by the Chief Clerk. The motion prevailed. 

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 

SkogllUld from the Committee on Judiciary to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 37, A bill for an act relating to children; regulating exchange programs; requmng a host family 
background check; requiring certain documents before school enrollment; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota 
Statutes, chapter 121. 
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Reported the same back with the following amendments: 

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert: 

"Section 1. [121.72] [EXCHANGE STUDENTS.] 

Subdivision 1. [HOST F AMIL Y BACKGROUND CHECK.] Before placing 'a child from another country with a host 
family, the placing agency must have!. completed child protection background check on the host family, as specified 
in sections 299C.60 to 299C.64, except that the backgrolU\d check must determine whether the subject has been 
convicted of any felony. The placing ~ must conduct the backgroWld check £y contacting the bureau of criminal 
apprehension under sections 299C.60 to 299C.64, and the district court or court services agency in the county where 
the host family resides. to detennine whether there are conviction records involving members of the host family. The 
placing agency must contact the department of public safety to determine whether it holds conviction records on ~ 
member of the host family. Notwithstanding ~ contrary court rule regarding access to data, the district court 2!. 
court services ~ must provide the conviction data specified to ~ placing ~ upon request under this 
subdivision. The background check must be used Qy the placement agency in determining the suitability of the 
subject family to be i! host family. The ~ placing the child with i! host family shall Ei!Y the cost of the 
background check. The entity performing a backgrOlUld check under this section shall charge the placing agency ~ 
amount equal to the actual cost of each check or ~ whichever is less. 

Subd. ~ [SCHOOL FILES,] Before i! child who is an exchange student from another country may enroll in i! public 
or nonpublic elementary, secondary, or post-secondary school in MiJUlesota, the school must have in its files ~ letter 
from i! child placing agency stating: 

ill that the child i§. ~ participant in ~ exchange program of the child placing agency; 

ill that the host family has not been found to be objectionable !2y the child placing ~ after completion of! 
background check Wlder subdivision 1. and 

ill the name and telephone number of ~ contact person at the child placing ~ familiar with the child's ~ 
and the exchange program in which the child is participating." 

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass. 

The report was adopted. 

Reding from the Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 199, A bill for an act relating to insurance; workers' compensation; regulating the state fund mutual 
insurance company; requiring the workers' compensation reinsurance association to provide funds; amending 
Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 176A.02, by adding a subdivision; 176A.11; proposing coding for new law in 
Minnesota Statutes, chapter 79. 

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill pass. 

The report was adopted. 

Anderson, 1., from the Committee on Local Government and Metropolitan Affairs to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 431, A bill for an act relating to metropolitan ai'Forts commission; providing for additional 
commissioners; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 473.604, subdivision 1. 

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill pass. 

The report was adopted. 



29TH DAY] THuRsDAY, APRIL 1, 1993 823 

Reding from' the Committee on Financial Institutions and Insur~ce to which wa's referred: 

H. F. No. 444, A bill for an act rehrting to local government; authorizing a local unit of government which 
self-insures health benefits for employees to enroll employees of the exclusive representative of its employees in those 
plans; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 471.617, by adding a subdivision. 

Reported the S'lIl1e back with the recommendation that the bill pass. 

The report was adopted. 

Skoglund from the Committee on Judiciary to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 511, A bill for an act relating to housing and hotels; amending reasons for innkeeper ejection and refusal 
to admit persons; establishing parent or guardian responsibility for guests who are minors; establishing liability for 
damage to hotel or personal property or injury to persons; requiring notice; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, 
sections 327.70, subdivision 3, and by adding a subdivision; and 327.73, subdivisions 1 and 2; proposing coding for 
new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 327. 

Reported the same back with the following amendments: 

Page 2, lines 6 and 33, after "an" insert "obviously" 

Page 3, lines 6 and 7, delete "or may bring in" 

Page 3~ line 7, after "property" insert "iii" 

Page 3, line 14, delete ·"in writing" 

Page 3, delete lines 28 to 31 

Page 4~ line 6, after "ill" insert "Lit the parent or gUardian provides a credit card or an advance cash deposit under 
section 327.73. subdivision b paragraph ill" 

Page 4, after li:ne 10, insert: 

"Sec. 6. Mirmesota Statutes 1992~ section 327.74, subdivision 1, is amended to read: 

Subdivision 1. [PENALTY.] A person in a hotel who, by smoking or attempting to light or smoke cigarettes, cigars, 
. pipes, or other smoking material, in any manner in which lighters, or matches are used, negligently sets fire to a part 
of the building, or any furniture or furnishings within the building, so as to endanger life or property in any way or 
to any extent, is guilty of a gross misdemeanor." 

Amend the title as follows: 

Page 1, line 7, after the second semioolon insert "providing penalties;" 

Page 1, line 9, delete the first "and" and after the second semicolon insert "and 327.74, subdivision 1;" 

With the recommendation that whet;!. so amended the bill pass. 

The report was adopted. 
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Reding from the Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 580, A bill for an act relating to insurance; nonprofit health service plan corporations; regulating 
investments; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 62C.10. 

Reported the same back with the recorrunendation that the bill pass. 

The report was adopted. 

Skoglund from the Committee on Judiciary to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 588, A bill for an act relating to human rights; providing for protection for disabled persons in 
employment; clarifying permissible. 'absenteeism under the '~reasonable acconuilodation" clause; extending the time 
frame from 45 to 90 days for bringing a civil action after a "no probable cause" determination; providing for the right 
to a jury trial; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 363.01, subdivision 13; 363.02, subdivision 5; 363.03, 
subdivision 1; 363.14, subdivision 2; and 363.117. 

Reported the same back with the following amendments: 

Page 2, line 19, after the period insert "While" 

Page 2, line 20, after "advice" insert "L relevant evidence of a significant specific. current risk may include opinions 
of medical doctors. rehabilitation counselors. or physical therapists who have expertise in the disability involved or 
direct knowledge of the individual with the disability" 

Page 5, line 28, delete "temporary" 

Page 7, after line 25, insert: 

"Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 550.37, subdivision 12a, is amended to read: 

Subd. 12a. One motor vehicle to the extent of a value not exceeding $2,000 .Q!. one motor vehicle to the extent of 
$20,000 which has been modified, at i! cost of not less than $1,500, to accommodate the physical disability making i! 
disabled person eligible for a certificate authorized !!v. section 169.345." 

Renumber the sections in sequence 

Correct internal references 

Amend the title as follows: 

Page 1, line 8, after the semicolon insert "changing an exemption from judgment for certain motor vehicles;" 

Page 1, line 10, delete "and" and before the period insert "; and 550.37, subdivision 12a" 

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass. 

The report was adopted. 
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Skoglund from the Committee on Judiciary to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 655, A bill for an act relating to civil actions; authorizing appeals from the decisions of civil service 
commissions by both cities. and their employees on the same basis and to the same extent; amending Minnesota 
Statutes 1992, section 480A.06, subdivision 4. 

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill pass. 

The report was adopted. 

Simoneau from the Corrunittee on Health and Human Services to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 665, A bill for an act relating to the hospital construction moratorium, making the moratorium permanent; 
amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.551, subdivision 1. 

Reported the same hack with the recommendation that the bill pass. 

The report was adopted. 

Reding from the Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 670, A bill for an act relating to insurance; health; regulating benefits for outpatient mental or nervous 
disorder treatment; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 62A.152, subdivisions 2 and 3. 

Reported the same back with the following amendments: 

Page 2, line 4, delete "section" and insert "sections" and delete "if' and insert "clauses ill to ~ and 245.4871, 
subdivision '1:'L. clauses ill to ill" 

Page 2, line 5, delete "licensed" 

Page 2, line 30, delete "section" and insert "sections" 

Page 2, line 31, delete "if licensed" and insert "clauses ill to illt. and 245.4871" 

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass. 

The report was adopted. 

Skoglund from the Committee on Judiciary to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 732, A bill for an act relating to law enforcement; exempting law enforcement agencies from the 
requirements of the criminal offender rehabilitation employment "lawi amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, 
section 364.09. 

Reported the same back with the following amendments: 

Page I, line 10, before "law" insert "the licensing process for peace officers: to" 

Page I, line 11, after "agencies" insert "as defined in section 626.84. subdivision b. paragraph ru" 
With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass and be placed on the Consent Calendar. 

The report was adopted. 



826 JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE [29TH DAY 

Skoglund from the Committee on Judiciary to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 747, A bill for an act relating to civil actions; providing for stay of a bond required of plaintiffs in certain 
actions against a public body; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 562.02. 

Reported the same back with the following amendments: 

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert: 

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 562.02, is amended to read: 

562.02 [CIVIL ACTIONS AFFECTING A PUBLIC BODY; SURETY BOND REQUIRED OF PLAINTIFF.] 

Subdivision 1. [GENERAL REQUIREMENT.] Whenever any action at law or in equity is brought in any court in 
this state questioning directly or indirectly the existence of any condition or thing precedent to, or the validity of any 
action taken or proposed to be taken, by any public body or its officers or agents in the course of the authorization 
or sale, issuance or delivery of bonds, the making of a contract for public improvement or the validity of any 
proceeding to alter the organization of a school district in any manner, such public body may move the court for an 
order requiring the party, or parties, bringing such action to file a surety bond as hereinafter set forth. Three days' 
written notice of such motion shall be given. If the public body is not a party to the action, but if it deems that such 
action be injurious to the public interest and to the taxpayers, such public body may intervene or appear specially for 
the purpose of making such motion. If the court determines that loss or damage to the public or taxpayers may result 
from the pendency of the action or proceeding, the court may require such party, or parties, to file a surety bond, 
which shall be approved by the court, in such amount as the court may determine. The court must also consider 
whether the action presents substantial constitutional issues or substantial issues of statutory construction, and the 
likelihood of a ~ prevailing on these issues. when determining the amount of a bond and whether a bond should 
be required under this section or section 473.675. Such bond shall be conditioned for payment tp the public body of 
any loss or damage which may be caused to the public body or taxpayers by such delay, to the extent of the penal 
sum of such bond, if such party, or parties, shall not prevail therein. If such surety bond is not filed within a 
reasonable time allowed therefor by the court, the action shall- be dismissed with prejudice. If such party, or parties, 
file a bond as herein required and prevail in the action, any premium paid on the bond shall he repaid by or taxed 
against the public body. 

Subd. b. [APPEAL.] An order granting .Q!. denying ~ motion to require the filing of ~ surety bond under 
subdivision 1 or under section 473.675. subdivision ~ ~ ~ appealable order. The appeal must be directly to the 
supreme court for hearing at the earliest feasible opportunity consistent with the public interest in speedily resolving 
the matter. Appellate review of the order shall be de novo. 

Sec. 2. [EFFECTIVE DATE; APPLICATION.] 

Section 1 is effective August .1.1993, and applies to orders entered under Minnesota Statutes, section 562.02. Q!!. and 
after that date. It 

Amend the title as follows: 

Page 1, line 2, delete everything after the semicolon and insert "regulating the posting of a" 

Wi~h the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass. 

The report was adopted. 
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Skoglund from the Committee on Judiciary to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 846, A 'bill for an act relating to civil commitment; authorizing new procedures for return of certain 
,patients who are absent from treatment facilities without authorization; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 
253B.23, subdivision'la. 

Reported the same back with the following amendments: 

Page 1, line 26, delete "center" and insert "facility" 

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass and be placed on the Consent Calendar. 

The report was adopted. 

Carlson from the Committee on Education to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 879, A bill for an act relating to education; restricting eligibility for athletic participation for some students 
for one year following interdistrict transfer under open enrollment; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 120.062, 
by adding a subdivision. 

Reported the same back with the following amendments: 

Page 2, lines 32 and 33, delete "this section" and insert "Minnesota Statutes, section 120.062" 

With the recommendation. that when so amended the bill pass. 

The report was adopted. 

Clark from the Committee on Housing to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 884, A bill for an act relating to housing; appropriating money for multiunit blighted rental property 
removal. 

Reported the same back with .the recommendation that the bill pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Health 
and Human Services. 

The report was adopted. 

Anderson, 1., from the Committee on Local Government and Metropolitan Affairs to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 893, A bill f6r an act relating to local government; specifying the prosecuting attorney for certain offenses; 
amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 487.25, subdivision 10. 

Reported the same back with the following amendments: 

Page 1, line 14, delete the first "1.000" and insert "SOD" and delete the second "1.000" and insert "SOD" 

Page I, line 17, after the comma insert "and with the appro;.ral of the board of county commissioners," 

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass. 

The report was adopted. 
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Munger from the Committee on Environment and Nahlral Resources to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 898, A bill for an act relating to natural resources; clarifying, modifying, and expanding rulemaking 
authority and other powers and duties of the commissioner of natural resources relating to game and fish, wild rice, 
stromatolites, and cross-country ski passes; clarifying, modifying, and expanding provisions relating to the taking, 
purchase, sale, possession, and transportation of wild animals; regulating entry and uses on certain public lands and 
waters; providing for the expiration of certain commissioner's orders; providing an exemption from rulernaking 
requirements; authorizing emergency rules; providing penalties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 84.14, 
subdivision 3; 84.1525, subdivision 2; 85.41, subdivision 2; 85.45; 97 A.045, subdivision 4; 97 A.OS5, by adding a 
subdivision; 97 A.091, subdivisions 1 and 2; 97 A.095, subdivision 2; 97 A.105, subdivision 1, and by adding a 
subdivision; 97 A.137; 97 A.255, subdivision 2; 97 A.4Dl, subdivision 4; 97 A.415, subdivision 2; 97 A.431, subdivisions 
1 and 4; 97 A.433, subdivisions 1 and 4; 97 A.435, subdivision 4; 97 A.441, by adding a subdivision; 97 A.451, by adding 
a subdivision; 97A.475, by adding a subdivision; 97A.48S, subdivision 6, and by adding a subdivision; 97A.505, 
subdivision 5, and by adding a subdivision; 97 A.S35, subdivision 2; 97 A.545, subdivisions 1, 2, 4, and by adding a 
subdivision; 97 A.551, by adding a subdivision; 97B.425; 97B.671, subdivisions 1 and 2; 97B.711, subdivision 2, and by 
adding a subdivision; 97B.721; 97B.811, by adding a subdivision; 97C.025; 97C.051, subdivision 1; 97C.081, subdivisions 
2, 3, and by adding a subdivision; 97C.205; 97C.311; 97C.331; 97C.345, subdivision 4, and by adding a subdivision; 
97C.391, subdivision I; 97C.405; 97C.505, subdivision I; 97C.601, subdivision 6; 97C.805, subdivisions 1,2, and 4; and 
97C.865; Laws 199t chapter 259, section 24; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 97 A; 97B; 
and 97C. 

Reported the same back with the following amendments: 

Page 4, line 14, after "£." insert "~" 

Page 4, after line 24, insert: 

"Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 97 A.045, is a~ended by adding a subdivision to read: 

Subd. 2, [NOTICE OF RULEMAKING.] In addition to notice reguirements under chapter H" the commissioner 
shall attempt to notify persons or ~ of persons affected Qy rules adopted under the game and fish laws !!y public 
announcements, press releases. and other appropriate means ~ determined.£y the commissioner." 

Page 5, delete lines 7 and 8 and insert: 

"ill~ uncased bow." 

Page 7, line 14, after "acquisition" insert "and disposal" 

Page 10, delete section 26 

Page 12, line 26, before the period, insert "unless otherwise provided !zy law" 

Page 16, after line IS, insert: 

"Sec. 45. [97B.928] [IDENTIFICATION OF TRAPS AND SNARES.] 

Subdivision 1. [INFORMATION REQUIRED.]~,i person may not set or place" trap or snare. other than 2!l 
property owned Q!: occupied .£y the person. unless the following information is affixed to the trap Q!: snare in £. 
manner that ensures that the information remains legible while the trap Q!. ~ ~.Q!!. the lands Q!. waters: 

ill the number and state of the person's driver's license; 

ill the person's Minnesota identification card number; or 

ill the person's name and mailing address . 

.llil The commissioner may not prescribe additional reguirements for identification of traps .2!: ~ 
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Subd.;h [PROVISIONS NOT TO APPLY.] From April! to August 2!. the trap identification provisions of 
subdivision 1 do not !!£E!y to traps set for the taking of unprotected wild animals. 

Subd. ~ IPENALTY.] Ii person who violates subdivision.1. paragraph.ill1.~ ~ of !!.~ misdemeanor," 

Page 21, line 7, delete everything before "game'~ and insert "protect" 

Page 22", line 6, after "person" insert "engaged in a business providing services to a person taking fish" 

Page 22, line 11, strike "cosignee" and insert "consignee" 

Page 23, line 16, delete "~.2t.~~ 18 to 22" and insert "~ill.l1.1& 19 to 23" 

Page 23, line 26, before the period insert "L except that section 45 ~ effective August 1. 1993, and applies to 
violations occurring on .Q!: after that date" 

Renumber the sections in sequence 

Correct internal references 

Amend the title as follows: 

Page 1, line 13, after "penalties;" insert "appropriating money;" 

Page 1, line 16, after "4" insert ", and by adding a subdivision" 

Page 1, lines 22 and 23, delete "97 A.451, by adding a subdivision;" 

With the reconunendation that when so amended the bill pass and be re-referred to the Committee on 
Governmental Operations and Gambling. 

The report was adopted. 

Carlson from the Committee on Education to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 902, A bill for an act relating to education; making the state board of education the governing body for 
the center for arts education except for purposes of statewide resource and outreach programs and services; amending 
Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 129C.l0, subdivisions 1,2, and by adding a subdivision; and 129C.15. 

Reported the same back with the following amendments: 

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert: 

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 129C.l0, subdivision 1, is amended to read: 

Subdivision 1. IGOVERNANCE.] The board of the Mirmesota center for arts education. shall consist of 15 persons" 
one of whom shall be knowledgeable in the field of special education. The members of the board shall be appointed 
by the governor with the advice and consent of the senate. At least one member must be appointed from each 
congressional district. 



830 JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE [29TH DAY 

Sec. 2, Mirmesota Statutes 1992, section 129C.l0, is amended by adding a subdivision to read: 

Subd.3b. IAPPEAL.] A parent who disagrees with a board action -that adversely affects the academic program of 
an enrolled £!:!!ill. may ~ the board's action to the state board of education within 30 days of the board's action. 
The decision of the state board of education shall be binding on the board. The board shall inform each E.!!lill. and 
parent at the time of enrolling of a parent's right to ~ ~ board action affecting the pupil's academic program. 

Sec. 3. [APPLICABILITY.] 

The requirement under section 1 that ~ board member be knowledgeable in the field of special education shall 
~ to appointments to the board made after the effective date of this act," 

Delete the title and insert: 

"A bill for an act relating to education; providing for governance of the center for arts education and for certain 
appeals from the governing body's action; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 129C.I0, subdivision 1, and by 
adding a subdivision." 

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass. 

The report was adopted. 

Sarna from the Committee on Commerce and Economic Development to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 929, A bill for an act relating to taxation; providing for manufacturing opportunity districts in certain 
cities; providing tax credits and exemptions for. certain industries located in a manufacturing opportunity district; 
proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 469. 

Reported the same back with the following amendments: 

Delete everything aft~r the enacting clause and insert: 

"Section 1. [469.30] [DEFINITIONS.] 

Subdivision 1. [GENERALLY.] For purposes of sections 1 to Z. the terms defined in this section have the meanings 
given them. 

Subd. b. [CITY.] "City" ~ ~ home rule charter or statutory.Q!y of the first 2!: second class. 

Subd. ~ ICOMMISSIONER.] "Commissioner" means the commissioner of revenue. 

Subd.1,. [ELIGffiLE CITY.] "Eligible.si!L means",9!Y that has had", loss of at least 2,000 manufacturing or food 
processing jobs since 1978, as determined.Q.y the Minnesota department of jobs and training. 

Subd.2.:. [MANUFACTURING BUSINESS.] "Manufacturing business" means a business that: ill creates. processes, 
or assembles durable goods. food products. or tangible products that are stored, shipped. distributed, and marketed 
for eventual wholesale .Q!: consumer sale; 2!: ill provides computer software, data processing. Q!. other 
computer-related infonnation services. 

Subd.2,. [MANUFACTURING OPPORTUNITY DISTRICT.] "Manufacturing opportunity district" means the ~ 
in the .9!Y. designated as such .Qy the governing body of the .9!Y.:. 

Subd. 'L. [NEW OR EXPANDING MANUFACTURING BUSINESS.] "New·or expanding manufacturing business" 
~ a manufacturing business that: ill has not operated within this state prior to the effective date of sections 1 . 
to Z. and has not entered into a contract to build or lease a facility within the eligible .Q!y prior to the effective date 
of sections 1 to ZL or ill exceeds the maximum number of full-time employees employed during the previous 36 
months, and which adds a net increase of Minnesota based jobs to the employer. 
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Sec. 2. [469.31] [DESIGNATION OF MANUFACfURING OPPORTUNITY DISTRICTS.] 

Subdivision 1. [CREATION.] The governing body of.!!!l eligible.Q!y may designate an area within the £!.!y~~ 
manufacturing opportunity district. 

Subd. b. [AREA REQUIREMENTS.] The boundary of the district must be continuous. !! must consist of properly 
zoned land consistent with the city's current land ~ plans. The area must include vacant or underutilized industrial 
lands, or tax-forfeited lands. 

Subd. ~ [LIMITATION.] No area may be designated ~ !!. manufacturing opportunity district after 
December ~ 1997. 

Sec. 3. [469.32] [BUSINESS INCENTIVES.] 

Subdivision h [DESIGNATION OF BUSINESS INCENTIVES.] The governing body of i!.!l eligible .Q!y may 
designate any or all of the following business incentives to a ~ Q£ expanding manufacturing business located in 
the manufacturing opporhmity district: 

ill!!. new or expanding manufacturing jobs credit as provided in section 1L 

ill!!. targeted employee's iQQ. credit ~ provided in section ~ 

m ~ sales tax exemption as provided in section .fu and 

ill!!. property tax exemption as provided in section Z:. 

Subd. ~ [CERTIFICATION; FINDINGS.] @l To qualify for business incentives under this section, ~ =!!!:. 
expanding manufacturing business must certify to the governing body of the eligible .£i!y and the .£i!y must make 
findings that the new or expanding manufacturing business: 

ill would not have located or expanded in MiIUlesota except for availability of business incentives under sections 
! to ZL 

ill conforms to all local zoning, building, and environmental codes, and ~ in conformance with all rules and 
regulations of the Occupational Safety and Health Administration; 

ill has an affirmative action and equal opportunity hiring program; and 

ffi meets any other qualifications required !!y the f!!vt. including but not limited ~ developer contract 
requirements, agreements -to minimum estimated market valuations for determining minimum property tax 
obligations, and reporting and certification requirements regarding the employment of eligible employees for which 
!!. tax credit is allowed under section i or 5. 

ru With the certification under paragraph ~ the new or expanding manufacturing business must submit any 
supporting data or documents required ~ the Q!y to detennine compliance with the requirements of the s!tt:. 

Subd. 3. [LOCAL CONTRIBUTION.] An eligible.Q!y must make a local contribution ~ to at least ten percent 
of any projected state contribution under subdivision L. clauses ill to Ql The.£!!y contribution may be in ~ form 
of redevelopment assistance. 

Subd.!c [NOTIFICATION OF COMMISSIONER.] Upon approvallu:. the.Q!y of qualification of a new or expanding 
manufacturing business for tax incentives, the .£!!v. shall notify the commissioner of the business certification and 
findings Qy the Q!y under subdivision b. the city's local contribution under subdivision.1. and the terms of ~ credits 
and exemptions granted ~ the £itv:. 
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Sec. 4. [469.33] [NEW OR EXPANDING MANUFACTURING JOB CREDIT.] 

Subdivision L. ICREDIT ALLOWED.1 !f designated Qy the .9!Y. ~ ~ business incentive under section .1. !!. 
corporation that is a new or expanding manufacturing business is allowed a credit against the taxes imposed under 
chapter 290. A credit is allowed for the first five years of business activity, The amount of the credit is determined 
Qy the governing body of the .9!L but must not exceed !!. maximum amount as follows: 

ill for the first 12 months of operations, $5,000 ~ eligible employee; 

ill for months 13 to 24 of operations. $4.000 ~ eligible employee; 

ru for months 25 to 36 of operations, $3,000 ~ eligible employee; 

ill for months 37 to 48 of operations, $2,000 ~ eligible employee; and 

ill for months 49 to 60 of operations, $1.000 ~ eligible employee. 

Subd. b. [DEFINITIONS·1 @ For purposes of this section, "eligible employee" means: 

ill a pennanent full-time employee of the new or expanding manufacturing business who is employed within the 
manufacturing opportunity district at the ,end of the taxable year in which the credit ~ claimed at annual wages 
exceeding $15.000; and 

ill!!!l individual who had !!!!. annual income in the 12 months immediately prior to employment .£v. the eligible 
business, equal to Q!.less than 80 percent of median income, adjusted for family size, for the county or metropolitan 
statistical area as determined £v. the department of housing and urban development; or 

ill a member of a &!:Q!!P. that is evidenced Qy a statistical disparity in employment opportunities as compared to 
all state residents. Targeted residents may include women, persons with disability, or specific minorities. 

ill "Wages" has the meaning given i! under section 3121(b) of the. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended 
through December R 1992. 

Subd. ~ [CARRY FORWARD.] The credit for the taxable year may not exceed the liability for tax. If the amount 
of the credit exceeds the liability for tax for the taxable year, the balance of the credit is a carryover credit to each of 
the next ten taxable years. The entire amount of the credit is a credit carryover to the earliest of the taxable years to 
which i! may be carried and then to each successive year. The sum of the credit and carryover credits allowed in a 
taxable year may not exceed the liability for tax. 

Subd.4. {RECAPTURE.]!!!!!!. eligible employee for which a credit is allowed under subdivision 1 is not employed 
Qy the new or expanding manufacturing business on a permanent full-time basis at annual wages exceeding $15,000 
for ~period of 12 continuous months, the credit taken against the liability for tax under subdivision 1 must be repaid 
to the conunissioner and no carryover credit is allowed. 

Sec. 5. [469.34] [TARGETED EMPWYEE'S JOB CREDIT.] 

Subdivision.1. {CREDIT ALWWED.] If designated £v. the £lly as ~ business incentive under section ~ ~ 
corporation that is a new or expanding manufacturing business is allowed a credit against the taxes imposed under 
chapter 290. A credit is allowed for the first five years of business activity. The credit ~ in addition to any credit 
allowed under section 1::. The amount of the credit is determined Qy the governing body of the £ilL. but must not 
exceed a maximum amount as follows: 

ill for the first 12 months of operations, $2,500 ~ eligible employee; 

ill for months 13 to 24 of operations, $2,000 ~ eligible employee; 

ill for months 25 to 36 of operations, $1,500 ~ eligible employee; 

ill for months 37 to 48 of operations. $1,000 ~ eligible employee; and 

ill for months 49 to 60 of operations, $500 E.!:!. eligible employee. 
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Subd. £" [DEFINITIONS.] ill Forpurposes of this section, "eligible employee" means J! permanent full-time 
employee of the new or expanding manufacturing business who is employed within the manufacturing district at the 
end of the taxable year in which the credit is claimed at annual wages exceeding $15.000. The employee must be 18 
!Q 25 years of ~ and have !!Q. more than ~ GED .Q!. high school diploma at the time the employee is first employed 
as a full-time permanent employee. 

ill "Wages" has the meaning given!! under section 3121{b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended 
through December A 1992. 

Subd . .2:. [TRAINING.] To qualify for !! credit under this section, the new or expanding manufacturing business 
must provide on-site training to the eligible employees. A plan for the training must be submitted to and approved 
h the governing body of the city. The training program must include an initial training program to teach the 
tedmical skills necessary to perform the iQQ. in .! safe and productive manner. and must also include an ongoing 
training program to provide additional technical and general skills to help the eligible employee qualify. for more 
advanced iQQ. opportunities and to ~ pace with advances in new technologies. 

Subd.!. [CARRY FORWARD.] The credit for. the taxable year may not exceed the liability for tax, Hthe amount 
of the credit exceeds the liability for tax for the taxable year. the balance of the credit is ! carryover credit to each of 
the next ten taxable years. The entire amount of the credit is! credit carryover to the earliest of the taxable years to 
which!! may be carried and then to each successive year. The sum of the credit and carryover credits allowed in a 
taxable year may not exceed. the liability for tax. . 

Subd. ~ [RECAPTURE.] 

no carryover 

Sec. 6. [469.35] [SALES TAX EXEMPTION.] 

If designated .Qy the £itt M! business incentive under section ~ the purchase of capital equipment as defined in 
section 297 A.01, subdivision ~ and construction materials and supplies used or consumed Qy a new or expanding 
manufacturing business within it manufacturing opportunity district are exempt from the tax imposed under chapter 
297 A. The exemptidn under this section does not include equipment. materials. or supplies. purchased!!y a contractor 
or subcontractor. 

Sec. 7. [469,36] [TAX-FORFEITED LAND.] 

If designated .Qy the f!!y as ! business incentive under section ~ tax-forfeited land acquired .Qy the ~ housing 
redevelopment authority. or port authority of the f!!y within a manufacturing opportunity district is exempt from 
property taxes, penalties. and interest that accrued before and during the period of forfeiture. 

Sec, 8. [REPORT.] 

On or before January Mt 1996. the commissioner of revenue shall evaluate the program under sections 1 to Z and 
submit the evaluation along with recommendations to the chair of the senate committee on taxes -and tax. laws and 
the chair of the house tax committee." 

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Taxes. 

The report was adopted. 

Simoneau from the Committee on Health and Human Services to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 961; A bill for an act relating to health; modifying lead abatement requirements; licenses and fees; 
establishing disposal methods; providing penalties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.871, subdivisions 
2,3, 6, 7a, and by adding subdivisions; 144.872, subdivisions 2 and 3; 144.873, subdivision 2; 144.874, subdivisions 1, 
3, 4, and 6; 144.876, by adding subdivisions; 144,878, subdivisions 2 and 5; and Minnesota Rules, chapter 4761; 
proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 116 and 144; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 
144.8721; 144.874, subdivision 10; and 144.878, subdivision 2a,. 
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Reported the same back with the following amendments: 

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert: 

"Article 1 
Lead Abatement 

Section 1. Mirmesota Statutes 1992, section 2S6B.0625, subdivision 14, is amended to read: 

[29TH DAY 

Subd.14. [DIAGNOSTIC, SCREENING, AND PREVENTIVE SERVICES.] hlMedical assistance covers diagnostic, 
screening, and preventive services. 

ill "Preventive services" include services related to pregnancy, including services for those conditions which may 
complicate a pregnancy and which may be available to a pregnant woman determined to be at risk of poor pregnancy 
outcome. Preventive services available to a woman at risk of poor pregnancy outcome may differ in an amount, 
duration, or scope from those available to other individuals eligible for medical assistance. 

1£l "Screening services" include, but are not limited !2L blood lead tests. 

S,ec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.871, subdivision 2, is amended to read: 

Subd.2. [ABATEMENT.] "Abatement" means removal of, replacement of, or encapsulation of deteriorated paint, 
bare soil, dust, drinking water, or other lead-containing materials that are or may become readily accessible during 
the lead abatement process and pose an immediate threat of actual lead exposure to people. 

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.871, subdivision 6, is amended to-read: 

Subd.6. [ELEVATED BLOOD LEAD LEVEL.] "Elevated blood lead level" in a child fte Iftere 1ft ... sil, )e ... aiel 
before the sixth birthday or in a pregnant woman means a blood lead level that exceeds the federal Centers for 
Disease Control guidelines for preventing lead poisoning in young children, unless the commissioner finds that a 
lower concentration is necessary to protect public health. . 

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.871, subdivision 7a, is amended to read: 

Subd.7a. [HIGH RISK FOR TOXIC LEAD EXPOSURE.] "High risk for toxic lead exposure" means eitReF l! census 
tract that meets .Q!!!:. _.Q!. more of the following criteria: 

(1) tftM .!~.!TI!£! where elevated blood lead levels have been diagnosed in a population of children or pregnant 
women; 

\it a census tract with many residential structures known to have or suspected of having deteriorated lead-based 
paint; or 

W Ql a census tract with a median soil lead concentration greater than 100 parts per million for any sample 
collected according to Mirmesota Rules, part 4761.0400, subpart 8, and rules adopted under section 144.878;-eo 

(a) tfte ,fisliaes aasptea 13, tfte eSR=Ifl:t:issieRel lffiaeF seeaeR 141:.8"8, Stteaiv-isieR 2, shall a"l} is tRis s1fBai. isisfl. 
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Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.871, subdivision 7b, is amended to read: 

Subd.7b. [PRIMARY PREVENTION FOR TOXIC LEAD EXPOSURE.] "Primary prevention for toxic lead exposure" 
ffi€a:Jt5 pef'fsfffiaflee sf :n.a:S team s€Riees, eJ:eapsL±latisfI:, afta 1'€m8.-ai aile!: l'eplaeeffiEflt aeateRuRt, iReh:lei:Rg leae 
eleaRlifJ ar.el Healtb SchleaseR, aeFef'€ ehilEiF€R ele. elap ele. ateell::Jleea leae Ie; eis. includes ~ or all of the following: 

ill education of the general public in populations where children under six years of ~ and pregnant women have 
been identified with blood lead levels greater than nine micrograms ~ deciliter; 

ill education for property owners and renters concerning in-place management of potential lead hazards to create 
lead-safe housing; 

ill in-place management of potential lead hazards using swab team services or property owner or renter lead 
abatement activities; and 

ill encapsulation, and removal and replacement abatement where necessary to make the residence lead safe. 

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144:871, is amended by adding a subdivision to read: 

Subd.7c. [LEAD INSPECTOR.] "Lead inspector" means a person who has successfully completed! training course 
in investigation of residences for possible sources of lead exposure and who is licensed !2y the conunissioner under 
section 144.877 to perform this activity. 

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 1992.1 section 144.871, subdivision 9, is amended to read: 

Subd.9. [SWAB TEAM.] "Swab team" means a person or persons who implement in-place management of lead 
exposure sources, .iftiffi Htehuies.:. Swab team services include any.Q!. all of the following: 

(1) eai eFiRg sr replaeiRg saFe ssil #tat fias a leaa eeReeAtfaaSR af lQQ parts per l'fi:illieA, iHaa estaslisffiAg safe 
e~(terie:F play aRa garaeR af:'eas; removing lead dust Qv. washing, vacuuming, and cleaning the interior of residential 
property; 

ill. other ~ that immediately protect children who engage in mouthing or pica behavior from lead sources, 
including cleanup and health education, advice and assistance to help! family locate and ~ to ! temporary 
lead-safe residence while abatement is being completed, or to help i!. family locate and ~!Q. alternate lead-safe 
housing when abatement is not completed Qv. the property owner, and ~ other assistance necessary to meet the 
family's immediate needs as a result of the relocation: 

~ ill removing loose paint and paint chips and installing guards to protect intact paint; 

and 

(4) ether meaftS, iftefl:taiftg eleiH'\-l;:lfl aT.a :Ream'. eal;:leatieR, tflat iFflftleEliatel} ~reteet eftihiFePt ,.Rs ERgage in 
ftlsl;:lihHag SF piea sehai'isr ksftlleaa ssl:tf'ees covering or replacing bare soil that has a lead concentration of 100 parts 
~ million, and establishing safe exterior !ili!v. and garden areas. 

Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.871.1 is amended by adding a subdivision to read: 

Subd. 7d. [PERSON.] "Person"has the meaning given in Minnesota Statutes, section 1031.005, subdivision 16. 

Sec. 9. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.871, is amended by adding a subdivision to read: 

Subd. 10. [VENOUS BLOOD SAMPLE.] "Venous blood sample" means a quantity of blood drawn from!! vein. 

Sec. 10. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.872.1 subdivision 2, is amended to read: 

Subd. 2. [HOME ASSESSMENTS.] ~ The commissioner shall, within available federal or state appropriations, 
contract with boards of health, who may determine priority for responding to cases of elevated blood lead levels, to 
conduct assessments to determine sources of lead contamination in the residences of pregnant women whose blood 



836 JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE [29TH DAY 

lead levels are at least ten micrograms per deciliter and of children whose blood lead levels are at least 20 micrograms 
per deciliter or whose blood lead levels persist in the range of 15 to 19 micrograms per deciliter for 90 days after 
initial identification to the board of health or the commissioner. Assessments must be conducted within five working 
days of the board of health receiving notice that the criteria in this subdivision have been met. The commissioner or 
boards of health must be notified of all violations of standards under section 144.878r subdivision 6. that are identified 
during ~ home assessment. 

ill The commissioner or boards of health must identify the known addresses for_the previous 12 months of the 
child or pregnant woman with elevated blood lead levels and notify the property owners at those addresses. The 
commissioner may also collect information on the race, sex, and family income of children and pregnant women with 
elevated blood lead levels. 

1s.l Within the limits of appropriations, a board of health shall conduct home assessments Jor children and pregnant 
women whose confirmed blood lead levels are in the range of ten to 19 micrograms per deciliter. 

@ The commissioner shall also provide educational materials on all sources of lead to boards of health to provide 
education on ways of reducing the danger of lead contamination. The commissioner may provide laboratory or field 
lead testing equipment to a board of health or may reimburse a board of health for direct costs associated with 
assessments. 

Sec. 11. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.872, subdivision 3, is amended to read: 

Subd. 3. ISAFE HOUSING.1 The commissioner shall" within the limits of available appropriations, contract with 
boards of health for safe housing to be used in meeting relocation requirements in section 144.874, subdivision 4. The 
commissioner shall, within available federal or state appropriations, award grants to boards of health for the purposes 
of paying housing and relocation costs Wlder section 144.874, subdivision 4. 

Sec. 12. Minnesota'Statutes 1992, section 144.872, subdivision 4, is amended to read: 

Subd.4. [LEAD CLEANUP EQUIPMENT AND MATERIAL GRANTS.lW Within the limits of available state or 
federal appropriations, funds shall be made available Wlder a grant program to nonprofit community-based 
organizations in areas at high risk for toxic lead exposure. Grantees shall use the money to purchase lead cleanup 
equipment aRa eehiEaaeRal f.fl:a~efials, and to pay for training for staff and volWlteers for lead abatement certification. 
Grantees may work with licensed lead abatement contractors and certified trainers in order to ffiee~ tJ::te feEp:lifeffleR~s 
ef ~s }3fegFam receive training necessary for certification under section 144.876, subdivision 1. Lead cleanup 
equipment shall include: high efficiency particle accumulator and wet vacuum cleaners, drop cloths, secure containers, 
respirators, scrapers, dust and particle containment materiat and other cleanup and contairunent materials to remove 
loose paint and plaster, patch leese I'aift~ iH'la plaster, control household dust, wax floors, clean-carpets and sidewalks~ 
and cover bare soil. 

ill Upon certification, the g:fa:R~eeS grantee's staff and volunteers may make equipment and educational materials 
available to residents and property owners and instruct them on the proper use. Equipment shall be made available 
to low-income households on a priority basis at no ~ and other households on a sliding fee scale. Eguipment shall 
not be made available to any person. licensed lead abatement contractor, or certified trainer who charges or intends 
to charge ~ fee for services performed using eguipment or materials purchased £y ~ nonprofit community-based 
organization through S. grant obtained under this subdivision. 

Sec. 13. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.872, is amended by adding a subdivision to read: 

Subd. ~ [SWAB TEAMS.] The cOrrmUssioner shall. within the limits of available appropriations or grants under 
section 268.92. provide or contract with boards of health for swab teams to reduce residential lead exposure at the 
residences of children and pregnant women newly identified as having elevated blood lead levels. Boards of health 
may determine priority for responding to cas~s of elevated blood lead levels. 

Sec. 14. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.873, 'subdivision 2, is amended to read: 

Subd.2. [TEST OF CHILDREN IN HIGH RISK AREAS.] Within limits of available state and federal appropriations, 
the commissioner shall promote and subsidize a blood lead test of all children l:H.aef si~{) eafS ef age before the sixth 
birthday who live in all areas of high risk for toxic lead exposure that are currently known or subsequently identified. 
Within the limits of available appropriations~ the commissioner shall conduct surveys, espeeiall) seil a5SeSSffleR~S 
lapgef !haft a pesiaeFtee, as aefit'tea l3y the eef.fl:ffl::issieftef, to determine probable sources of lead exposure in greater 
Minnesota communities where a case of elevated blood lead levels has been reported. 
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Surveys conducted 'under this subdivision must consist of evaluating census tracts to determine whether or not they 
~ at high risk for toxic lead exposure. The evaluation shall consist of a priority response determination under 
section 144.878, subdivision 2a. In making this evaluation, the commissioner shall: v 

ill conduct a soil survey in the manner provided for under Minnesota Rules, part 4761.0400, subpart.§L and 

ill evaluate housing quality, if data is available. 

The commissioner may also conduct ~ blood lead screening of children under six years of ~ within the ~ 
tract. 

Sec. 15. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.873, subdivision 3, is amended to read: 

Subd. 3. [STATEWIDE LEAD SCREENING.] Statewide lead screening by blood lead assays in conjunction with 
routine blood tests analyzed .£y laboratories that meet the center for disease controllaboratorv proficiency standards, 
by atomic absorption equipmentL or other equipment with equivalent or better accuracy shall be eel. eeateel used by 
boards of health. 

Sec. 16. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.874, subdivision I, is amended to read: 

Subdivision 1. [RESIDENCE ASSESSMENT.] (a) A board of health must conduct a timely assessment of a residence 
and all common areas, if the residence is located in a building with two or more residential units, within five working 
days of receiving notification that the criteri~ in this subdivision have been met, as confirmed Qy lead analysis of ~ 
venous blood sample. to determine sources bf lead exposure if: 

(1) a pregnant woman in the residence is identified as having a blood lead level of at least ten micrograms of lead 
per deciliter of whole blood; 

(2) a child in the residence is identified as having a blood lead level at or above 20 mic~ograms per deciliter; or 

(3) ~ child in the residence is identified ~ having a blood lead level that persists i~~ the range of 15 to 19 
micrograms per deciliter for 90 days after initial identification. 

ill Within the limits of available state and federal appropriations, a board ot health ~hall also conduct home 
assessments for children whose confirmed blood lead levels are in the range of ten to 19 micrograms per deciliter. 
:d. board of health may assess a residence even if none of the three criteria in this subdivision are met. 

hl If a child regularly spends several hours ~ at ~ 2!. ~ other sites such ~ another residence, st:I:€ft-as. 
or a residential or commercial child care facility, the board of health must also assess the other f'esieleRee sites. The 
board of health shall have one additional day to complete the assessment for each additional site. 

fB1@ The board of health must conduct the residential assessment according to rules adopted by the conunissioner 
aeeefeliflg te under section 144.878. A board of health must have residence assessments performed Qy lead inspectors 
licensed Qy the corrunissioner according to rules adopted under section 144.878. A board of health may observe the 
performance of lead abatement in progress and may enforce the provisions of sections 144.871 to 144.879 under section 
144.8781. The staff complement of the department of health shall be increased ~ two full-time equivalent positions 
who shall be lead inspectors. 

Sec. 17. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.874, subdivision 2, is amended to read: 

Subd. 2. [RESIDENTIAL LEAD ASSESSMENT GUIDE.] (a) The commissioner of health shall ,develop or purchase 
a residential lead assessment guide that enables parents and other caregivers to assess the possible lead sources 
present and that suggests lead abatement actions. The guide must provide infonnation on safe abatement and 
disposal methods, sources of equipment, and telephone numbers for additional information to enable the persons to 
either perform the abatement or to intelligently select an abatement contractor. In addition, the guide must: 

(1) meet the requirements of Minnesota laws and rules; 

(2) be understandable at not ~ than an eighth grade reading level; 
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(3) include information on all necessary safety precautions for all lead source cleanup; and 

(4) be the best available educational material. 

(b) A board of health must provide the residential lead assessment guide at no cost to: 

(1) parents and other caregivers of children who are identified as having blood lead levels of at least ten 
micrograms per deciliter; and 

(2) all property owners afla B€€Li:]9at'Lts who are issued housing code orders requiring aiSFtlptisR abatement of lead 
sourcesL and all occupants of those residences. 

(c) A board of health must provide the residential lead assessment guide on request to owners or teftaffls occupants 
of residential property within the jurisdiction of the board of health. 

Sec. 18. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.874, subdivision 3, is amended to read: 

Subd.3. [SWAB TEAMS; LEAD ASSESSMENT; LEAD ABATEMENT ORDERS.] A board of health must order a 
property owner to perform abatement on a lead source that exceeds a standard adopted according to section 144.878 
at the residence of a child with an elevated blood lead level or a pregnant woman with a blood lead level of at least 
ten micrograms per deciliter. Lead abatement orders must require that any source of damage, such as leaking roofs, 
plumbing, and windows, must be repaired or replaced, as needed, to prevent damage to lead-containing interior 
surfaces. The board of health is not required to £ill: for lead abatement. With each lead abatement order, the board 
of health must coordinate with swab team abatement and provide a residential lead abatement guide. 

Sec. 19. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.874, is amended by adding ~ subdivision to read: 

Subd.3a. [SWAB TEAM SERVICES.] After issuing abatement orders for a residence of a child or pregnant women 
with elevated blood lead levels. the commissioner or ~ board of health must send ~ swab ~ within five working 
days to the residence to perform swab team services as defined in section 144.871. subdivision 9. If the cOrrurUssioner 
.Q!. board of health provides swab team services after an assessment, but before the issuance of an abatement order. 
swab team services do not need to be repeated after the issuance of an' abatement order. Swab team services are not 
considered completed until the reassessment required under subdivision 6 shows no violation of one or more of the 
standards under section 144.878, subdivision 2. If assessments and abatement orders are conducted at times when 
weather or soil conditions do not permit the assessment or abatement of lead in soil, the residences shall have their 
soil assessed and abated, if necessary, at the first opportunity that weather and soil conditions allow. 

Sec. 20. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.874, subdivision 4, is amended to read: 

Subd.4. [RELOCATION OF RESIDENTS.]hl A board of health must ensure that residents are relocated from 
rooms or dwellings during abatement that generates leaded dust, such as removal or disruption of lead-based paint 
or plaster that contains lead. Residents must be allowed to return to the residence or dwelling after completion of 
abatement. A board of health shall use grant funds under section 144.872, subdivision 3, in cooperation with local 
housing agencies, to pay for moving costs and rent for a temporary residence for any low-income resident temporarily 
relocated during lead abatement, Ret te eJEeeea $2§G peF RBL:lSeRBM. For purposes of this section, "low-income 
resident" means ~ resident whose gross household income is at or below 185 percent of the federal poverty level. 

ill Any resident of rental property who ~ notified Qy the board of health to vacate the premises during lead 
abatement notwithstanding any rental agreement or lease provisions: 

ill shall not be required to .p!!y. rent due the landlord for the period of time the tenant must vacate the premises; 
and 

ill may elect to immediately tenninate the tenancy effective on the date the tenant vacates the premises for lead 
abatement, and shall not be liable for ~ further rent Q!. other charges due Wlder the terms of the tenancy. 

1£l !llandlord of rental property in which tenants must vacate the premises during lead abatement mu'st: 

ill allow!! tenant to return to the dwelling after lead abatement and retesting. as required Wlder subdivision ~ 
is completed unless the tenant has elected to terminate the tenancy under paragraph .ili1. and 
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ill rehlrn ~ security deposit due tmder section 504.20 to any tenant who terminates tenancy under paragraph 
ill within five days of the date the tenant vacates the unit. 

@ In!!:!!y proceeding brought W1der chapter 566 for the restitution of the premises on the ground of nonpayment 
of rent. i!. shall be ~ defense thereto if the tenant establishes Qy !!. preponderance of the evidence that the plaintiff 
increased the tenant's rent as a penalty, in whole or in part, due to the landlord's receipt of !!!!. order from!!. board 
of health that lead abatement is required, provided that the tenant tender to the court .2!. to the plaintiff the amount 
of rent due and payable under the terms of the tenant's original obligation and this subdivision. !f the notice of rent 
increase was served within 90 clays of the date the landlord receives notice of an order for lead abatement, the burden 
of proving that the notice ~ not served ~ ~ penalty, in whole or in part. for a retaliatory purpose shall rest with 
the plaintiff. 

Sec. 21. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.874, subdivision 5, is amended to read: 

Subd.5. [WARNING NOTICE; FINE.] A warning notice must be posted on all entrances to properties for which 
an order to abate a lead source has been issued by a board of health. A person who unlawfully removes a warning 
notice posted under this section shall he subject to ~ $250 fine. +ffis The warning notice must be at least 8-1/2 by 11 
inches in size and must include the following language, or substantially similar language: 

(a) "This property contains dangerous amounts of lead to which children under age six and pregnant women 
should not be exposed." 

(b) "It is unlawful to remove or deface this warning. 'fffis Ii amBit; met} 1:1e feffte. eel SRi) I;lJ:?SR the eiifeeasfl sf tHe 
beare! ef healta." 

i£l "Persons who remove or deface this warning shall be subject to ~ $250 fine. This warning may be removed only 
upon the direction of the board of health. " 

Sec. 22. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.874, subdivision 6, is amended to read: 

Subd. 6. [SERVICES AND RETESTING REQUIRED.] After completion of swab team services and the abatement 
as ordered, including any repairs ordered Qy a local housing or building inspector, the board of health must retest 
the residence to assure the violations no longer exist. The board of health is not required to test a residence after lead 
abatement that was not ordered Qy the board of health. 

Sec. 23. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.874, subdivision 9, is amended to read: 

Subd.9. [PRIMARY PREVENTION.] Although children who are found to already have elevated blood lead levels 
must have the highest priority for intervention, the commissioner shall pursue primary prevention sf leaS. PSiSSfliR-g 
for toxic lead exposure within the limits of appropriations. 

Sec. 24. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.874, is amended by adding a subdivision to read: 

Subd.11a. [LEAD ABATEMENT DIRECTIVES.] In order to achieve statewide consistency in the application of lead 
abatement standards, the conunissioner shall issue program directives that interpret the application of rules under 
section 144.878 in ambiguous or unusual lead abatement situations. These directives are guidelines to local boards 
of health. The commissioner shall periodically review the evaluation of lead abatement orders and the program 
directives to determine if the ruIes under section 144.878 need to be amended to reflect ~ understanding of lead 
abatement practices and methods. 

Sec. 25. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.876, is amended by adding a subdivision to read: 

Subd.:h [NOTICE OF ABATEMENT.] At least five days before starting work at each lead abatement worksite, a 
lead abatement contractor shall give written notice to the corrunissioner and the board of health. 
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Sec. 26. [144.877] [LEAD INSPECTORS; LICENSING.] 

Subdivision 1. ILICENSE REQUIRED.] A lead inspector must obtain a license within 180 days of the effective date 
of this section and must renew it annually. The license must be readily available at assessment sites for inspection 
Qy the commissioner 2!:. Qy staff of ~ board of health with jurisdiction ~ !! work site. A license cannot be 
transferred. 

Subd. ~ [LICENSE APPLICATION.] An application for license or license renewal must be on a form provided Qy 
the commissioner and must include: 

ill ~ $50 nonrefundable fee, in the form of ~ check; 

ill evidence that the applicant has successfully completed a lead inspector training course approved in subdivision 
~ or has; within the previous 180 days, successfully completed an initial lead inspection training course. 

The fee required in this subdivision is waived for an employee of ,e. board of health. 

Subd, ~ [LICENSE RENEWAL.] A license ~ valid for ~ year from the issuance date Unless the commissioner 
revokes it. An applicant must successfully complete either 'an initial lead inspection training course or an annual 
refresher lead inspection training course to ~ for license renewal. 

Subd,.1:. [LICENSE REPLACEMENT.] A licensed lead inspector may obtain a replacement license Qy reapplying 
for ~ license, A replacement expires 2!!. the ~ date ~ the original license. A nonrefundable $25 fee ~ required 
with each replacement application. 

Subd. ~ [DENIAL OF LICENSE APPLICATION.] The commissioner may deny an application, revoke, or impose 
limitations or conditions on ~ license, if the applicant or licensed lead inspector: 

ill violates rules adopted under sections 144.871 to 144.879: 

ill submits an application that is incomplete, inaccurate, or lacks the required ~ or submits an invalid check; 

m obtains ~ license, certificate, or approval through error, fraud,- or cheating; 

ill provides false or fraudulent information on forms; 

ill aids .Q£ allows an unlicensed or uncertified person to engage in activities for which .?!. license or certificate is 
required; 

ill endangers public health or safety; 

ill has been convicted during the previous five years of ,e. felony.Q£ gross misdemeanor related to residential lead 
assessment or residential lead abatement: or 

ill has been convicted during the previous five years of a violation of section 270,72, 325F.69, or 325F.71. 

An application for licensure that has been denied may be resubmitted when the ~ for denial have been 
corrected. A person whose license is revoked may not ~ for ,e.license within ~ year of the date of revocation. 
After one year, the application requirements must be followed Qy an applicant for .?!. license, certificate, or ~ 
approval. An applicant who submits an approvable application within 60 days of initial denial is not required to m!Y. 
~ second fee, 

Subd. Q,. [APPROVAL OF LEAD INSPECTION COURSE.] A lead inspection course sponsored me the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency ~ an approved ~ for the purpose of this section. 

Subd. 'Z.:... [LEAD INSPECTION; RULES.] The commissioner may adopt rules to implement this section. The 
commissioner may also approve lead inspector courses offered £v. groups other than those approved Qy the United 
States Environmental Protection Agency and shall charge .?!. fee to .£2Y!:!. the costs of approving courses. 
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Sec. 27. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.878, subdivision 2, is amended to read: 

Subd. 2. [LEAD STANDARDS AND ABATEMENT METHODS.] (a) The commissioner shall adopt rules 
establishing standards and abatement methods for lead in paint, dust, and drinking water in a manner that protects 
public health and the environment for all residences, including residences also used for a commercial purpose. :t:fte 
esmHHssisfl€F sRall asspt f'FisFities FeF rFe. iaHtg aaatem€Rt S€fflE€S ta apeas aefiflea ta Be at mgh lislE fer te)~ie lead 
€Jf¥1BSI;lF€. Ir. aaepti.-.g ]3FisFities, the esHl::Fl"lisslsR shall eSflsieleF tfle Rl:1mbeF sf eftilth-eR aRa flF€gFlaR-t ,\ BffiEft 
aiagRBsea witA elevated blseellevels aRa the meeliafl eSReeflHatisR e£ lead in tl-.e sail. The EefFl:ffi:::issisR€F shall gi;re 
f'FieFit:} te aFeas fia. ir.g fr.e IaFg€st pspL:J:latieR sf efiilefeR aIle pf'egRaRt 'i affieR ha. ir.g elevatee Bleael lead Ie. eis, 
areas witfl the higflest ffieaiaR sail leaa eaReeRtraliaR, aftd areas where it has BeeR aetermtr.eel that tl-.ere are large 
RHmBef'S afresideRees tflat ha.e aetef'iaratir.g paHtt. The commissioner shall differentiate between intact paint and 
deteriorating paint. The commissioner and political subdivisions shall require abatement of intact paint only if the 
commissioner or political subdivision finds that the intact paint is 2!l a chewable or lead-dust producing surface that 
is a known source .Q!. reasonably expected to be ~ ~ of actual lead exposure to a specific person, In adopting 
rules under this subdivision, the commissioner shall require the best available technology for lead abatement methods, 
paint stabilization, and repainting .. 

(b) The commissioner of health shall adopt standards and abatement methods for lead in bare soil on playgrounds 
and residential property in a manner to protect public health and the environment. The commissioner shall adopt 
a maximum standard of 100 parts of lead ~ million in bare soil. unless l!.~ proven that a different standard provides 
greater protection of public health. 

(c) The commissioner of the pollution control agency shall adopt rules to ensure that removal of exterior lead-based 
coatings from residential property by abrasive blasting methods aRa aiSflssal af a~ ha~araSHS Ii aste at'e is conducted 
in a manner that protects public health and the environment. 

(d) All standards adopted under this subdivision must provide aaeE:):l;late reasonable margins of safety that are 
consistent with a detailed review of scientific evidence and an emphasis on overprotection rather than underprotection 
when the scientific evidence is ambiguous. The rules must apply to any individual performing or ordering the 
performance of lead abatement. 

1rl No unit of local government may have an ordinance or regulation governing lead ab~tement methods for lead 
in paint, dust, or soil for residences and residential land that require a different lead abatement method than the lead 
abatement standards established under sections 144.871 to 144.879. 

Sec. 28. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.878, subdivision 2a, is amended to read: 

Subd. 2a. [PRIORITIES FOR RESPONSE ACTION.]Il) Ja .... a.., 1, 1988, The commissioner of health must adopt 
~ rules establishing #te a priority list of census tracts at high risk for toxic lead exposure for primary prevention 
response actions. The FHles ft'H:lSt eSRSiaer tfle ]3eteRtial fer effilareR's eeRtaet witI-. tRe seil ar.a fr.e eJEistif'l:g level sf 
leaa iR tRe seil aRa ma} eSRsiaef' tr.e lelaave rish ta tfle pl;l\:llie Realtft, fr.e sii;e sf the ]3a]3t:t:latisR at FisIE, aftd alsea 
leae levels af resiaeRt pe]3l;llatieRS. In establishing the list, the commissioner shall award points under this 
subdivision to each census tract -on which information is available. The priority for primary prevention response 
actions in ~ tracts at high risk for toxic lead exposure shall be based on the cumulative points awarded to each 
~ tract. 11 greater number of points means ~ higher priority. !! ~ tie ~ in the number of points, priority 
shall be given to the ~ tract with the higher percentage of population with blood lead levels greater than ten 
micrograms of lead ~ deciliter. All local governmental units and boards of health shall follow the priorities under 
this subdivision. The corrumssioner shall revise and update the priority list- at least every five years. Points shall be 
awarded to each ~ tract for each criteria, considered independently, defined in section 144.871, subdivision 7a. 
Points shall be awarded as follows: 

li!l In a census tract where at least 20 children have been screened in the last five years,.Q!!!:. point shall be awarded 
for each five percent of children who were under six years old at the time they were screened for lead in blood and 
whose blood lead level exceeds ten micrograms of lead ~ deciliter. An additional point shall be awarded if .Q!!!:. 
percent of the children had blood levels greater than 20 micrograms ~ deciliter of blood. Two points shall be 
awarded to a census tract, where the blood lead screening has been inadequate, that is contiguous with a census tract 
where !.!!2!!:. than ten percent of the children under six years of ~ have blood lead levels exceeding ten micrograms 
E£ deciliter. 
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ill One point shall be awarded for every five percent of housing that is defined as dilapidated or deteriorated Qy 
the planning department or similar agency of the .£i!y in which the housing is located. Where data is available Qy 
neighborhood or section within !!. ~ the percent of dilapidated or deteriorated housing shall ~ equally to each 
~ tract within the neighborhood or section . 

.f.sl One point shall be awarded for every 100 parts ~ million of lead soil, based on the median soil lead values 
of foundation soil samples, calculated on 100 parts ~ million intervals, or fraction thereof. For the cities of st. Paul 
and Minneapolis, the cOrrmUssioner shall ~ the Tune 1988 census tract version of the houseside map entitled 
"Distribution of Household Lead Content of Soil Dust in the Twin Cities," prepared Qy the center for urban and 
regional affairs. Where the map displays a census tract that is crossed Qy two 2!:. more intervals, the commissioner 
shall make a reasoned determination of the median foundation soil lead value for that tract. Values for census tracts 
may be updated Qy surveying the tract according to the procedures under ~esota Rules, part4761]j4oQ, 
subpart 8. 

Sec. 29. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.878, subdivision 5, is amended to read: 

Subd.5. [LEAD ABATEMENT CONTRACTORS AND EMPLOYEES.] The commissioner shall adopt rules to license 
lead abatement contractors, to certify employees of lead abatement contractors who perform abatement, and to certify 
lead abatement trainers who provide lead abatement training for contractors, employees, or other lead abatement 
trainers. The Fliles ffH:l:st melaee staroeafBs aRe f'FeeeelHes F8f eft the jea tFaiRiRg FeF SoiaS teams. A person who 
performs painting, renovation, rehabilitation, remodeling, or other residential work that ~ not lead abatement need 
not be a licensed lead abatement contractor. However, a person who performs work that removes intact paint on 
residences built before February ?:Z.,;.1978, must determine whether lead sources are present and whether the planned 
work would be lead abatement as defined in section 144.871, subdivision 2. This determination may be made Qx. 
quantitative chemical analysis, X-ray fluorescence analyzer, or chemical spot test using sodium rhodizonate. !f lead 
sources ~ identified, the work must be performed Qy ~ licensed lead abatement contractor. An owner of ~ 
owner-occupied residence with ~ or two units i§. not subject to the reguirements under this subdivision. Alilead 
abatement training must include a hands-on component and instruction on the health effects of lead exposure, the 
use of personal protective equipment, workplace hazards and safety problems, abatement methods and work practices, 
decontamination procedures, cleanup and waste disposal procedures, lead monitoring and testing methods, and legal 
rights and responsibilities. The commissioner shall ~ rules to approve lead abatement training courses and to 
charge ~ fee for approval. At least 30 days before publishing initial notice of proposed rules under this subdivision 
on the licensing of lead abatement contractors, the commissioner shall submit the rules to the chairs of the health and 
human services committees in the house of representatives and the senate, and to any legislative committee on 
licensing created by the legislature. 

Sec. 30. [144.8781] [ENFORCEMENT.] 

Subdivision 1. [CEASE AND DESIST ORDER.lll!l The conunissioner may issue an order requiring a person to 
cease lead abatement if the commissioner determines that a condition exists that poses an immediate danger to the 
public health. For purposes of this subdivision, an immediate danger to the public health exists if the commissioner 
determines that: 

ill lead abatement is being performed in a manner that violates applicable state or federal law or related rules; 

ill the person performing lead abatement is not currently licensed or certified as required Q.v. rules adopted under 
sections 144.871 to 144.879; or . 

ill the lead abatement contractor has not given prior written notice required Q.v. section 144.876 to the commissioner 
and board of health. 

ill An order to cease lead abatement is effective for a maximum of 60 days. Following issuance of the order, the 
commissioner shall provide the contractor or individual with an opportunity for a hearing under the contested case 
provisions of chapter 14. Within ten days of the hearing, the commissioner shall decide whether to rescind, modify, 
or reissue the previous order. A modified or reissued order is effective for a maximum of 60 days from the date of 
modification or reissuance. 

Subd. b. [ORDER FOR CORRECTIVE ACTION.] .w. The commissioner may issue an order requiring !! person 
violating sections 144.871 to 144.879 or!!. rule adopted under sections 144.871 to 144.879 to take the corrective action 
the commissioner determines will accomplish the purpose of the project and prevent future violation. The order for 
corrective action shall state the conditions that constitute the violation! the specific statute Q!. rule violated! and the 
time Qx. which the violation must be corrected. 
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1QlIf the person believes that the information contained in the commissioner's order for corrective action is in error, 
the person may ask the commissioner to reconsider the parts of the order that ~ alleged to be in error. The request 
must be in writing, delivered to the commissioner Qy certified mail within five working days of receipt of the order. 
and: 

ill ~ which parts of the order for corrective action are alleged to be in error: 

ill provide documentation to support the allegation of error. 

The conunissioner shall respond to a request made Wlder this subdivision within 15 working ~ after receipt of 
the request. A request for reconsideration does not stay the order for corrective action but the commissioner may 
provide additional time to comply with the order after reviewing the request. The commissioner's disposition of a 
request for reconsideration is final. 

Subd.1. [INJUNCTNE RELIEF.] In addition to any other remedy provided Ju:law. the commissioner may bring 
an action for injunctive relief in the district court in Ramsey county Q!L at the commissioner's discretion. in the district 
court in the county in which the lead abatement is being undertaken. to halt the work or ~ activity connected with 
it. t!. temporary restraining order or other injunctive relief may be granted !'!v. the court !f continuation of the lead 
abatement or an activity connected with it would result in an imminent risk of harm to any ~ 

Subd. & [PENALTIES.]!& e. person who violates any of the requirements of sections 144.871 to 144.879 or ~ 
requirement. rule . .Q!. order issued under this section ~ subject to !. civil ~ of not ~ than $5.000 ~ ~ of 
violation. Penalties may be recovered in a civil action in the name of the state brought !:!y,~ the attorney general. 

ill The corrunissioner may issue ~ order assessing a penalty of not!!!Q!!;. than $5.000 ~ violation to any person 
who violates any of the requirements of sections 144.871 to 144.879 or any requirement, rule,.Q!. order issued under 
this section. A person subject to an administrative penalty. order may request.! contested case hearing under chapter 
14 within 20~, from date of receipt of the penalty order. !! the penalty order is not contested within 20 days of 
receipt. it becomes final and may not be contested. 

l£l The amount of ~ shall be based Q!! the past history of violations. the severity of violation. the culpability 
of the person. and other rel~vant factors. 

@ Penalties assessed under sections 144.871 to 144.879 shall be paid to the commissioner for deposit in the general 
fund. Unpaid penalties shall be increased to 125 percent of the original assessed amount if not paid within 60 days 
after the penalty order becomes final. After 60 days. interest shall accrue on the unpaid penalty balance at the rate 
established in section 549.09. 

Subd. ~ [MISDEMEANOR PENALTY.] e. person i§.&!!illy of a misdemeanor and may be sentenced to paYment 
of .! fine of not ~ than $700. imprisonment for not more than 30 days . .Q!. both. for each violation if that person: 

ill hinders or· delays the corrhnissioner or the commissioner's authorized representative in the performance of the 
duty to enforce sections 144.871 to 144.879; 

ill undertakes lead abatement without .! current. valid license: 

ill refuses to make .! license or certificate accessible to either the corrunissioner or the commissioner's authorized 
representative: 

ill employs a person to do lead abatement who does not have II valid certificate; 

ill fails to report lead abatement as required Ju: section 144.876; or 

!2l makes .! false material statement related to .! license, certificate, report. .Q!. other documents required under 
sections 144.871 to 144.879. 

Subd. 2:. [DISCRIMINATION.] A person who discriminates against or otherwise sanctions an employee who 
complains to or cooperates with the commissioner in administering sections 144.871 to 144.879 ~ &!!illy of .! 
misdemeanor. 
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Sec. 31. [SWAB TEAM PILOT STUDY.] 

~ ....... , the commissioner of health shall conduct or contract for two studies of the effectiveness of swab teams for 
,residential lead abatement. The studies must he conduded in two cities of the first class, in neighborhoods that are 
at high risk of toxic lead exposure under Minnesota Statutes. section 144.871. subdivision Z& that also have ~ high 
percentage of rental property, a population with incomes below the.£!!y, average, and a concentrated Native American 
or other minority populations. The corrunissioner shall report the results of the study to the legislature .£y ~ 

Sec. 32. [APPROPRIATION; LEAD FUND.] 

$ ....... is appropriated from the lead fund to the commissioner of health to be available until June 2Q,. 1995. Of this 
sum. ~ is for contracts with boards of health to provide safe housing. under Minnesota Statutes. section 144.878, 
subdivision ~ to meet the relocation reguirements-of residential lead abatement. $ ....... shall be used for grants to 
nonprofit community-based organizations. in ~ at high risk for toxic lead exposure. for lead cleanup eguipment 
and material grants under Minnesota Statutes. section 144.872. subdivision 4. 

Sec. 33. [REPEALER.] 

Minnesota Statutes 1992. sections 144.8721; 144.874. subdivision.!QL and 144.878. subdivision ~ are repealed. 

Sec. 34. [EFFECTNE DATE.] 

Sections 1 to 26 are effective the day following final enactment. 

Article 2 
Lead Abatement Programs 

Section 1. [268.92] [LEAD ABATEMENT PROGRAM.] 

Subdivision 1. [DEFINITIONS.] For the purposes of this section, the following terms have the meanings given 
them . 

.@1"Certified worker" means! lead abatement worker certified ~ the commissioner of health under section 144.878. 
subdivision .2.:. 

ill "Certified trainer" ~ ! lead trainer certified Qy the commissioner of health under section 144.878. 
subdivision S. 

'f£l"Certified worker" means! lead abatement worker certified ~ the commissioner of health under section 144.878. 
subdivision 5. 

@ "Commissioner" means the commissioner of health. 

ill "Eligible organization" means a licensed contractor. certified trainer. ~ board of health. community health 
department. community action ~ as defined in section 268.52. or community development corporation . 

.ill "High risk for toxic lead exposure" has the meaIring given in section 144.871. subdivision 7a. 

!sl "Licensed contractor" ~ a contractor licensed £y the deparbnent of health under section 144.876. 

ill "Removal and replacement abatement" means lead abatement on residential property that requires retrofitting 
and conforms to the rules established under section 144.878. 

ill "Swab team" has the meaning given in section 144.871. subdivision 9. 

Subd. b [GRANTS; ADMINISTRATION.] The commissioner may make demonstration and training grants to 
eligible organizations for programs to train workers for swab teams and removal and replacement abatement. and 
to provide swab team services and removal and replacement abatement for residential property. 
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Grants awarded under this section must be made in consultation with the commissioners of the department of 
health, and the housing finance agency, and representatives of neighborhood ~ from areas at high risk for toxic 
lead exposure, a lahor organization, the lead coalition, and the legal aid society. The consulting team shall review. 
grant applications and recommend awards to eligible organizations that meet reguirements for receiving a grant under 
this section. 

Subd. J:. [APPLICANTS.].illl Interested eligible organizations may ~ to the commissioner for grants under this 
section. Two 2!. ~ eligible organizations may jointly ~ for !!. grant. Applications must provide information 
reguested- Qy the commissioner, including at least the information required to assess the factors listed in 
paragraph !..Q1. 

!hl. With grant awards under this section, the commissioner of health must contract under section 144.872 with 
boards of health to provide one swab team in each f!!y of the first class and two swab teams for the remainder of the 
state. Swab teams, administered .Qy the commissioner of health, that are not engaged daily in fulfilling the 
reguirements of section 144.872, subdivision ~ must deliver swab team services in census tracts known to be at high 
risk for toxic lead exposure. 

1£2. Any additional grants shall be made to establish swab teams for primary prevention. without environmental 
lead testing, in ~ tracts at high risk for toxic lead exposure. 

@ In evaluating grant applications, the commissioner shall consider the following criteria: 

ill the ~ of licensed contractors and certified lead abatement workers for residential lead abatement: 

ill the participation of neighborhood groups and individuals, as swab team members, in areas at high risk for toxic 
lead exposure; 

m plans for the provision of primary prevention through swab team services in ~ at high risk for toxic lead 
exposure on a ~ tract basis without environmental lead testing; 

ill plans for supervision, training, career development, and posWrogram placement of.swab team members; 

1ID.- plans for resident and property owner education on lead safety; 

@ plans for distributing cleaning supplies to ~ residents and educating residents and property ~ on 
cleaning technigues; 

m cost estimates for training. swab ~ services, equipment, monitoring, and administration; 

.!.§l measures' of program effectiveness; and 

m coordination of program activities with other federaL state, and local public health, jQ£ training, apprenticeship. 
and housing renovation programs including the emergency jobs program under sections 268.672 to 268.881. 

Subd,.1" [LEAD ABATEMENT CONTRACTORS.] ill} Eligible organizations and licensed lead abatement contractors 
may participate in the lead abatement program. An organization receiving a grant under this section must assure that 
all participating contractors are licensed and that all swab team, and removal and replacement employees are certified 
.Qy the department of health under section 144.878. subdivision 5. Organizations and licensed contractors may 
distinguish between interior and exterior services in assigning duties and may participate in the program ~ 

ill providing on-the-job training for swab teams; 

ill providing swab team services to the commissioner of health to meet the reguirements of section 144.872; 

@ providing removal and replacement abatement using skilled craft workers: 
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ill providing primary prevention, without environmental lead testing, in ~ tracts ~ high risk for toxic lead 
exposure; 

@ providing lead dust cleaning supplies, as described in section 144.872. subdivision 1.t. to residents; or 

@ instructing residents and property owners on appropriate lead control technigues. 

ill Participating licensed contractors must: 

ill demonstrate proof of workers' compensation and general liability insurance coverage; 

ill be knowledgeable about lead abatement requirements established Qy the department of housing and urban 
development and the occupational safety and health administration; 

ill demonstrate experience with on-the-job training programs; 

ill demonstrate an ability to recruit employees from areas at high risk for toxic lead exposure; and 

@ demonstrate experience in working with low-income clients. 

Subd.!L [LEAD ABATEMENT EMPLOYEES.] Each worker engaged in swab team services .Q!: removal and 
replacement abatement in programs established under this section must have blood lead concentrations below 15 
micrograms ~ deciliter as determined Qy a baseline blood lead screening. Any organization receiving a grant under 
this section is responsible for lead screening and must assure that all workers in lead abatement programs. receiving 
grant funds under this section. meet the standards established·in this subdivision. Grantees must use appropriate 
workplace procedures to reduce risk of elevated blood lead levels. Grantees and participating contractors must report 
all employee blood lead levels that exceed 15 micrograms ~ deciliter to the commissioner of health. 

Subd. ~ [ON-THE-JOB TRAINING COMPONENT.] !cl Programs established under this section must provide 
on-the-job training for swab teams. Training methods must follow procedures established under section 144.878. 
subdivision 5. 

ill Swab team members must receive monetary compensation egual to the prevailing wage as defined in section 
177.42. subdivision ~ for comparable jobs in the licensed contractor's principal business. 

Subd. L [REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT COMPONENT.] !cl Programs established under this section must 
identify if ~ need exists for removal and replacement abatement in residential properties. All removal and 
replacement abatement must be done using least-cost methods that meet the standards of section 144.878. subdivision 
b. Removal and replacement abatement must be done Qy licensed lead abatement contractors. All craft work that 
reguires a state license must be supervised Qy ~ person with £. state license in the craft work being supervised. 

ill The program design must: 

ill identify the need for trained swab team workers and removal and replacement abatement workers; 

ill describe plans to involve appropriate ~ in designing methods to meet the need for trained lead abatement 
workers; and 

ill include an examination of how program participants may achieve certification as a part of the work experience 
and training component. Certification may be achieved through licensing. apprenticeship, Q!. other education 
programs. 

Subd.!h [PROGRAM BENEFITS.] As a condition of providing lead abatement under this section, an organization 
may require a property owner to not increase rents on a property solely as a result of a substantial improvement made 
with public funds under the programs in this section. 

Subd. 2, [REQUIREMENTS OF ORGANIZATIONS RECEIVING GRANTS.] An eligible organization that i§. 
awarded a training and demonstration grant under this section shall prepare and submit a progress report to the 
commissioner .£v. February Th 1994. 
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Subd. 10, [REPORT.] The commissioner shall prepare and submit ~ lead abatement program report to the 
legislature and the governor Qy March .!1.t. 1994. and every two years thereafter. At !! minimum, the report must 
describe the programs that received grants under this section, and make recommendations for program changes. 

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 462A.03, subdivision 15, is amended to read: 

Subd. 15. [REHABILITATION.] "Rehabilitation" means the repair, reconstruction, or improvement of existing 
residential housing with the object of making such residential housing decent, safe, sanitary and more desirable to 
live in, of greater market value or in conformance with state, county, or city health, housing, building, fire prevention, 
and housing maintenance codesL and lead and other public standards applicable to housing, as determined by the 
agency. 

Sec. 3. [APPROPRIATION.] 

$ ....... i§. appropriated' from the lead fund to the commissioner of health for the purposes of section.1. The 
unencumbered balance remaining in the first year does not cancel but is available for the se:cond year." 

Delete the title and insert: 

"A biH for an act relating to health; modifying lead abatement requirements; licenses and fees; establishing 
enforcement procedures and disposal methods; establishing grant programs; providing penalties; appropriating money; 
amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 144.871, subdivisions 2, 6, 7a, 7b, 9, and by adding subdivisions; 144,872, 
subdivisions 2, 3, 4, and by adding a subdivision; 144.873, subdivisions 2 and 3; 144.874, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 
9, and by adding subdivisions; 144.876, by adding a subdivision; 144.878, subdivisions' 2, 2a, and 5; 256B.0625, 
subdivision 14; and 462A.03, subdivision 15; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 144; and 
268; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 144.8721; 144.874, subdivision 10; and 144.878, subdivision 2a." 

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass and be re-r~ferred to the Committee on Judiciary. 

The report was adopted. 

Anderson, 1., from the Committee on Local Government and Metropolitan Affairs to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 976, A bill for an act relating to counties; authorizing a county to transfer funds to and enter into 
contracts with community action agencies; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 375.18, by adding a subdivision. 

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill pass and be placed on the Consent Calendar. 

The report was adopte~. 

Skoglund from the Committee on Judiciary to which was referred: 

H. F. No, 994, A biH for an act relating to children; foster care and adoption placement; specifying time limits for 
compliance with placement preferences; setting standards for changing out-of-home placement; requiring notice of 
certain adoptions; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 257.071, subdivision 1a; 259,255; 259.28, subdivision 
2; 259.455; and 260.181, subdivision 3; proposing coding for new -law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 259. 

Reported the same back with the following amendments: 



848 JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE [29TH DAY 

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert: 

"Section 1. [257.0651] [COMPLIANCE WITH INDIAN CHILD WELFARE ACT.] 

Sections 257.066 to 257.075 must be construed consistently with the Indian Child Welfare Act of 1978, United States 
Code, title ~ sections 1901, et seg. 

Sec. 2. MiImesota Statutes 1992, section 257.071, subdivision 1, is amended to read: 

Subdivision 1. [PLACEMENT; PLAN.] A case plan shall be prepared within 30 days after any child is placed in 
a residential facility by court order or by the voluntary release of the child by the parent or parents. 

For purposes of this section, a residential facility means any group home, family foster home or other publicly 
supported out-ot-home residential facility, including any out-oi-home residential facility under contract with the state, 
county or other political subdivision, or any agency thereof, to provide those services. 

For-the purposes of this section, a case plan means a written document which is ordered by the court or which is 
prepared by the social service agency responsible for the residential facility placement and is signed by the parent 
or parents, or other custodian, of the child, the child's legal guardian, the social service agency responsible for the 
residential facility placement, and, if possible, the child. The document shall be explained to all persons involved in 
its implementation, including the child who has signed the document, and shall set forth: 

(1) The specific reasons for the placement of the child in a residential facility, including a description of the 
problems or conditions in the home of the parent or parents which necessitated removal of the child from home; 

(2) The specific actions to be taken by the parent or parents of the child to eliminate or correct the problems or 
conditions identified in clause (I), and the time period during which the actions are to be taken; 

(3) The financial responsibilities and obligations, if any, of the parents for the support of the child during the period 
the child is in the residential facility; 

(4) The visitation rights and obligations of the parent or parents.Q!. other relatives as defined in section 260.181, if 
such visitation is consistent with the best interest of the child, during the period the child is in the residential facility; 

(5) The social and other supportive services to be provided to the parent or parents of the child, the child, and the 
residential facility dwing the period the child is in the residential facility; 

(6) The date on which the child is expected to be returned to the home of the parent or parents; 

(7) The nature of the effort to be made by the social service agency responsible for the placement to reunite the 
family; and 

(8) Notice to the parent or parents that placement of the child in foster care may result in termination of parental 
rights but only after notice and a hearing as provided in chapter 260. 

The parent or parents and the child each shall have the right to legal counsel in the preparation of the case plan 
and shall be informed of the right at the time of placement of the child. The child shall also have the right to a 
guardian ad litem. If unable to employ counsel from their own resources, the court shall appoint counsel upon the 
request of the parent or parents or the child or the child's legal guardian. The parent or parents may also receive 
assistance from any person or social service agency in preparation of the case plan. 

After the plan has been agreed upon by the parties involved, the foster parents shall be fully informed of the 
provisions of the case plan. 

When an agency accepts a child for placement, the agency shall determine whether the child has had a physical 
examination by or under the direction of a licensed physician within the 12 months immediately preceding the date 
when the child came into the agency's care. If there is documentation that the child has had such an examination 
within the last 12 months, the agency is responsible for seeing that the child has another physical examination within 
one year of the documented examination and annually in subsequent years. If the agency determines that the child 
has not had a physical examination within the 12 months immediately preceding placement, the agency shall ensure 
that the child has the examination within 30 days of coming into the agency's care and once a year in subsequent 
~ . 
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Sec. 3, Minnesota Statutes 1992f section 257.071, subdivision la, is amended to read: 

Subd.1a. [PROTECTION OF HERITAGE OR BACKGROUND.] The authorized child placing agency shall ensure 
that the child's best interests are met by giving due consideration of the child's race or ethnic heritage in making a 
family foster care placement. The authorized child placing agency shall place a child, released by court order or by 
voluntary release by the parent or parents, in a family foster home selected by following the preferences described 
in section 260.181, subdivision 3.. 

The agency shall notify the parents and the child. if the child!§. at least 12 years old, that the placement preferences 
will be followed unless the parents.Q!. the child,.if the child!§. at least 12 years old, reguest that the preferences not 
be followed. For purposes of ensuring compliance with this subdivision, the agency shall ask the parents for 
information about the child's relatives, as defined in section 260.181, subdivision ~ who may be available to provide 
~ for the child, and about the child's ~ or ethnicity. The agency shall document in the ~ record efforts to 
locate relatives and other efforts made to comply with this subdivision. 

!! the parents Q£ the child, it the child ~ at least 12 years old, request that the placement preference's not be 
followed. there is a rebuttable presumption that the request is in the best interests of the child. !f. the agency opposes 
the request, i! has the burden of proving that the request ~ not in the best interests of the child. 

In instances where a child Ro8m a ffimtl) sf Eelsf is placed in a family foster home of a different racial or ethnic 
background, the local social service agency shall review the placement after 30 days and each 30 days thereafter for 
the first six months to determine if there is another available placement that would better satisfy the requirements 
of this subdivision. When the child has been placed outside the home for longer than six months, the child may be 
placed in a different family foster home' only if the new placement is in the child's best interests. 

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 257.072, subdivision 7, is amended to read: -'_ 

Subd. 7. [DUTIES OF CHILD-PLACING AGENCIES.] Each authorized child-placing agency must: 

(1) develop and follow procedures for implementing the order of preference prescribed by section 260.181, 
subdivision 3, and the Indian Child Welfare Act, United States Code, title 25, sections 1901 to 1923; 

(a) In implementing the order of preference, an authorized child-placing agency may disclose private or confidential 
data, as defined in section 13.02, to relatives of the child for the purpose of locating a suitable placement. The agency 
shall disclose only data that is necessary to facilitate implementing the preference. If a parent makes an explicit 
request that the relative preference not be followed, the agency shall bring the matter to the attention of the court -te 
eierefmtRe .. ket'Ref the pRfeRt's feEJ:l:lest is E8RsisteRt 'wifh. tt.e best ifltefests sf tt.e ERilei and the agency shall Ret 
contact relatives i::ffiless it. ordered to do so by the juvenile court; and 

(b) In implementing the order of preference, the authorized child-placing agency shall develop written standards 
for determining the suitability of proposed placements. The standards need not meet all requirements for foster care 
licensing, but must ensure that the safety, health, and welfare of the child is safeguarded. In the case of an Indian 
child, the standards to be applied must be the prevailing social and cultural standards of the Indian child's 
community, and the agency shall defer to tribal judgment as to suitability of a particular home when the tribe has 
intervened pursuant to the Indian Child Welfare Act; 

(2) have a written plan for recruiting minority adoptive and foster families. The plan must include (a) strategies 
for using existing resources in minority communities, (b) use of minority outreach staff wherever possible, (c) use of 
minority foster homes for placements after birth and before adoption, and (d) other techniques as appropriate; 

(3) have a written plan for training adoptive and foster families of minority children; 

(4) if located in an area with a significant minority population, have a written plan for employing minority social 
workers in adoption and foster care. The plan must include staffing goals and objectives; 

(5) ensure that adoption and foster care workers attend training offered or approved by the department of human 
services regarding cultural diversity and the needs of special needs children; and 

(6) develop and implement procedures for implementing the requirements of the Indian Child Welfare Act and the 
Minneso~a Indian family preservation act. 
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Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 257.072, is amended by adding a subdivision to read: 

Subd. ~ [RULES.] The commissioner of human services shall adopt rules to establish standards for conducting 
relative searches and determining the suitability of proposed relative placements. The standards need not impose.Q!l 
relatives all the reguirements for foster care licensing but must ~ that the child's health, safety, and welfare ~ 
safeguarded. 

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 259.255, is amended to read: 

259.255 [PROTECTION OF HERITAGE OR BACKGROUND.] 

W The policy of the state of Minnesota is to ensure that the best interests of the child are met by requiring due 
consideration of the child's race or ethnic heritage in adoption placements. For purposes of intercountry adoptions, 
due consideration is deemed to have occurred if the appropriate authority in the child's country of birth has approved 
the placement of the child. 

ill In the adoptive placement that commences not later than 12 months after the child has been placed outside the 
home, the authorized child placing agency shall give preference, in the absence of good cause to the contrary, to 
placing the child with tat ill a relative or relatives of the child, or, if that would be detrimental to the child or a 
relative is not available, te1 ill a family with the same racial or ethnic heritage as the child, or, if that is not feasible, 
fe1 ill a family of different racial or ethnic heritage from the child which is knowledgeable and appreciative of the 
child's racial or ethnic heritage. 

1f Ute ERile's geRel=ie paf'eRt 8F paFeRts eJEplieitl} FeEfl:lest tRat tI-.e PFeref'eRee eeseFmee in elal:l:se (a) 8f ela\ises fa) 
aRe EB) Ret Be rells", ee, the atltAefi""ee ekile plaeiRg agetlE} sR_all ReRs! tRat !eEJol:l:est EeRsisteRt ". itA tHe eest interests 
sf the eflilel. 

!f tbe child's genetic parent .Q!. parents request that the preferences in clause ill Q!: clauses ill and m not be 
followed. there ~ ~ rebuttable presumption that the request i§. in the best interests of the child. The authorized 
child-placing agency must notify a court reviewing an adoptive placement under section 259.28 of ~ request made 
Qy the parents under this paragraph. The authorized child-placing ~ has the burden of proving that the request 
~ not in the best interests of the child. 

If the child's genetic parent or parents express a preference for placing the child in an adoptive home of the same 
or a similar religious background to that of the genetic parent or parents, in following the preferences in clause fat 
ill or W ill, the agency shall place the child with a family that also meets the genetic parent's religious preference. 
Only if no family is available that is described in clause W ill or W m may the agency give preference to a family 
described in clause fe1 ill that meets the parent's religious preference. The agency must notify the court that reviews 
the adoptive placement under section 259.28 of ~ religious preference expressed Qy~ parent under this paragraph. 

1£2. In an adoptive placement that commences more than 12 months after the child has been placed outside the 
home. the authorized child placing agency shall place the child according to the best interests standard in 
section 259.256. 

Sec. 7. [259.256] [BEST INTERESTS IN CERTAIN CASES; STANDARD FOR CHILD-PLACING AGENCY AND 
COURT.] 

In ~ adoptive placement that commences more than 12 months after a child has been placed outside the home, 
the authorized child placing ~ making the placement and the court reviewing the adoption placement must be 
governed Qy the best interests of the child as defined in this section. A court transferring legal custody or appointing 
a guardian of a child who has been placed outside the home for ~ than 12 months must be governed .Qy the best 
interests of the child as defined in this section. The "best interests of the child" means all relevant factors to be 
considered and ~ated. These factors must inchiJe, but ~ not limited to: --- - - -

ill the wishes of the genetic parent or parents as to placement; 

ill the relationship between the child and relatives, and the child and any other person who may significantly affect 
the child's best interests: 
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ill the child's adjustment t~ home. schooL and community and the ability.!Q adjust to a proposed home, school, 
and community; 

ill the child's religious. racial. or ethnic background and the ability of the proposed family to be appreciative of 
and knowledgeable about. the child's religious. racial. or ethnic heritage. and to continue raising and educating the 
child in that heritage; 

ill the capacitY and disposition of the proposed family to give the child love, affection. and guidancej 

.ffil the reasonable preference of the child. if the court deems the child of sufficient ~ ~o express .! preferencej and 

m the length of time the child has lived in! stable, satisfactory environment and the desirability of maintaining 
continuity and stability for the child. 

Sec. 8. [259.2565] [NOTICE REGARDING ADOPTION OF CERTAIN CHILDREN.] 

!! ~ child who has been placed outside the home for ~ than 12 months -becomes available for adoption, the 
~ with guardianship of the child must give the notice provided in this section to any adult with whom the child 
is currently residing, any adult with whom the child has resided for one year .Q!.longer in the past, and !!!y adults 
who have maintained a relationship or exercised visitation with the child as identified in the ~~ plan for the 
child. The notice shall state that an adoptive home is sought for the child and that any individual receiving the notice 
may ~ to adopt the child within one month after receiving the notice. 

Sec. 9. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 259.28, subdivision 2, is amended to read:: 

Subd.2. [PROTECTION OF HERITAGE OR BACKGROUND.]!& The policy of the state of Minnesota is to ensure 
that the best interests of children are met by requiring due consideration of the child's race or ethnic heritage in 
adoption placements. Fo.r purposes of intercountry adoptions, due consideration is deemed to have occurred if the 
appropriate authority in ihe child's country of birth has approved the placement of the child. 

ill In reviewing !!!l adoptive placement of ~ child who ~ placed outside the home not longer than 12 months 
before the adoptive placement began, the court shall consider rfefefeRee, 8f\e. the preferences specified in this 
subdivision in determining an appropriate adoption;..:. The court shall give preference, in the absence of good cause 
to the contrary, to tat ill a relative or relatives of the child, or, if that would be detrimental to the child or a relative 
is not available, to tI>t ill a family with the same racial or ethnic heritage as the child, or if that is not feasible, to W 
ill a family of differertt racial or ethnic heritage from the child that is knowledgeable and appreciative of the child's 
racial or ethnic heritage. 

If tRe eftile.'s geRefte rafeRt eF rafeRt:s enf'lieitl, feEj:Hest that Gte f'fefeFeRee e.eseFiBea. in eial::l:Se €a) eF iR aaHses 
€a) MEl ~) Ret se felleweEl, the eel;lFt sllaH ft8R8F ht feEfl;lest eemsisteRt .R:tft tl=te sest ifttefests af tfte ehilfl. 

!! the child's genetic parent Q!: genetic parents reguest that the preferences in clause ill or clauses ill and ill!!Q! 
be followed. there is !. rebuttable presumption that the request is in the best interests of the child. A ~ opposed 
to the request has the burden of proving that the request ~ not in.the best interests of the child. 

If the child's genetic parent or parents express a preference for placing the child in an adoptive home of the same 
or a similar religious background to that of the genetic parent or parents, in following the preferences in clause W­
ill or tI>t ID the court shall place the child with a family that also meets the genetic parent's religious preference. 
Only if no family is available as described in clause \at ill or tI>t ill may the court give preference to a family 
described in clause Will that meets the parent's religious preference. 

1£l In reviewing an adoptive placement of !. child who was placed outside the home for more than 12 months 
before the adoptive placement began, the court shall be governed l!y the best interests standard in section 259.256. 

Sec. 10. Minnesota Statotes 1992, section 259.28, is amended by adding a subdivision to read; 

Subd. ~ [COMPLIANCE WITH INDIAN CHILD WELFARE ACT.] The provisions of this chapter must be 
construed consistently with the Indian Child Welfare Act of 1978, United States Code, title ~ sections 1901. ~ ~ 
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Sec. 11. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 259.455, is amended to read: 

259.455 [FAMlLY RECRUITMENT.] 

Each authorized child placing agency shall make special efforts to recruit an adoptive family from among the 
child's relatives, e)(eert as alflftSf'i2ea ifl seeBeR 259.28, sI;lsaiv4sisR a, and among families of the same racial or ethnic 
heritage in the manner and to the extent provided in section 259.255. Special efforts include contacting and working 
with community organizations and religious organizations, utilizing local media and other local resources, and 
conducting outreach activities. The agency may accept any gifts, grants, offers of services, and other contributions to 
use in making special recruitment efforts. 

Sec. 12. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 260.012, is amended to read: 

260,012 [DUTY TO ENSURE PLACEMENT PREVENTION AND FAMlLY REUNIFlCATION; REASONABLE 
EFFORTS. NOTICE TO PARENTS OF PLACEMENT PREFERENCE.] 

(a) If a child in need of protection or services is under the court's jurisdiction, the court shall ensure that reasonable 
efforts including culturally appropriate services by the social service agency are made to prevent placement or to 
eliminate the need for removal and to reunite the child with the child's family at the earliest possible time, consistent 
with the best interests, safety, and protection of the child. In the case of an Indian child, in proceedings under 
sections 260.172, 260.191, and 260.221 the juvenile court must make findings'and conclusions consistent with the Indian 
Child Welfare Act of 1978, United States Code, title 25, section 1901 et seq., as to the provision of active efforts. If 
a child is under the court's delinquency jurisdiction, it shall be the duty of the court to ensure, that reasonable efforts 
are made to reunite the child with the child's family at the earliest possible time, consistent with the best interesfs of 
the child and the safety of the public. 

(b) "Reasonable efforts" means the exercise of due diligence by the responsible social service agency to use 
appropriate and available services to meet the needs of the child and the" child's family in order to prevent removal 
of the child from the child's family; or upon removal, services to eliminate the need for removal and reunite the 
family. Services may include those listed imder section 256F.07, subdivision 3, and other appropriate services 
available in the community. The social service agency has the burden of demonstrating that it has made reasonable 
efforts. 

(c) ·The juvenile court, in proceedings under sections 260.172, 260.191, and 260.221 shall make findings and 
conclusions as to the provision of reasonable efforts. When determining whether reasonable efforts have been made, 
the court shall consider whether services to the child and family were: 

(1) relevant to the safety and protection of the child; 

(2) adequate to meet the needs of the child and family; 

(3) culturally appropriate; 

(4) available and accessible; 

(5) consistent and timely; and 

(6) realistic under the circumstances. 

(d) This section does not prevent out-of-home placement for treatment of a child with a mental disability when the 
child's diagnostic assessment or individual treatment plan indicates that appropriate and necessary treatment cannot 
be effectively provided outside of a resIdential or inpatient treatment program. 

~ In proceedings under section 260.172, 260.191. 260.192, or 260.221. the court shall notify the parents and the 
child. if the child ~ ~ least 12 years old. of the placement preferences in section 260.181 and that the placement 
preferences will be followed unless the parent or the child, if the child !!' at least 12 years old. requests that they not 
be followed. 



29TH DAY] TffiJRSDAY, APRIL 1, 1993 853 

Sec. 13. Mirmesota Statutes 1992, section 260.181, subdivision 3, is amended to read: 

Subd.3. [PROTECTION OF HERITAGE OR BACKGROUND.[ hl The policy of the state is to ensure that the best 
interests of children are met by requiring due consideration .of the child's race or ethnic heritage in foster care 
placements. 

The eel:l:rt, ill In transferr:ing legal custody of any child who is in the custody of a parent or has been removed from 
the parent's 'Custody for six months or less or appointing a guardian for tfte such!!. child under the laws relating to 
juvenile courts, the court shall place the child, in the following order 'of preference, in the absence of good cause to 

, the contrary, in the legal custody or guardianship of an individual who (at ill is the child's relative, or if that would 
be detrimental to the child or a relative is not available, who W ill is of the same racial or ethnic heritage as the child, 
or if that is not possible, who fet ill is knowledgeable and appreciative of the child's racial or ethnic heritage. The 
court may require the county welfare agency to continue effortsL for six months after the date of the child's removal 
from ~ parent's custody. to find a guardian of the child's racial or ethnic heritage when such a guardian is not 
immediately available. For purposes of this subdivision, "relative" includes members of a child's extended family and 
important friends'with whom the child has resided or had significant contact. 

If the ffiilel's geRetie J=1afeRt af pafeRS e3tplieitl) fEEft:l€St that tfte J=1fetefeRee eleSE'filJeel Hi elat:lSE (a) Sf lR elatlses 
(a) M.e (a) Rat Be lalla,. eel, the €et:lFt shall ftaRaf that fequest eaRsisteRt •• ith the best iRtefests al the eftilel. 

!! the child's parents request that the preferences in clause ill2!: clauses ill and ill not be followed. there ~ ~ 
rebuttable presumption that the request is in the best interests of the child. A ~ opposed to the request has the 
burden of proving that the request ~ not in the best interests of the child. 

If the child's genetic parent or parents express a preference for placing the child in a foster or adoptive home of 
the same or a similar religious background to that of the genetic parent or parents, in following the preferences in 
clause fa1 ill or f9t m, the court shall order placement of the child with an individual who meets the genetic parent's 
religious preference. Only if no individual is available who is described in clause fa1 ill or f9t ill may the court give 
preference to an individual described in clause fet ill who meets the parent's religious preference. 

hl In transferring legal custody or appointing a guardian of ~ child who has been removed from the custody of 
parents for ..!!!Q!!; than six months. the court shall be governed Qy the best interests standard in section 259.256. 

Sec. 14. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 260.191, subdivision la, is amended to read: 

Subd. 1a. IWRfITEN FINDINGS.] Any order for a disposition authorized under this section shall contain written 
findings of fact to support the disposition ordered, and shall also set forth in writing the following information: 

(a) Why the best interests of the child are served by the disposition ordered; 

(b) What alternative dispositions were considered by the court and why such dispositions were not appropriate 
in the instant case; 

(c) m the ease af a eftilel al ffiinafity faeial af miRafit=} etlmfe ftefitage, How the court's disposition complies with 
the requirements of section 260.181, subdivision 3L relating to protection of heritage or background; and 

(d) Whether reasonable efforts consistent with section 260.012 were made to prevent or eliminate the necessity of 
the child's removal and to reunify the family after removal. The court's findings must include a brief description of 
what preventive and reunification efforts were made and why further efforts could not have prevented or eliminated 
the necessity of removal. 

If the court finds that the social services agency's preventive or reunification efforts have not been reasonable but 
that further preventive or reunification efforts could not permit the child to safely remain at 'home, ,the court may 
nevertheless authorize or continue the removal of the child. 

Sec. 15. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 260.191, subdivision 1d, is amended to read: 

Subd. Id. [J2t'.RB~JTAb VISITATION.] If the court orders that the child be placed outside of the child's home or 
present residence, it shall set reasonable rules for supervised or unsupervised parental visitation that contribute to 
the objectives of the court order and the maintenance of the familial relationship. No parent may be denied visitation. 
unless the court finds at the disposition hearing that the visitation would act to prevent the achievement of the order's 
objectives or that it would endanger the child's physical or emotional well-being. The court shall set reasonable rules 
for visitation for any relatives as defined in section 260.181, subdivision ~ if visitation is consistent with the best 
interests of the child. 
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Sec. 16. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 260.191, subdivision Ie, is amended to read: 

Subd. Ie. [CASE PLAN.] For each disposition ordered, the court shall order the appropriate agency to prepare a 
written case plan developed after consultation with any foster parents, and consultation with and participation by the 
child and the child's parent, guardian, or custodian, guardian ad litem, and tribal representative if the tribe has 
intervened. The case plan shall comply with the requirements of section 257.071, where applicable. The case plan 
shall, among other matters, specify the actions to be taken by the child and the child's parent, guardian, foster parent, 
or custodian to comply with the court's disposition order, and the services to be offered and provided by the agency 
to the child and the child's parent, guardian, or custodian. The court shall review the case plan and, upon approving 
it, incorporate the plan into its disposition order. The court may review and modify the terms of the case plan in the 
manner provided in subdivision 2. For each disposition ordered, the written case plan shall specify what reasonable 
efforts shall be provided to the family. The case plan must include a discussion of: 

(1) the availability of appropriate prevention and reunification services for the family to prevent the removal 'of the 
child from the home or to reunify the child with the family after removal; 

(2) any services or resources that were requested by the child or the child's parent, guardian, foster parent, or 
custodian since the date of initial adjudication, and whether those services or resources were provided or the basis 
for denial of the services or resources; 

(3) the need of the child and family for care, treatment, or r~habilitation; 

(4) the need for participation by the parent, guardian, or custodian in the plan of care for the child; 

(5) the visitation rights and obligations of the parent or other relatives. as defined. in section 260.181, subdivision 
~ during any period when the child ~ placed outside ,the home; and 

@a description of any services that could prevent placement or reunify the family if such services were available. 

A party has a right to request a court review of the reasonableness of the case plan upon a showing of a substantial 
change of circumstances. 

Sec. 17. [EFFECTIVE DATE; APPLICATION.] 

Sections 1 to 16 are effective August L. 1993. for changes in out-of-home placement, for adoptive placements, for 
transferring legal custody of a child. and for guardianship appointments occurring on or after the effective date." 

Delete the title and insert: 

itA bill for an act relating to children; foster care and adoption placement; specifying time limits for compliance with 
placement preferences; setting standards for changing out-of-home placement; requiring notice of certain adoptions; 
clarifying certain language; requiring compliance with certain law; providing for rules; amending Minnesota Statutes 
1992, sections 257.071, subdivision 1 and 1a; 257.072, subdivision 7, and by adding a subdivision; 259.255; 259.28, 
subdivision 2, and by adding a subdivision; 259.455; 260.012; 260.181, subdivision 3; and 260.191, subdivisions 1a~ 1d, 
and Ie; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 257; and 259." 

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass. 

The report was adopted. 

Skoghmd from the Committee on Judiciary to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 1018, A bill for an act relating to limited liability companies; requiring biennial registration; appropriating 
money; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 322B. 
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Reported the same back with the following amendments: 

Page 3, delete section 2 

Amend the title as follows: 

Page 1, line 3, delete "appropriating money;" 

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass and be placed on the Consent Calendar. 

The report was adopted. 

Anderson, I., from the Committee on Local Government and Metropolitan Affairs to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 1026, A bjll for an act relating to the city of Garrison; establishing a dedicated fund to meet city expenses 
to pay for construction of a city sewer system; permitting a one percent local sales tax upon approval by the city 
council; providing for a sunset on the tax. 

Reported the same back with the following amendments: 

Page 1" line 18, after "construction" insert "and maintenance" 

Delete page 1, line 21 to page 2, line 3 

Renumber the remaining subdivisions 

Amend the title as follows: 

Page I, line 4, after "construction" insert "and maintenance" 

Page 1, line 6, delete "; providing for a sunset on the tax" 

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Taxes. 

The report was adopted. 

Anderson, 1., from the Committee on Local Government and Metropolitan Affairs to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 1057, A bill fDr an act relating to taxation; authorizing the commissioner of revenue to deduct debts owed 
by one political subdivision to another from aids payable to the debtor; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 
270,66, by adding a subdivision. 

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Taxes. 

The report was adopted. 
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Skoglund from the Committee on Judiciary to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 1058, A bill for an act relating to landlord and tenant; modifying action to recover leased premises; 
providing for actions for destruction of leased residential rental property; allowing expedited proceedings; amending 
Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 504.02, subdivision 1; and 566.03, by adding a subdivision; proposing coding for 
new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 504; and 566. 

Reported the same back with the reconunendation that the bill pass. 

The report was adopted. 

Sarna from the Committee on Commerce and Economic Developme~t to which was referred: 

H. F. No. lOBI, A bill for an act relating to commerce; regulating collection agencies; modifying prohibited practices; 
requiring notification to the commissioner upon certain employee terminations; repealing inconsistent surety bond 
and term and fee rules; regulating credit services organizations; modifying registration and bond requirements; 
modifying enforcement powers; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 332.37; 332.54, subdivision 1, and by 
adding subdivisions; 332.55; and 332.59; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 332; repealing 
Minnesota Rules, parts 2870.1300; and 2870.1600. 

Reported the same back with the following amendments: 

Page 3, delete lines 16 to 27 and insert: 

"@ when ~ debtor has a listed telephone number. enlist the aid of a neighbor or third ~ to request that the 
debtor contact the licensee. except ~ person who resides with the debtor or ~ third ~ with whom the debtor has 
authorized the licensee to place the request.' This clause does not ~ to ~ call back message left at the debtor's 
place of employment which is limited to the licensee's telephone and the collector's name; 

.ll§l when attempting to collect ~ debt, fail to provide the debtor with the full name of the collection agency ~ i!. 
appears on its license; 

ilZl collect ~ money from ~ debtor that i..§. not reported to a creditor or fail to return any amount of overpayment 
from ~ debtor to the debtor Q!. to the state of Minnesota pursuant to the requirements of chapter 345j" 

Page 3, delete lines 31 to 34 and insert: 

"@ when initially contacting a Minnesota debtor £v. mail, to include a disclosure on the contact notice. in ~!vE!=. 
size Q!. font which ~ equal to Q£ larger than the largest other !YEf of ~ size or font used in the text of the notice. 
The disclosure must state: "This collection agency is licensed £v. the Minnesota Department of Commerce."" 

Page 5, delete lines 18 to 24 

Page 5, line 25, delete "9" and insert "8" 

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Economic 
Development, Infrastructure and Regulation Finance. 

The report was adopted. 
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Reding from the Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 1095, A bill for an act relating to insurance; regulating investments, assets and liabilities, and annual 
statements of companies; providing for continuance of coverage upon liquidation; modifying the definition of resident 
for purposes of the Minnesota insurance guaranty association; regulating dividends and other distributions of 
insurance holding company systems; regulating risk retention groups; enacting the NAIC model legislation; amending 
Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 60A.11, subdivision 9; 60A.12, subdivision 3; 60A.13, subdivisions 1 and 6; 6OA.23, 
subdivision 4; 60B.22, subdivision 1; 60C.03, subdivision 7; 60D.20, subdivisions 2 and 4; 60E.01; 60E.02, subdivisions 
9 and 12; 60E.03; 6OE.04, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 4, 7,.8, 11, and by adding a subdivision; 60E.05; 60E.07; 6OE.08; 60E.09; 
60E.I0; 60E.12; and 60E.13; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 60A and 60E; repealing 
Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 60A.07, subdivision 5d; 60A.12, subdivision 10; 60B.24; and 60E.11. 

Reported the same back with the following amendments: 

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert: 

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60A.ll 1 subdivision 91 is amended to read: 

Subd.9. [GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS.] The following considerations apply in the interpretation of this section: 

(a) This section applies to the investments of insurance companies other than life insurattce companies; 

(b) The purpose of this section is to protect and further the interests of policyholders, claimants, creditors and the 
public by providing standards for the development and administration of programs for the investment of the assets 
of domestic companies. These standards and the investment programs developed by companies must take into 
account the safety of company's principal, investment yield and growth, stability in the value of the investment, the 
liquidity necessary to meet the_company's expected business needs, and investment diversification; 

(c) All financial terms relating to insurance companies have the meanings assigned. to them under statutory 
accounting methods. All .financial terms relating to noninsurance companies have' the meanings assigned to them 
under generally accepted'accounting principles; 

(d) Investments must be valued in' accordance with the valuation procedure~:: established by the National 
Association of Insurance Commissioners, unless the commissioner requires or finds another method of valuation 
reasonable under the circumstances. Another method of valuation permitted !!I. the commissioner must be at least 
as conservative as those prescribed in the association's manual. Other invested 'assets must be valued according to 
the procedures promulgated by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners', if not addressed in another 
section, unless the corrunissioner requires or finds another method of valuation reasonable under the circumstances; 

(e) A company may elect to hold an investment which qualifies under more than one subdivision, under the 
subdivision of its choice. Nothing herein prevents a company from electing to hold an investment under a 
subdivision different from the one in which it previously held the investment; and 

(f) An investment which qualifies under any provision of the law governing investments of insurance companies 
when acquired will continue to be a qualified investment for as long as it is held by the insurance company. 

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60A.12, subdivision 3, is amended to read: 

Subd. 3. IV ALUATION OF EVIDENCES OF INDEBTEDNESS.] All bonds or other evidences of debt, having a 
fixed term and rate, held by an insurance company or fraternal benefit society authorized to do business in this state 
may, if amply secured and not in default as to principal and interest, be valued as follows: If purchased at parI at 
the par value; if purchased above or below par, on the basis of the purchase price adjusted so as to bring the value 
to par at maturity and sO,as to yield, in the meantime, the effective rate of interest at which the purchase was made; 
provided, that the purchase price shall in no case be taken at a higher figure than the actual market value at the time 
of purchase; aRa, ~lS. ielea, tftat the eeH'l:ft'lissisRer shall ha. e ftill eliseretisR iR aeter!fl:ir.iflg the metksel sf ealetilatiflg 
• alties -aeeeFeling te the fef'egeiflg rtHe. If the notes or bonds secured by mortgage or trust deed in the nature thereof 
which the federal housing administrator has insured, or made a commitment to insure, are purchased above par, they 
may, if not in default as to principal and interest, be valued. during the first five years after purchase on the basis of 
the purchase price adjusted in equal annual installments to bring the value to par at the end of five years. 
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Sec. 3. [60A.129] [LOSS RESERVE CERTIFICATION AND ANNUAL AUDIT.] 

Subdivision 1. [DEFINITIONS.] The definitioris in this subdivision ~ to this section. 

!ill. "Qualified actuary," except as it relates to subdivision ~ paragraph i£1. for companies authorized to provide life 
insurance coverage under section 60A,Q6, subdivision .1. clause i41. ~ ~ person who i§. either: 

ill! member in good standing of the Casualty Actuarial Society; or 

ill! member in good standing of the American Academy of Actuaries who has been approved as qualified for 
~ casualty loss reserve opinions EY the Casualty Practice Council of the American Academy of Actuaries; or 

ill! person who otherwise has competency in loss reserve evaluation as demonstrated to the satisfaction of the 
insurance regulatory official of the domiciliary state. In such case, at least 90 days prior to the filing of its annual 
statement, the insurer must request approval that the person be deemed. qualified and that request must be approved 
or denied. The request must include the NAIC Biographical form and a list of all loss reserve opinions issued in the 
last three years !!v. this person. 

ill For purposes of subdivision b,paragraph!£1. a qualified actuary for companies authorized to write life insurance 
coverage under section 60A.06. subdivision L. clause M1. shall be: 

ill!. member in good standing of the American Academy of Actuaries; 

ill qualified to ~ statements of actuarial opinion .for life and health insurance company annual statements in 
accordance with the American Academy of Actuaries qualification standards for actuaries ~ these s~tements; 

m familiar with the valuation requirements applicable to life and health insurance companies. 

!£l t.. qualified actuary as definedh, this subdivision is an individual who: 

ill has not been found !!v. the commissioner. or if so found has subsequently been reinstated. as a qualified actuary. 
following appropriate notice and hearing to have: 

ill violated any provision.2t..Q!.!!!y' obligation imposed ~ the state insurance law or other law in the course of 
the actuary's dealings as a qualified actuary; 

!ill. been found 8!!illv. of fraudulent or dishonest pra.ctices; 

!ilil demonstrated incompetency. lack of cooperation. or untrustworthiness to act as ! qualified actuary; or 

fu1 submitted to the commissioner during the past five years. pursuant to this chapter. an actuarial opinion that 
the commissioner rejected because it did not meet the provisions of this chapter including standards set !!v. the 
actuarial standards board; 

m has resigned or been removed as an actuary within the past five years as a result of acts or omissions indicated 
in any adverse report on examination or as a result of failure to adhere to generally acceptable actuarial standards 
of the American Academy of Actuaries; and 

ill has not failed to notify the commissioner of any action taken !!v.!!!Y. commissioner of !!ll. other state similar 
to that under clause 111 

@ "Accountant" and "independent public accountant" ~ ~ independent certified public accountant .Q!. 
accounting firm in good standing with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and in all states in 
which the accountant or firm ~ licensed to practice. For Canadian and British companies. the term means !. 
Canadian-chartered or British-chartered accountant. 
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Subd. b [LOSS RESERVE CERTIFICATION.) 1& Each domestic company engaged in providing the ~ of 
coverage described in section 60A.06. subdivision:1 clause 111.G1.Q1illilil"i§klID,,121ilQhill1llll.illkllIiill 
!ill:!§! have its loss reserves certified Qy ~ qualified actuary. The company must file the certification with the 
commissioner within 30 days of completion of the certification, but not later than Tune .1. The actuary providing the 
certification must not be en. employee of the company. TIUs subdivision does not !EE!Y to township mutual 
companies. or to other domestic insurers having less than $1,000,000 of premiums written in any year and fewer than 
1.000 policyholders. The commissioner may allow an exception to the stand alone certification where i! ~ be 
demonstrated that! company in! group has! pooling or 100 percent reinsurance agreement used in a group which 
substantially affects the solvency and integrity of the reserves of the company, or where it is only the parent company 
of!.8!QYE. which is licensed to do business in Minnesota. If these circumstances exist. the company may file! written 
request with the commissioner for an exception. Companies writing reinsurance alone !!!. not exempt from this 
requirement. The certification must contain the following statement: "The loss reserves and loss expense reserves 
have been examined and found to be calculated in accordance with generally accepted actuarial principles and 
practices and are fairly stated. " 

ill Each foreign company engaged in providing the ~ of coverage described in section 60A.06, subdivision L. 
clause 111 .G1. Q1 illilil" i§k m 121!!Q1 ill11lll. illk III iill reguired !D::: this section .!!? file ~ annual audited 
financial report. whose total net earned premium for Schedule ft._Part lA to Part lH plus Part 1& (Schedule E. Part 
lA to Part IH plus Part.lEt ColuDUl ~ current year premiums earned. from the company's most currently filed annual 
statement) is equal to one-third or more of the company's total net earned premium (Underwriting and Invesbnent 
Exhibit. Part b. Column ~ total line. of the annual statement> must have! reserve certification!!y a qualified actuary 
at least every three years. In the year that the certification is duet the company must file the certification with the 
commissioner within 30 days of completion of the certification, but not later than Tune 1:. The actuary providing the 
certification must not be an employee of the company. Companies writing reinsurance alone are not exempt from 
this requirement. The certification must contain the following statement: "The loss reserves and loss expense reserves 
have been examined and found to be calculated in accordance with generally accepted actuarial principles and 
practices and are fairly stated.'" 

!£l Each company providing life and/or health insurance coverages described in section 6OA.06. subdivision L. 
clause ill Q!. ~ required. Qy this section to file an audited annual financial report; whose premiums and annuity 
considerations (net of reinsurance) from Accident and Health equal one-third Q!. ~ of the company's total 
premiums and annuity considerations (net of reinsurance), as reported in the summary of operations. must have its 
aggregate reserve for accident and health policies and liability for ~ and contract claims for Accident and Health 
certified .Qy a qualified actuary at least once every three years. The actuary providing the certification must not be 
an employee of the company. Companies writing reinsurance alone are not exempt from this requirement. The 
certification must contain the following statement: "The policy and contract claims reserves for Accident and Health 
have been examined and found to be calculated in accordance with generally accepted actuarial principles and 
practices and are fairly stated. It 

Subd. ~ [ANNUAL AUDIT.ll& Every insurance company doing business in this state, including fraternal benefit 
societies. reciprocal exchanges. service plan corporations licensed pursuant to chapter 62C. and legal service plans 
licensed pursuant to chapter 62G. unless exempted £v. the commissioner pursuant to subdivision ~ paragraph ll!lQ!. 
£v. subdivision Z shall have an annual audit of the financial activities of the most recently completed fiscal year 
performed!2v. an independent certified public accountant as prescribed ~ the commissioner. and shall file the report 
of this audit with the commissioner on or before hme 30 for the year ending December 31. 

Extensions of the June 30 filing date may be granted !D::: the commissioner for 30-day periods upon s. showing !D::: 
the insurer and its independent certified public accountant of the reasons for requesting the extension and ~ 
determination Qy the commissioner of good cause for the extension. 

The request for extension must be submitted in writing not less than ten days before the due date in sufficient 
detail !Q. permit the commissioner to make an informed decision with respect to the requested extension. 

ill Insurers filing audited financial reports in another state under the other state's requirements of audited financial 
reports which have been found £v. the commissioner to be substantially similar to these reauirements are exempt from 
this subdivision if !. £QPY. of the audited financial report. the evaluation of accounting procedures. and systems of 
internal control report, which are filed with the other state, are filed with the commissioner in accordance with the 
filing dates specified in paragraphs !ill. and !l1 (Canadian insurers may submit accountants' reports l!!! filed with the 
Canadian Dominion Deparbnent of Insurance); and a.£QPY of any notification of adverse financial condition report 
filed with the other state is filed with the cOrrmUssioner within the time specified in paragraph!hL. 
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i£llil The annual audited financial report shall report in conformity with statutory accounting practices reguired 
or permitted Qy the' commissioner of insurance of the state of domicile. the financial condition of the insurer as of the 
end of the most recent calendar year and the results of its operations, changes in financial position. and changes in 
capital and surplus for the year ended. The annual audited financial report shall include! report of an independent 
certified public accountant; ! balance sheet reporting admitted assets, liabilities, capitaL and surplus; a statement of 
gain or loss from operations; a statement of cash flows: a statement of changes in capital and surplus; any notes to 
financial statements: and any additional information that the commissioner may from time to time require to be 
disclosed. 

!.ill The notes required under item.ti1. shall be those required!!y generally accepted accounting principles and shall 
include reconciliation of differences. if any. between the audited statutory financial statements and the annual 
statement filed under section 60A.13. subdivision.1. with a written description of the nature of these differences: and 
a narrative explanation of all significant intercompany transactions and balances . 

.ill!l The financial statements included in the audited financial report shall be prepared in ! form. and using 
language and groupings substantially the same as the relevant sections of the annual statement of the insurer filed 
with the commissioner. The financial statement shall be comparative. presenting the amounts as of December 31 of 
the current year and the amounts as of the immediately preceding December 31. In the first year in which!!!l insurer 
is required to file an audited financial ~ the comparative data may be omitted. The amounts may be rounded 
to the nearest $1.000, and all insignificant amounts may be combined. 

@ Each insurer required!2v. this section to file an annual audited financial report must notify the commissioner 
in writing of the ~ and address of the certified public accountant or accounting firm retained to conduct the 
annual audit within 60 days after becoming subject to the anrtual audit requirement. The insurer shall obtain from 
the acc01.mtant! letter which states that the accOlmtant is aware"of the provisions that relate to accounting and 
financial matters in the ·insurance·laws and the rules of the insurance regulatory authority of the state of domicile. 
The letter shall affirm that the opinions on the finaricial statements will be expressed in terms of their conformity to 
the statutory accounting practices prescribed or other permitted Qv. that insurance regulatory authority. unless 
exceptions to these practices are appropriate~ The letter shall ~ all exceptions believed to be appropriate. A.£Q2l 
of this letter shall be filed with the commissioner. 

irllf. an accountant who was not the accoWltant for the immediately preceding filed audited financial report !§. 
engaged to audit the insurer's financial statements. the insurer shall notify the commissioner of this event within 30 
days of the date the accountant is engaged. The insurer shall also furnish the commissioner with ! separate letter 
stating whether in the 24 months-preceding this engagement there were!!!y' disagreements with the former accountant 
on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, 
which, if not resolved to the satisfaction of the former accountant, would have caused that person to make reference 
to the subject matter of the disagreement in connection with the opinion. The insurer shall also in writing request 
the former accountant to fumish.!,letter addressed to the insurer stating whether the accountant agrees with the 
statements contained in the insurer's letter and,.if not. stating the ~ for any disagreement. The insurer shall 
furnish this responsive letter from the former accountant to the commissioner together with its ~ 

.ill. The commissioner shall not recognize ~ person or finn as an independent certified public accountant that is 
not in good standing with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and in all states in which the 
accountant is licensed to practice. or for !. Canadian or British company. that is not !. chartered. accountant. Except 
as otherwise provided . .! certified public accountant shall be recognized as independent ~ long M the person 
conforms to the standards of the person's profession. The commissioner. after notice and hearing under chapter.Ht. 
may find that the accountant is not independent for purposes of expressing an opinion on the financial statements 
in the annual audited financial report. The commissioner may require the insurer !2 replace the accountant with 
another whose relationship with the insurer is independent. " 

!gl Financial statements furnished under paragraph !i!1. shall be examined ~ an independent certified public 
accountant. The examination of the insurer's financial statements shall be conducted in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards and consideration should be given to other procedures illustrated in the Financial 
Condition Examiners Handbook. in the Examiners Handbook. issued Qy the National Association of Insurance 
Commissioners as the independent certified public accountant considers necessary. 
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ill The insurer reguired to furnish the annual audited financial report shall require the independent certified public 
accountant to immediately notify in writing ~ executive officer and all directors of the insurer of the final 
determination !!y that independent certified public accountant that the insurer has materially misstated its financial 
condition as reported to the commissioner as of the balance sheet date currently under examination or that the insurer 
does not meet the minimum capital ,and surplus requirement of section 60A.07 as of that date. An executive officer 
or director of an insurer required to file!!!! annual audited financial report who received a notification of adverse 
financial condition from the accountant shall make .!! written report to the commissioner of the existence of the 
materially misstated financial condition or the failure to meet the minimum capital and surplus requirements of the 
commissioner within three business days of the notification. If the accountant becomes aware of facts which might 
have affected this report after the date of the audited financial report filed under this section, the accountant shall take 
the action prescribed Qy Professional Standards issued..!2y the American·Institute of Certified Public Accountants . 

.ill. In addition to the annual audited financial report each insurer shall furnish the commissioner with a report of 
the evaluation performed £v. the accountant. in connection with the examination, of the accounting procedures of the 
insurer and its system of internal control. A report of the evaluation Qy the accountant of the accounting procedures 
of the insurer and its system of internal control, including any remedial action taken Q!:. proposed, shall be filed 
annually .Qy the insurer with the division within 60 days after the filing of the annual audited financial report. This 
report on internal control shall be in the form prescribed Qy generally accepted auditing standards. 

ill Workpapers are the records kept Qy the independent certified public accountant of the procedures followed, tests 
performed, information obtained, and conclusions reached pertinent to the examination of the financial statements 
of ~ insurer. Workpapers may include work programs, analyses, memoranda, letters of confirmation and 
representation, management letters, abstracts of company documents, and schedules or commentaries prepared or 
obtained .Qy the independent certified public accmUltant in the course of the examination of the financial statements 
of an insurer and that support the accountant's opinion. Every insurer required to file an audited financial report 
shall require the accountant through ,the insurer, to make available for review Qy the examiners the workpapers 
prepared in the conduct of the examination. The insurer shall require that the accountant retain the audit workpapers 
for ~ period of not less than five years after the period reported upon. In the conduct of the periodic review .£v. the 
examiners, i!. shall be agreed that photocopies of pertinent audit workpapers may be made and retained .Qv. the 
department of commerce. These copies shall be part of the commissioner' s workpaR~.rs. 

ill"With the commissioner's approvaL an insurer may comply with this section Qy filing the requisite reports that 
have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles if the notes to the financial statements 
include .e. reconciliation of differences between net income and capital and ~ on the annual statement filed 
pursuant to section 60A.13, subdivision L. and comparable totals on the audited financial statements, and ~ written 
description of the nature of these differences. 

ffiill In the case of Canadian and British insurers, the annual audited financial report means the aIUlual statement 
of total business on the form filed h these companies with their domiciliary supervision authority and duly audited 
!2v. an independent chartered accountant. 

!ill. For these insurers. the letter required in paragraph 1Q1. shall state that the accountant !§. ~ of the 
requirements relating to the annual audited statement filed with the commissioner under paragraph .@1 and shall 
affirm that the opinion expressed is in conformity with those requirements. 

l!!!l The audit report of the independent certified public accountant that perfonns the audit of an insurer's annual 
statement as required under paragraph ll!1. shall contain ~ statement as to whether anything. in cOIUlection with the 
audit came to the accountant's attention that caused the accountant to believe that the insurer failed to adopt and 
consistently ~ the valuation procedures as required .Q.y sections 60A.122 and 60A.123. 

Subd. ~ IEXAMINATIONS.].@l The commissioner or a designated representative shall determine the nature. 
scope, and frequency of examinations under this section conducted £v. examiners under section 6OA.031. These 
examinations may cover all aspects of the insurer's assets. condition, affairs. and operations and may include and be 
supplemented Qv. audit procedures performed !2v. independent certified public accountants. Scheduling of 
examinations will take into account all relevant matters with ~ to the insurer's condition. including results of 
the National Association of Insurance Commissioner. Insurance Regulatory Information Systems, changes in 
management results of market conduct examinations. and audited financial reports. The ~ of examinations 
performed !2v. examiners under this section shall be compliance examinations. targeted examinations, and 
comprehensive examinations. 
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ill Compliance examinations will consist of ~ review of the accountant's worlpapers defined under this section 
and!!. general review of the insurer's corporate affairs and insurance operations to determine compliance with the 
Minnesota insurance laws and the rules of the deparbnent of commerce. The examiners may perform alternative or 
additional examination procedures to supplement those performed.Qy the accountant when the examiners determine 
that the procedures are necessary to verify the financial condition of the insurer. 

hl Targeted examinations may ~ limited areas of the insurer's operations ~ the commissioner may deem 
appropriate. 

@ Comprehensive examinations will be performed when the report of the accountant ~ provided for in 
subdivision ~ paragraph ig1 the notification required !!y subdivision ~ paragraph .ili1. the results of compliance Q!. 
targeted examinations, Q!. other circumstances indicate in the judgment of the commissioner Q!. .!'!. designated 
representative that a complete examination of the condition and affairs of the insurer is necessary. 

!rl Upon completion of each targeted, compliance, or comprehensive examination. the examiner appointed Qy the 
commissioner shall make a full and true report on the results of the examination. Each report shall include .!'!. general 
description of the audit procedures performed Qy the examiners and the procedures of the accountant that the 
examiners may have utilized to supplement their examination procedures and the procedures that were perfonned 
Qy the registered independent certified public accountant if included as a supplement to the examination. 

Subd. ~ [CONSOLIDATED FILING.] ~ The conunissioner may allow an exception to the stand alone loss reserve 
certification required Qv. subdivision b. and audited financial statements required Qy subdivision ~ paragraph .lli1. 
where !! can be demonstrated that a company in a group has a pooling or 100 percent reinsurance agreement used 
in ~.&:Q!!P. which substantially affects the solvency and integrity of the reserves of the company Q!. where !! ~ only 
the parent company Of a group which is licensed to do business in Minnesota. If these circumstances exist, then the 
company may file! written application to file loss ~ certification and ~ report of ~ annual audit. This 
application shall be for a specified period. 

ill A consolidated annual audit filing shall include an organizational chart of the companies together with ! 
columnar consolidated or combining worksheet. Amounts shown on the audited consolidated or combined financial 
statement shall be shown on the worksheet. Amounts for each insurer shall be stated separately. Noninsurance 
operations may be shown on the worksheet on a combined or individual basis. Explanations of consolidating Q!. 
eliminating entries shall be shown on the worksheet. A reconciliation of ~ differences between the amounts shown 
in the individual insurer colunms of the worksheet and comparable amounts shown on the annual statement of the 
insurers shall be included on the worksheet. 

Subd. &:. [PENALTIES.] No annual statement, report, or document related to the business of insurance shall be filed 
with the commissioner Q!. issued to the public if!! i§. signed Qv. anyone who is represented in the instrument as !!!. 
"actuary" or "accountant." unless the person is qualified as defined Qy this section. A violation of this subdivision is 
a violation of section 72A.19 and punishable in accordance with section 72A.2S. 

Subd. Z:.. IEXEMPTIONS.]..@l Upon written application of any company, the commissioner may grant an exemption 
from compliance with the provisions of this section. In order to receive an exemption. a company must demonstrate 
to the satisfaction of the commissioner that compliance would constitute a financial hardship upon the company. An 
exemption may be granted at any time and from time to time for specified periods. Within ten days from the denial 
of an insurer's written request for an exemption, the insurer may request in writing a hearing on its application for 
an exemption. This hearing shall be held in accordance with chapter 14. Upon written application of any insurer, 
the commissioner may permit an insurer to file annual audited financial reports on some basis other than a calendar 
year basis for ~ specified period. No exemption shall be granted until the insurer presents an alternative method 
satisfying the purposes of this section. Within ten days from ~ denial of ! written request for an exemption, the 
insurer may request in writing a hearing on its application. The hearing shall be held in accordance with chapter 14. 

ill This section applies to all insurers, unless otherwise indicated, required to file an annual audit Qy subdivision 
~ paragraph hl except insurers having less than $1.000.000 of direct written premiums in any year and fewer than 
1,000 policyholders in this state at the end of ~ year, are exempt from this section for that year. 
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Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 1992, -section 60A.13, subdivision I, is amended to read: 

Subdivision 1. [ANNUAL STATEMENTS REQUIRED.] Every insurance company, induding fraternal benefit 
societies, and reciprocal exchanges, doing business in this state, shall transmit to the commissioner, annually, on or 
before March 1, the appropriate verified National Association of Insurance Commissioners' annual statement blank, 
prepared in accordance with the association's instructions handbook and following those accounting procedures and 
practices prescribed by the association's accoWlting practices and procedures manual, W1less the commissioner 
requires or finds another method of valuation reasonable under the circumstances. Another method of valuation 
permitted 12x. the commissioner must be at least as conservative as those prescribed in the association's manuaL In 
addition, the commissioner may require the filing of any other information determined to be reasonably necessary 
for the continual enforcement of these laws. The statement may be limited to the it;lsurer's business and condition 
in the United States unless the commissioner finds that the business conducted outside the United States may 
detrimentally affect th~ interests of policyholders in this state. The statements shall also contain a verified schedule 
showing all details required by law for assessment and taxation. The statement or schedules shall be in the form and 
shall contain all matters the commissioner may prescribe, and it may be varied as to different types of insurers so as 
to elicit a true exhibit of the condition of each insurer. 

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60A.13, subdivision 6, is amended to read: 

Subd. 6. [COMPANY OR AGENT CANNOT CONTINUE BUSINESS UNLESS STATEMENT IS FILED.] No 
company shall transact any new business in this state after May thirty-first in any year unless it shall have previously 
transmitted its annual statement to the commissioner and filed a copy of its statement with the National Association 
of Insurance Commissioners. The commissioner may by order annually require that each insurer pay the required 
fee to the National Association of Insurance Commissioners for the filing of annual s'4t!,!ments, but the fee shall not 
be more than 50 percent greater than the fee set by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners SR J8:f.l:la~ 
±;--l984. Failure to file the annual statement with the commissioner or the National Association of Insurance 
Commissioner5is ~ ViOiation of section 72A.06Gb~ision 1. The feeshall be based on the relative premium 
volume of each insurer. The commissioner's order shall not be subject to chapter 14. 

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60A.23, subdivision 4, is amended to read: 

Subd.4. IDNIDENDS; LIMITATIONS.] }J8 a8MeSae steelE eemriH.} sAall aeelMe -a Eli.iaeRa eitheF H. easR 9F 
steek, eJEeeflt ff'8Hl its aetl:ial Ret SliFf:JlI:lS eeRll' I:ltea as FeEfHiFea 1:1y law ifl Hs ftffiliial sfate:meflt; Ref sAaIl any Sl:leA 
eBffiJ38P.y ,lhlekAas eeasee te ee Re •• sl:lsi:ness aLiee aIL'} fleffieH af its asse*", eJ£eert SWflh.l,s, l::I::I.til it sAadl Rave 
peFfBfffioea Bf eaneelea its pslie} e1:1ligatisRS. It fRa~ aeelaFe aRa J3a~, iHd'll:la-ll}, semiaftflliallj eF €fliaFterl~ fEeR. its 
SHfflhlS, easR Eli. ieefles ef RSt :mSfe tP.a:R teR pefeeRt sf its ea}3ital steelE aRa s~II:lS iR aft} "} eaf aRe, if tke ei, iaeRas 
iR BR-Y eRe yeaf afe less tftBR teFt fleFeeRt~ tP.e ei:ffereRee H"la} Be H\aae I:lI3 iR aft} s1:t:1:1seEtl:leflt} eaF eF} eaFS e-SfFl st::li'fIh:1:s 
aeel:l:ml:llatieRs. It ft1:a~ pay sl:leA ei', ieeRa as the aifeetefs eeeM flFliaeRt alit af Bfl) Sl:lf'flll:lS femainiR!5 after eAargb.g, 
ir. aeelitieR te all liaeilities eJEeept ti:lteaFflea pFelflfliffis, iH. a:meliRf eEtlial ts tI:.e "kele affieliflt ef J3felflfl:l~ 9R 
lifleJf}3iFea Fish£; at.a aea1:lettRg Roeftl tke assets adl seel:lf'ittes a:Ra aeeaL:lr.ts reeei • aele 9R '\. meA Re paft 9f t:fte flrir.eifJad 
eF iRteFest has eeeR paie withlr. the pfeeeaiRg yeaf, Sf :fef ,,!:tiell fefeelasl:lfe Bf sl:lit Aas BeeR eefFlffleReea, Sf I:lpSFl 
,.mell jl:lElgMeFlt eetaiRea Ras Fe:maiRes R.epe t:ftBfl R.e reafS L:l:Rsatisfi-eEl 8flS 9Fl \\-flieR intefest flaS Ret \;leeR flaia, 
OF.a als. aea .. elffig all lie"s a .. e aRe! ""paie! ." .... J .f its pr.per!}. Stock companies shall follow the dividend 
limitation and reporting requirements set forth in chapter 60D. 

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60B.22, subdivision 1, is amended to read: 

Subdivision 1. [LENGTH OF CONTINUED COVERAGE.] All insurance policies or similar contracts of coverage 
issued by the insurer shall continue in force: 

(a) For a period of H; 30 days from the date of entry of the liquidation order; 

(b) Until the normal expiration of the policy or contract coverage; 

(c) Until the insured has replaced the coverage with equivalent coverage in another insurer; or 

(d) Until the liquidator has effected a transfer of the policy or contract obligation pursuant to section 60B.25, clause 
(8), whichever time is less. 
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Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60C.03, subdivision 7, is amended to read: 

Subd. 7. [RESIDENT.] "Resident" means: 

(a) An individual person who fixes habitation in this state without any intention of removing therefrom and who, 
whenever absent therefrom, intends to return; Q!. 

(b) Any other person whose principal place of business is located in this state at the time of the insured event:-er 

(e) A peFs8R .. hese pfifteipal plaee ef 1:!1:lsiRess is ii. lVisesPLsH=t, Ie .. a, ~Jeftt. Dahata, Sf eeLcttft DalEata, Bl:l:t n he 
ffiair.rl:air.s SttBstaP.fiall9l:lSHLeSS H.l\HftfteS9ffi. 

Sec. 9. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60D.20, subdivision 2, is amended to read: 

Subd. 2. [DIVIDENDS AND OTHER DISTRIBUTIONS.] (a) Subject to the limitations and requirements of this 
subdivision, the board of directors of any domestic insurer within !!l insurance holding company system may 
authorize and cause the insurer to declare and l2EY. any dividend or distribution to its shareholders as the directors 
deem prudent from the earned surplus of the insurer. An insurer's earned-surplus, also known as unassigned funds, 
shall be determined in accordance with the accounting procedures and practices governing preparation of its annual 
statement. minus 25 percent of earned surplus attributable to unrealized capital gains. Dividends which are paid from 
sources other than an insurer's earned surplus or are extraordinary dividends or distributions may be paid only as 
provided in paragraphs l!!l. ~ and ifh 

ill The insurer shall notify the commissioner within five business days following declaration of a dividend declared 
pursuant to paragraph.@l and at least ~ days prior to its payment. The commissioner shall promptly consider the 
notification filed pursuant to this paragraph, taking into consideration the factors described in subdivision 4. 

ill The conurussioner shall review at least annually the dividends paid l2v. an insurer pursuant to paragraph ill for 
the purpose of determining if the dividends are reasonable based upon ill the adequacy of the level of surplus as 
regards policyholders remaining after the dividend payments, and ill the quality of the insurer's earnings and extent 
to which the reported earnings include extraordinary items, such as surplus relief reinsurance transactions and reserve 
destrengthening. 

@No domestic insurer shall pay -any extraordinary dividend or make any other extraordinary distribution to its 
shareholders Wltil: (1) 30 days after the commissioner has received notice of the declaration of it and has not within 
the period disapproved the payment; or (2) the commissioner has approved the payment within the 3D-day period. 

te1 ~ For purposes of this section, an extraordinary dividend or distribution includes any dividend or distribution 
of cash or other property~ whose fair market value together with that of other dividends or distributions made within 
the preceding 12 months exceeds the greater of (1) ten percent of the insurer's surplus as regards policyholders as of 
the 31st day of December next preceding; or (2) the net gain from operations of the insurer, if the insurer is a life 
insurer~ or the net income, if the insurer is not a life insurer~ not including realized capital gains, for the 12-month 
period ending the 31st day of December next preceding, but does not include pro rata distributions of any class of 
the insurer's own securities. IF. eie~eF~ Lg ;; hetfieF a eli flaeFl S eF eliSfflSliaeR is eRa-selaH Lary, aFt mSliFeF st:fteF fuaFt 
a liie iMttrer RLa) eaH) feF\. ara Fiet iReen.e flSR' the ~Fe vtSttS R, e ealeRaaF y eat's h~ flas Ret alFeaa) BeeR ~aia eat 
as at • iaeRas. 'Tffis effi"~ feR' ani is eSffiJ9 !:Itea By talEir.g fr.e Ret H:eeMe fleM ~fle seeSFttS aI La fuiFS ~FeeeaH:g ealeRaaF 
) eaFS, ftS~ iRel!:laiRg Fealiiiea e3f'i~al gaifts, less ai. iaeRas ~aia iR fue seeeRa aI.a ifRffteaiate ~Feeesiftg ealeFisaF y eat's. 

fe1 ill. Notwithstanding any other prOvision of law, an insurer may declare an extraordinary dividend or distribution 
that is conditional upon the commissioner's approval .. and the declaration shall confer no rights upon shareholders 
Wltil: (1) the commissioner has approved the payment of such a dividend or distribution; or (2) the commissioner 
has not disapproved the payment within the 3D-day period referred to above. 

Sec. 10. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60D.20, subdivision 4, is amended to read: 

Subd.4. [ADEQUACY OF SURPLUS.] For purposes of this chapter, in determining whether an insurer's surplus 
as regards policyholders is reasonable in relation to the insurer's outstanding liabilities and adequate to its financial 
needs, the follOwing factors~ among others, must be considered: 
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(1) the size of the insurer as measured by its assets, capital and surplus, reserves, premium writings, insurance in 
force and other appropriate criteria; 

(2) the extent to which the insurer's business is diversified among the several lines of insurance; 

(3) the number and size of risks insured in each line of business; 

(4) the extent of the geographical dispersion of the insurer's insured risks; 

(5) the nature and extent of the insurer's reinsurance program; 

(6) the quality, diversification and liquidity of the insurer's investment portfolio; 

(7) the recent past and projected future trend in the size of the insurer's investment portfolio; 

(8) the surplus as regards policyholders maintained by other comparable insurers; 

(9) the adequacy of the insurer's reserves; aRE! 

(10) the quality and liquidity of investments in affiliates. The commissioner may treat any such investment as a 
disallowed asset for purposes of determining the adequacy of surplus as regards policyholders whenever in the 
commissioner's judgment the investment so warrants", and 

il.1l the ~ of the insurer's earnings and the extent to which the reported earnings include extraordinary items. 
such as surplus relief reinsurance transactions and reserve destrengthening. 

Sec. 11. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.01, is amended to read: 

60E.01 [PURPOSE.] 

The purpose of sections 6DE.01 to 60E.14 is to regulate the formation and operation of risk retention groups and 
purchasing groups in this state formed Wlder the federal Liability Risk Retention Act 6f 1986" to the extent permitted 
me that law. 

Sec. 12. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.02, subdivision 9, is amended to read: 

Subd.9. [PLAN OF OPERATION OR FEASIBILITY STUDY.] "Plan of operation" or "feasibility study" means an 
analysis that presents the expected activities and results of a risk retention group including, at a minimum: 

(1) information sufficient to verify that its members are engaged in business or activities similar or related with 
respect to the liability to which the members are exposed Qy virtue of ill:!Y related, similar or common business. trade, 
product. services. premises. or operationsj 

ill for each state in which II intends to operate, the coverages, deductibles, coverage limits, rates, and rating 
classification systems for each line of insurance the group intends to offer; 

. f2j ill historical and expected loss experience of the _ proposed members and national experience of similar 
exposures to the extent that this experience is reasonably availab~e; 

~ ill pro forma financial statements and projections; 

f41@appropriate opinions by a qualified, independent casualty actuary, including a determination of minimum 
premium or participation levels required to commence operations and to prevent a hazardous financial condition; 

fe1.llilidentification of management, Wlderwriting and claims procedures, marketing methods, managerial oversight 
methods, investment policies" and reinsurance agreements; aftEl 

te1 ill identification of each state in which the risk retention group has obtained, or sought to obtain,! charter and 
license. and a description of its status in each state; and 

.@lothermattersprescribed by the commissioner for liability insurance companies authorized by the insurance laws 
of the state. 
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Sec. 13. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60£.02, subdivision 12, is amended to read: 

Subd. 12. [RISK RETENTION GROUP.] "Risk retention group" means a corporation or other limited liability 
association fSFffiea ~lfu:ieF 1:ke la,. 5 af a state, EeFffiliaa, SF the CaYffl:all Islafl:as: 

(1) whose primary activity consists of assuming and spreading all, or a portion, of the liability exposure of its group 
members; 

(2) which is organized for the primary purpose of conducting the activity described under clause (1); 

(3) which: 

(a) is chartered and lic,ensed as a liability insurance company and authorized to engage in the business of insurance 
Wlder the laws of a state; or 

(b) before January I, 1985, was chartered or licensed and authorized to engage in the business of insurance under 
the laws of Bermuda or the Cayman Islands and, before that date, had certified to the insurance commissioner of at 
least one state that it satisfied the capitalization requirements of the state, except that the group shall be considered 
to be a risk retention group only if it has been engaged in business continuously since that date and only for the 
purpose of continuing to provide insurance to cover product liability or completed operations liability, as such terms 
were defined in the Product Liability Risk Retention Act of 1981 before the date of the enactment of the Risk Retention 
Act of 1986; 

(4) which does not exclude a person from membership in the group solely to provide for members of the group 
a competitive advantage over that person; 

(5) which: 

(a) has as its members only persons who have an ownership interest in the group and which has as its owners only 
persons who are members who are provided insurance by the risk retention group; or ' 

(b) has as its sele meHM:1er 8::Ita sole owner an organization which is e'\. flea By "efs9Rs '\ IRe are IH'e .>iaea iFlfi1:1:fanee 
l:Iy tRe FisIt FetefleSH gpeHJ3 has as its members only persons who comprise the membership of the risk retention group 
and which has ~ its ~ only persons who comprise the membership of the risk retention group and who ~ 
provided insurance .Qy that group; 

(6) whose members are engaged in businesses or activities similar or related with respect to the liability of which 
the members are exposed by virtue of any related, similar, or common busin.ess trade, product, services~ premi'ses, 
or operations; 

(7) whose activities do not include the provision of insurance other than: 

(a) liability insurance for assuming and spreading all or a portion of the liability of its group members; and 

(b) reinsurance with respect to the liability of any other risk retention group, or any members of the other group, 
which is engaged in businesses or activities so that the group or member meets the requirement described in clause 
(6) from membership in the risk retention group which provides the reinsurance; and 

(8) the name of which includes the phrase "risk retention group." 

Sec. 14. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.03, is amended to read: 

60E.03 [RISK RETENTION GROUPS CHARTERED IN THIS STATE.] 

A risk retention group seehing te Be efiarterea ir. fNS state ffil;lSt shall be chartered and licensed as-a to write only 
liability insurance eeR'tf3ffit) atttF.efi2eEi By the iftsl;H'8:Ree la\{s ef fNS state pursuant to sections 60E.01 to 60E.14 and, 
except as provided elsewhere in sections 60E.01 to 60E.14, must comply with all of the laws, rules, and requirements 
applicable to insurers chartered and licensed in this state and with section 60E.04 to the extent those requirements 
are not a limitation on laws, rules, or requirements of this state. Befere it may effel iHS\:l:far.ee iF. a state, a lisle 
feteflBeR grel;l}3 sRall alse st1Bffiit fel &f'flleval te tfte eeffift1:issieflel sf eeftlft'LeFee a "lafl: ef e"elaaefl SF a feasiBitit:y 
sffiel, afla Fe. isiefls ef the ,,18ft Sf sffiEiy if the gfel;l}3 iftteflels te eifel aaaieeflal lir:es ef liaeibi:t:) iflSl±fBFl:ee. 
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Notwithstanding any other provision to the contrary, all risk retention groups chartered in this state shall file with 
the department and the National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NArC), an annual statement in .! form 
prescribed!!y the NAIC, and in diskette form if required Qy the commissioner, and completed in accordance with its 
instructions and the NArc accounting practices and procedures manual. 

Before !! may offer insurance in ! state, each risk retention &!:Q!!£ shall also submit for approval to the 
commissioner of commerce a plan of operation or feasibility study. The risk retention i!2!:!£ shall submit !!!l 
appropriate revision in the event of any subsequent material change in any item of the plan of operation or feasibility 
study, within ten days of !!. change, The group shall not offer any additional kinds of liability insurance, in this state 
.Q!. in any other state. until! revision of the plan 2!. study is approved.£x. the commissioner. 

At the time of filing its application for charter, the risk retention group shall provide to the commissioner in 
summary form the following information: the identity of the initial members of the ~ the identity of those 
individuals who organized the group or who will provide administrative services or otherwise influence or control 
the activities of the ~ the amount and nature of initial capitalization, the coverages to be afforded. and the states 
in which the group intends to operate. Upon receipt of this information, the commissioner shall forward the 
information to the National Association of Insurance Commissioners. . 

Providing notification to the NAIC is in addition to and shall not be sufficient to satisfy the requirements of section 
60E.04 2!: any other sections of this chapter. 

Sec. 15. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.04, subdivision 1, is amended to read: 

Subdivision L [REGULATION,] Risk retention groups chartered and licensed in states other than this st~te and 
seeking to do business as a risk retention group in this state must observe and abide by the laws of this state as set 
forth in subdivisions 2 to 12. 

Sec. 16, Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 6OE.04, subdivision 2, is amended to read: 

Subd.2. [NOTICE OF OPERATIONS AND DESIGNATION OF COMMISSIONER AS AGENT.] ful Before offering 
insurance in this state, a risk retention group shall submit to the commissioner on !!. form prescribed !!y the NAIC: 

(1) a statement identifying the state or states in which the risk retention group'"is chartered and licensed as a 
liability insurance company, date of chartering, its principal place of business, and other information including 
information on its membership, the commissioner may require to verify that the risk retention group is qualified under 
section 60E.02, subdivision 12; 

(2) a copy of its plan of operations or a feasibility study and revisions of the plan or study submitted to its the state 
ai elemieHe in which the risk retention,S!Q!!E. is chartered and licensed; provided, however, that the provision relating 
to the submission of a plan of operation or a feasibility study shall not a,pply with ~pect to a line or classification 
of liability insurance that was defined in the Product Liability Risk Retention Act of 1981 before October 27, 1986, and 
was offered before that date by a risk retention group that had been chartered and operating for not less than three 
years before that date;-aREI~ 

@7 ill The risk retention &!:Q!:!P. shall submit!.£QPY of any revision to its plan of operation or feasibility study 
required.£x. section 60E.03 at the ~ time that the revision is submitted to the commissioner of its chartering state. 

f£l The risk retention &!:Q!Y? shall submit a statement of registrationL for which !!. filing fee shall be determined!!y 
the commissioner, that designates the commissioner as its agent for the purpose of receiving service. of legal 
documents or process. 

Sec. 17. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 6OE.04, subdivision 3, is amended to read: 

Subd, 3. [FINANCIAL CONDITION,] A risk retention group doing business in this state shall submit to the 
commissioner: 

(1) a copy of the group's financial statement submitted to its the state ef ae"';eile inwhich the risk retention &!:Q!Y? 
is chartered and licensed, which shall be certified by an independent public accountant and contain a statement of 
opinion on loss and loss adjustment expense reserves made by a member of the American Academy of Actuaries or 
a qualified loss reserve specialist, under criteria established by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners; 
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(2) a copy of each examination of the risk retention group as certified by the corrunissioner or public official 
conducting th~ examination; 

(3) upon request ~ the commissioner. a copy of aft any information or document pertaining to any outside audit 
performed with respect to the risk r:etention group; and 

(4) the information required to verify its continuing qualification as a risk retention group under section 60E.02, 
subdivision 12. 

Sec. 18. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.04, subdivision 4, is amended to read: 

Subd.4. [TAXATION.] (a) {\H pFeRHl;Iftl5 pais fel eef'et'ages v.<ilkin tRig siale ie fisk f'eteftti8f1; gf8ttfJS Me saejeet 
is lana-tieR at tRe saffle l'ale aRB stlbjeet te the sam:e ifttefest, tiftes, aft8: fI€flaUies fer ftBftfJ8)'ift€ftt as that apJ3liealde 
is etflel ms1:H'€fS. Each risk retention &!.Q!!£ ~ liable for the payment of premium taxes and taxes on premiums of 
direct business for risks resident or located within this state, and shall report to the corrunissioner the net premiums 
written for risks resident or located within this state. The risk retention g!Q!!£ shall be subject to taxation. and any 
applicable taxation-related fines and penalties. on the same basis as ~ foreign admitted insurer. 

(b) Ts the eHteRt ageRts Sf Bfskefs afe 1:1ali!i!ea, the} shall fetisft BRei pay t¥.e ta)tes tef the pfemftiffiS faF Belis "ftieh 
the} ha. e plaeeei witf'. eF eR Behalf sf a Fiel~ feteAtisR gt'eltF' RSt elliutepea iR tftis state. +ke ageRts Sf Brshers afe 
sl:tl3jeet is the pfe tiSiSRS sf seeaSfl5 6t+f .... 19§ is ~QA.2Q9. To the extent licensed agents or brokers are utilized pursuant 
to section 60E.12, they shall report to the commissioner the premiums for direct business for risks resident or located 
within this state which the licensees have placed. with.Q!..Q!l behalf of ~ risk retention group not chartered in this state. 

(c) 'I'e the eliteR! Bg'eRts SF Bf'sl~eFS af'e Ret 1:1tili2ea Sf fail te pay the taH, eaeh Fish peteRtisR gFsHf' shall pay the $£ 
feF Pislffi iR51:1pea withH. the state. 13aefi Ash reteRtieR gFe1:1fl shall Fepeft all prefftittmS paiei te it fap :fishs msttfea 
w:itfl:ifl the state aHa shall Be sHBjeet is the saMe iR-tefest, fiRes, aRa peRalaes fer RSRpa}'ffteRt as that applieaele te 
feFeigtl aaR'litt:ea ir.sttfers. To the extent that insurance agents or brokers are utilized pursuant to section 60E.12. each 
agent .Q!. broker shall keep! complete and separate record of all policies procured from each risk retention ~ 
which shall be open to examination.£y the commissioner; as provided in section 60A.031. These records shall. for each 
J22li£Y and each kind of insurance provided. include the following: 

ill the limit of liability: 

ill the time period covered: 

ill the effective date: 

ill the gross premium charged: and 

@ the amount of return premiums. if any. 

Sec. 19. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.04, subdivision 7, is amended to read: 

Subd.7. [EXAMINATION REGARDING FINANCIAL CONDITION.] A risk retention group must submit to an 
examination by the commissioner to determine its financial condition if the commissioner of the jurisdiction in which 
the group is chartered and licensed has not initiated an examination or does not initiate an examination within teft 
B1:1siResS 60 days after a request by the commissioner of commerce. The examination must be coordinated to avoid 
unjustified. repetition and conducted in an expedJtious manner and in accordance with the National Association of 
Insurance Commissioner's Examiner Handbook. 

Sec. 20. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 6OE.04, subdivision 8, is amended to read: 

Subd. 8. [NOTICE TO PURCHASERS.] An application form for insurance from II risk retention &:!!!!£ and the front 
and declaration'~ of a policy issued by a risk retention group must contain in 10 point type 8ft 1ft. kent rage...a 
tfte aeelamtieR page, the following notice: 
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NOTICE 

This policy is issued by your risk retention group. Your risk retention group may not be subject to all of the 
insurance laws and rules of your state. State insurance insolvency guaranty funds are not available for your risk 
retention group. 

Sec. 21. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.04, subdivision 11, is amended to read: 

Subd.11. [PROHIBITED COVERAGE.] ~le ,isl, ,eleftlien g.e"" ... a~ elfe. The terms of an insurance policy issued 
Qy a risk retention group shall not provide. or be construed to provide, coverage prohibited by #'te iPlStif'8flee 1a,\, 5 

SF FtHeS af this state statute or declared unlawful by the highest court of #tis the state whose law applies to the policy. 

Sec. 22. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 6OE.04, is amended by adding a subdivision to read: 

Subd. 13. [PENALTIES.] A risk retention group that violates any provision of this chapter is subject to fines and 
penalties including revocation of its right to do 'business in this state, applicable to licensed. insurers generally. 

Sec. 23. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.05, is amended to read: 

60E.05 [COMPULSORY ASSOClATiONS.] 

No risk retention group shall be required or permitted to join or contribute financially to an insurance insolvency 
guaranty fund, or similar mechanism, in. this state, nor shall any risk retention group, or its insureds, or claimants 
against its insureds receive a benefit from the fund for claims arising.ou~ of the operations of the risk retention group. 

A deli FeteRBeR greHfl shaY }3BfBeipate i.ft tftis state' s jemt tifleef1:; fiting asseeiatieRs ar.s f.R~aatef" liaeility peels-
as pfe liaes 1'1) ehaptefs 6gA te 72A 8fta a 19A. When a purchasing group obtains insurance covering its members' 
risks from an insurer not authorized in this state or! risk retention~!!Q such risks. wherever resident or located, 
shall be covered Qy any insurance guaranty fund or similar mechanism in this state. 

When!. purchasing group obtains insurance covering its members' risks from an authorized insurer. only risks 
resident or located in this state shall be covered l1Y the Minnesota guaranty association under-chapter 60C. 

Notwithstanding chapter gL, the commissioner may reguire or exempt a risk retention &!Q!!P. from participation 
in any mechanism established or authorized under the law of this state for the equitable apportionment among 
insurers of liability insurance losses and expenses incurred on policies written through this mechanism. and the risk 
retention m:m:!£ shall submit sufficient information to the commissioner to enable the commissioner to apportion on 
a nondiscriminatory basis the risk retention group's proportionate share of-these losses and expenses. 

Sec. 24. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.07, is amended to read: 

60E.07 [PURCHASING GROUPS; EXEMPTION FROM CERTAIN LAWS RELATING TO THE GROUP PURCHASE 
OF INSURANCE.] 

A purchasing group Bleetiftg the ePitePia estaBlishes tmset' the Peset'al LiaBilit) Rish ReteRtieR A~ ef 1986 is 
elfeft'l:l"t Rem at.}' 1M. af dds slate rela:tiftg te fue ef'eatieR ef gre tll"s fel' lke fH:trekase af iRsHfBRee, f'FeNeiBeft ef gfeap 
fJHFEftasiF.g ef BftY lwi ... that .. eHIeI elisePiHHRate agaiR5t a PHfeftasiftg gfeHfl el' its Iftemaefs. lR aElElitieR, an iftsHFeF 
is e3EeH'l.ft {Pam B:ft) Ie .. ef tftis state tfl:at pfeAiBits f'fsT.isiRg, ef effering te FIfe liee, te a f'tffeftasiRg ~el::t}3 eF its 
lfteR..eel'S as. aRtages 1'I~seEl eR tfl:eiF lass aRa eupeRse elf}3eFieflee Ret affefses ta ethel pefseRS iT itA lespeet te Fates, 
J3elie, fafftls, ee. epages, ef ether :mattefS. A l'tH'eftasing 3fek:iJ3 is sHe;eet te all ether epplieaele laws ef tftis state. and 
its insurer .Q!. insurers are subject to all applicable laws of this state, except that a purchasing ~ and its insurer 
or insurers are exempt, in regard to liability insurance for the purchasing ~ from any law that would: 

ill prohibit the establishment of a purchasing &Q!!EL 

m make i! unlawful for an insurer to provide or offer to provide insurance on ! basis providing, to a purchasing 
grQ!!P. or its members, advantages based !ill. their loss and expense experience not afforded to other persons with 
respect to rates, £Q!i£v. forms. coverages. or other matters; 

ill prohibit !. purchasing group Q!. its members from purchasing insurance !ill. !. &!Q!!P. basis described in 
. clause gJL 
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ill prohibit .! purchasing group from obtaining insurance on .! .S!Q!:!£ basis because the &:!Q!!£ has not been in 
existence for a minimum period. of time or because any member has not belonged to the g!Q!!£ for a minimum ~ 
of time; 

ill require that a purchasing &:m:!E. must have!. minimum number of members, common ownership or affiliation, 
2!. certain legal formi 

1fu require that a certain percentage of a purchasing ~ must obtain insurance on !. group basis; 

ill otherwise discriminate against a purchasing grQ!!£.Q!. any of its members; or 

@ require that ~ insurance EQli£y issued. !Q! purchasing S!QBl2..Q!. any of its members be countersigned ~ an 
insurance agent Q£ broker residing in this state. 

Sec. 25. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.08, is amended to read: 

60E.08 [NOTICE AND REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF PURCHASING GROUPS.] 

Subdivision 1. [NOTICE TO COMMISSIONER.] A purchasing group that intends to do business in this state shallL 

prior to doing business. furnish notice to the commissioner on forms prescribed .Qy the NAIC which shall: 

(1) identify the state in which the group is domiciled; 

(2) identify all other states in which the group intends to do business: ' 

ill specify the lines and classifications of liability insurance which the purchasing group intends to purchase; 

f31 ill identify the insurance company or companies from which the group intends to purchase its insurance and 
the domicile of the company; 

(4) ill specify the method l!y which, and the person or persons, if any, through whom insurance will be offered 
to its members whose risks are resident or located in this state; 

ill identify the principal place of business of the group; and 

\Sf ill provide other information required by the commissioner to verify that the purchasirig group is qualified 
Wlder section 60E.02, subdivision 11. 

Subd. 2. [NOTICE OF CHANGE.] 11 purchasing ~ shall, within ten days, notify the commissioner of any 
changes in any items set forth in subdivision 1. 

Subd. ~ [SERVICE OF PROCESS.] The purchasing group shan register with and designate the commissioner or . 
other appropriate authority as its agent solely for the purpose of receiving service of legal documents or process for 
which! filing fee shall be determined.Qy the commissioner. These requirements do not apply to a purchasing group 
that only purchases insurance that was authorized Wlder the federal Product Liability Risk Retention Act of 1981, and 
that in any state of the United States: 

(1) was domiciled before April 2, 1986, and is domiciled on and after October 27,1986, in any state of the United 
States; 

(2) before October 27, 1986, 'purchased insurance from an insurance carrier licensed in any state, and since October 
27,1986, purchased its insurance from-an insurance carrier licensed in any state; and 

(3) was a purchasing group under the requirements of the federal Product Liability Retention Act of 1981 before 
Cktober27, 19~ 

(4) sees Ret f3l:lFeftaBe insl:l:PaF.tee tAat" '\.as Ret al:lfu:ames fap f'l:ll'pases af aft el£eB'lfIft8R l:lftsel' the ael: pefeRea ta 
in elaLi:se (a), as ifl effeet sefel'e Oeffisel' 27, 1986. 
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Subd . .i. [ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.] Each purchasing &Q!!£'that ~ reguired to give notice pursuant to 
subdivision 1 shall also furnish information reguired Qy the commissioner to: 

ill verify that the entity qualifies as a purchasing group; 

ill determine where the purchasing group is located; and 

ill determine appropriate tax treatment. 

Sec. 26. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 6OE.09, is amended to read: 

60E.09 [RESTRICTIONS ON INSURANCE PURCHASED BY PURCHASING GROUPS.] 

A purchasing group may not purchase insurance from a risk retention group that is not chartered in a state or from 
an insurer not admitted in the state in which the purchasing group is located, Wlless the purchase is effected through 
a licensed agent or broker acting pursuant to the surplus lines laws and regulations of the state. 

A purchasing grQ!!£ which obtains liability insurance from an insurer not admitted in this state or a risk retention 
group shall inform each of the members of the group which have a risk resident or located in this state that the risk 
is not protected Qy ~ insurance insolvency guaranty fund in this state. and that the risk retention group or insurer 
may not be subject to all insurance laws and regulations of this state. 

No purchasing group may purchase insurance providing for a deductible or self-insured retention applicable to 
the group ~ .!!. whole, however, coverage may provide for !! deductible Q!. self-insured retention applicable to 
individual members. 

Purchases of insurance h purchasing groups ~ subject to the same standards regarding aggregate limits which 
are applicable to all purchases of &:Q.!!P. insurance. 

Sec. 27. [60E.095] [PURCHASING GROUP TAXATION.] 

Premium taxes and taxes on premiums paid for coverage of risks resident or located in this state,Qv. a purchasing 
group or £!:!Y members of the purchasing groups shall be: 

ill imposed at the same rate and subject to the same interest, fines. and penalties as that applicable to premium 
taxes and taxes on premiums paid for similar coverage from a similar insurance source h other insureds; and 

ill paid first Qy the insurance source, and !! not Qy the ~ h the agent or broker for the purchasing ~ and 
if not Qy the agent Q!. broker then Qy the purchasing ~ and if riot h the purchasing group then Qy each of its 
members. 

Sec. 28. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.I0, is amended to read: 

60E.I0 [ADMINISTRATIVE AND PROCEDURAL AUTHORI1Y REGARDING RISK RETENTION GROUPS AND 
PURCHASING GROUPS.] 

The commissioner of commerce may use any of the powers established under the insurance laws aRa FHles of this 
state to enforce the laws Mia nties of this state sa laRg as thase f'a .. eFS aFe not specifically preempted by the Product 
Liability Risk Retention Act of 1981, as amended by the Risk Retention Amendments of 1986. 1his includes, but is 
not limited to, the commissioner's administrative authority to inyestigate, issue subpoenas, conduct depositions and 
hearings, issue orders, aftEl impose penaltiesL and seek injunctive relief. With regard to an investigation, administrative 
proceedings, or litigation, th~ commissioner can rely on the proceduralla ..... aRB Mes laws of the state. The injunctive 
authority of the commissioner in regard to risk retention groups is restricted by the requirement that an injunction 
be issued by a court of competent jurisdiction. 

Sec. 29. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 6OE.12, is amended to read: 

60E.12 [DUTY ON AGENTS OR BROKERS TO OBTAIN LICENSE.] 

A peFsaA aeaAg, SF affefiftg t8 aet, as aR ageRt 81" In'shef faf a Fisl~ feteRasR gfSl;ij9 Sf ImFffiasmg g1"s1:1f', that sslieits 
me'A'tBeFs, sells iusl:H'aRee esyeFage, fH::H'ehases fS, emge feF its ffieflleeFs lseated \. itAffi tRe state SF stheR, ise Bses 
el::lsmess ifl. this state shall, 13 e!BFe fSffiffieReiRg this aea, it}, aetaH I a lieeRse h>eff\ the eSRtIFt:issisReF. 
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Subdivision 1. [RISK RETENTION GROUPS.] No person, firm, association, or corporation shall act or aid in ~ 
manner in soliciting, negotiating, or procuring liability insurance in this state from !!. risk retention group unless the 
person, firm. association. or corp'oration is licensed as an insurance agent or broker in accordance with chapter 60K. 

Subd. b. [PURCHASING GROUPS.] ill No person, firm, association, or corporation shall act or aid in any manner 
in soliciting, negotiating, or procuring liability insurance in this state for !!. purchasing &!:2!!£ from ~ authorized 
insurer Q!.!!. risk retention group chartered in !!. state unless the person, firm. association, or corporation is licensed 
as an insurance agent or broker in accordance with chapter 60K. 

ill No person, firm, association, or corporation shall act or aid in any manner in soliciting, negotiating, or procuring 
liability insurance coverage in this state for ~ member of a purchasing &!:2!!£ under a purchasing group's policy 
unless the person, firm, association, or corporation is licensed as an insurance agent 2!. broker in accordance with 
chapter 60K. 

hl No person, firm, association, or corporation shall act or aid in any manner in soliciting, negotiating. or procuring 
liability insurance from an insurer not authorized to do business in this state on behalf of a purchasing &!:2!!£located 
in this state unless the person, firm, association, or corporation is licensed as a surplus lines agent or ~ line broker 
in accordance with sections 6OA.195 to 60A.209. 

Subd. ~ [AGENT OR BROKER RESIDENCE REQUIREMENT.] For purposes of acting as an agent.Q!: broker for 
a risk retention &!Q!!£ or purchasing group pursuant to subdivisions 1 and b. the requirement of residence in this state 
do not .!!PP!x,. 

Subd . .!. [NOTICE TO INSUREDS.] Every person, firm. association, or corporation licensed pursuant to chapter 
60A, Q!! business placed with risk retention ~ Q!. written through a purchasing ~ shall inform each 
prospective insured of the provisions of the notice required !!Y. section 60E.04, subdivision ~ in the ~ of ~ risk 
retention &!.Q!!P. and section 60E.09 in the case of a purchasing group. 

Sec. 30. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 6OE.13, is amended to read: 

60E.13 [BINDING EFFECT OF ORDERS ISSUED IN UNITED SfATES DISTRICT COURT.] 

An order issued by any district court of the United States enjoining a risk retention group from soliciting or selling 
insurance, or operating, in a state, or in all states or in a territory or possession of the United States, upon a finding 
that the group is in a hazardous financial condition or financially impaired condition shall be enforceable in the courts 
of the state. 

Sec. 31. ]TRANSITIONAL PROVISIONS.] 

1& In addition to complying with the requirements of Minnesota Statutes, section 6OE.04, ~ risk retention 8!Q!!P. 
operating in this state before the effective date of this act shall, within 30 days after that date, comply with the 
provisions of Minnesota Statutes, section 6OF.04. subdivision b. paragraph hl. 

ill A purchasing &!Q!!£ which ~ doing business in this state before the enactment of this act shall, within 30 days 
after the effective date of this ~ furnish notice to the commissioner pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, section 60E.08, 
subdivision .1. and furnish the information required pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, section 6OE.08. subdivisions 2 
and~ 

Sec. 32. [REPEALER.] 

Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 60A.07, subdivision fut. 60A.12, subdivision!.QL 608.24; and 6OE.ll. are repealed." 
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Delete the title and insert: 

"A bill for an act relating to insurance; regulating investments, assets and liabilities, and annual statements of 
companies; providing for continuance of coverage upon liquidation; ll10difying the definition of resident for purposes 
of the Minnesota insurance guaranty association; regulating dividends and other distributions of insurance holding 
company systems; regulating risk retention groups; enacting theNAIC model legislation; amending Minnesota Statutes 
1992, sections 6OA.l1, subdivision 9; 60A.12, subdivision 3; 6OA.13, subdivisions 1 and 6; 60A.23, subdivision 4; 60B.22, 
subdivision 1; 6OC.03, subdivision 7; 6OD.20, subdivisions 2 and 4; 6OE.Dl; 6OE.02, subdivisions 9 and 12; 60E.03; 
6OE.04, subdivisions 1, 2, 3,4,7,8,11, and by adding a subdivision; 60E.05; 6OE.07; 60E.08; 6OE.09; 6OE.IO; 60E.12; and 
60E.13; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 60A and 60E; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, 
sections 6OA.07, subdivision 5d; 60A.I2, subdivision 10; 608.24; and 60E.I1." 

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass. 

The report was adopted. 

Sarna from the Committee on Commerce and Economic Development to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 1137, A bill for an act relating to real estate; regulating fees,licenses, and-agreements; requiring certain 
disclosures; providing for meetings of the real estate appraiser advisory board; changing terms; regulating fees and 
licenses; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 82.17, subdivision 4, and by adding subdivisions; 82.19, 
subdivision 5, and by adding subdivisions; 82.20, subdivisions 7, 8, and 15; 82.21, subdivision 1, and by adding a 
subdivision; 82.22, subdivisions 6 and 13; 82.24, subdivision 1; 82.27, subdivision 1; 82.33, subdivision 2, and by adding 
subdivisions; 82.34, subdivisions 3 and 4; 82B.02, by adding a subdivision; 82B.05, subdivision 5; 82B.09, subdivision 
1; 82B.11; 82B.14; 828.19, subdivision 2; and 507.45, subdivision 4; Laws 1992, chapter 555, article I, section 12; 
proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 82; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 82.22, 
subdivision 7; Minnesota Rules, part 2805.1200. 

Reported the same back with the following amendments: 

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert: 

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 82.17, subdivision 4, is amended to read: 

Subd. 4. "Real estate broker" or "broker" means any person who: 

(a) for another and for commission, fee or other valuable consideration or with the intention or expectation of 
receiving the same directly or indirectly lists, sells, exchanges, buys or rents, manages, or offers or attempts to 
negotiate a·sale, option, exchange, purchase or rental of an interest or estate in real estate, or advertises or holds out 
as engaged in these activities; 

(b) for another and for commission, fee or other valuable consideration or with the intention or expectation of 
receiving the same directly or indirectly negotiates or offers or attempts to negotiate a loan, ~red or to be secured 
by a mortgage or other encumbrance on real estate; 

(c) for another and for commission, fee or other valuable consideration or with the intention or expectation of 
receiving the same directly or indirectly lists, sells, exchanges, buys, rents, manages, offers or attempts to negotiate 
a sale, option, exchange, purchase or rental of any business opportunity or business, or its good will, inventory, or 
fixtures, or any interest therein; 

(d) for another and for commission, fee or other valuable consideration or with the intention or expectation of 
receiving the same directly or indirectly offers, sells or attempts to negotiate the sale of property that is subject to the 
registration requirements of chapter 83, concerning subdivided land; 
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(e) eRg-ages ift tfle Bl:lSmeSS ef ellargiRg aft aEivaRee :fee Sf esftt.=Paeting laF eelleetieR ef a fee iH eeRAeea8fl with aft)' 
eeAtfftet WHefeBY tRe pefseR HRaeFtaI(€s te }3ftllftste the sale af feal estate tHroUgH its listiRg iR a f'HBlieatisft issueEi 
f'fifftilfii} tel tftis f'llFflBse; for another and for commission, ~ or other valuable consideration or with the intention 
or expectation of receiving the same, promotes the sale of real estate Qy advertising it in a publication issued primarily 
for this purpose, if the person: 

ill negotiates on behalf of any ~ to a transaction; 

ill disseminates ~ information regarding the property to any ~ or potential £!!!!y to a transaction subsequent 
to the publication of the advertisement. except that in response to an initial inquiry from a potential purchaser, the 
person may forward additional written information regarding the property which has been prepared prior to the 
publication Qy the seller or broker or a representative of either; 

ill counsels. advises. or offers suggestions to the seller or ~ representative of the seller with regard to the 
marketing. offer. sale . .Q!. lease of the real estate. whether prior to .Q!. subsequent .to the publication of the 
advertisement; 

ill counsels. advises. or offers suggestions to a potential buyer or a representative of the seller with regard to the 
purchase or rental of ~ advertised real estate; 2!. 

ill engages in ~ other activity otherwise subject to licensure under this chapter; 

(f) engages wholly or in part in the business of selling real estate to the extent that a pattern of real estate sales is 
established, whether or not the real estate is owned by the person. A person shall be presumed to be engaged in the 
business of selling real estate if the person engages as principal in five or more transactions during any 12-month 
period, unless the person is represented by a licensed real estate broker or salesperson; 

(g) offers or makes more than five loans secured by real estate during any 12-month- period and who is not a bank, 
savings bank, mutual savings bank, building and loan association, or savings and loan association organized under 
the laws of this state or the United States, trust company, trust company acting as a fiduciary, or other financial 
institution subject to the supervision of the commissioner of corrunerce, or mortgagee or lender approved or certified 
by the secretary of housing and urban development or approved or certified by the administrator of veterans affairs, 
or approved or certified by the administrator of the Farmers Home Administration, or approved or certified by the 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, or approved or certified by the Federal National Mortgage Association. 

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 82.17, is amended by adding a subdivision to read: 

Subd.l1. [DUAL AGENCY.] "Dual agency" means ~ situation in which a licensee owes a duty to more than one 
~ to the transaction. 

Circumstances which establish dual agency include the following: 

ill when one licensee represents both the buyer and the seller in ~ real estate transaction; or 

ill when two or more licensees. licensed to the ~ broker. each represent a ~ to the transaction. 

Sec. 3. MiIUlesota Statutes 1992, section 82.17, is amended by adding a subdivision to read: 

Subd. 12. [RESIDENTIAL REAL PROPERTY OR RESIDENTIAL REAL ESTATE.] "Residential real property" or 
"residential ·real estate" ~ property occupied !!YL Q!: intended to be occupied !!L. one to four families as their 
residence. 

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 82.19, is amended by adding a subdivision to read: 

Subd.4a. [SELF-SERVING PROVISION PROHIBITED.] No purchase agreement, earnest money contract, or similar 
contract for the purchase, rental, or lease of real property may contain any hold harmless clause or arbitration clause 
which addresses the rights or liabilities of persons required to be licensed pW'Suant to this chapter unless the person 
required to be licensed is a principal in the transaction. 

This does not prohibit separate and independent written agreements between any of the parties and persons 
required to be licensed pursuant to this chapter. 
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Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 82.19, subdivision 5, is amended to read: 

Subd.5. [DISCLOSURE REGARDING REPRESENTATION OF PARTIES.] <a) No person licensed pursuant to this 
chapter or who otherwise acts as a real estate broker or salesperson shall represent any party Sf parties to a real estate 
transaction or otherwise act as a real estate broker or salesperson unless that person makes an "affirmative wr~tten 
disclosure te all parties te, tfle tfaFlfiaelisA as to which party that person represents in the transaction. 'In a residential 
real property transaction, the disclosure must be made at the first substantive contact between ~ licensee ~ ~ 
~ Q!. potential ~ to the transaction. The disclosure shall be printed ifl at least 6 peint eela type 8ft tl\e 
pHf€AaSe agfeem€ftt ana aelrnewleelgea e) separate sig'ftahH'€s sf the btry €f at\el seller ~ a separate document and 
acknowledged!!y the signamre of the buyer. seller. or customer. 

(b) The disclosure required by this subdivision must be made by the licensee prier te all) sUer beitcg maele te er 
aeeepteel by the eayeF. A maRge iR lieeft5ee's represeRtatisA that ERi\1~es the iAitial aiselssl:H'e inesmplete, misleaeliAg-; 
sr iAaee\::lfate Feqtiires that a Ae,. eliseles\:lre Be made at SRee. with respect to ~ residential property transac~on: 

ill when representing the seller. at the ~ of !!,listing agreement; 

ill when representing the buyer. at the ~ of!!, buyer'S broker agreement; 

ill~ to all other parties (potential buyers Q!. sellers) who!!!!:. not represented!!y the licensee. before discussion of 
financial information or the commencement of negotiations. which could affect that ~ bargaining position in the 
transaction. 

Ii change in the licensee's representation. including dual agency. that makes the initial disclosure required.'£¥' this 
paragraph incomplete, misleading. or inaccurate requires that a new disclosure be made at ~ 

(c) The seller may, in the listing agreement, authorize the seller's b~oker to disburse part o'f the broker's 
compensation to other brokers, including the buyer's brokers solely representing the buyer. A broker representing 
a buyer shall make known to the seller or the seller's agent the fact of the agency relationship before any showing 
or negotiations are initiated. 

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 82.19, is amended by adding a subdivision to read: 

Subd . .§.:. [CLOSING SERVICES.] No real estate broker. salesperson, or closing agent shall require !!, person to ~ 
any particular lender. licensed attorney. real estate broker. real estate salesperson, real estate closing agent. or title 
company in connection with ~ residential real estate closing. 

Sec. 7. [82.195] [LISTING AGREEMENTS.] 

Subdivision 1. [REQUIREMENT.] Licensees shall obtain a signed listing agreement from the owner of real property 
or from another person authorized to offer the property for sale or lease before advertising to the general public that 
the real property is available for sale or lease. 

For the purposes of this section "advertising" includes placing!!, ~ on the owner's property that indicates that 
the property is being offered for sale or lease. 

Subd. b. [CONTENTS.] All listing agreements must be in writing and must include: 

ill a definite expiration datej 

ill a description of the real property involved; 

ill the list price and any terms required .£¥. the seller; 

ill the amount of any compensation or commission or the basis for computing the' corrunissionj 

rn. a clear statement explaining the events or conditions that will entitle a broker to a commission: 

@ information regarding an override clause, if applicable, including a statement to the effect that the override 
clause will not be effective unless the licensee supplies the seller with ~ protective list within 72 hours after the 
expiration of the listing agreement; 
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m the following notice in not less than ten point boldface !YE!:. immediately preceding any provision of the listing 
agreement relating to compensation of the licensee: 

"NOTICE: THE COMMISSION RATE FOR THE SALE, LEASE, RENTAL, OR MANAGEMENT OF REAL 
PROPERTY SHALL BE DETERMINED BETWEEN EACH INDIVIDUAL BROKER AND ITS CLIENT."; 

@if the broker chooses to represent both buyers and sellers in connection with residential property transactions, 
!!. "dual agency" disclosure statement; 

m ~ notice requiring the seller to indicate in writing whether it is acceptable to the seller to have the licensee 
arrange for closing services or whether the seller wishes to arrange for others to conduct the closing. The notice must 
also include the disclosure of any controlled. business arrangement. as the term is defined in United States Code. title 
.!b section 1602, between the licensee and the real estate dosing agent through which the licensee proposes to arrange 
closing services; and 

.llQl for residential listings. a notice stating that after the expiration of the listing agreement, the seller will not be 
obligated to m!Y the licensee a fee or commission if the seller has executed another valid listing agreement pursuant 
to which the seller is obligated to ~!!. fee or commission to another licensee for the sale, lease. Q!. exchange of the 
real property in question. lhis notice may be used in the listing agreement for any other ~ of real estate. 

Subd.2,. [PROHIBITED PROVISIONS.J Except as otherwise provided in subdivision 1, paragraph(~1.Iicensees shall 
not include in !!. listing agreement a holdover clause. automatic extension, or ~ similar provision. or an override 
clause the length of which .!E. more than six months after the expiration of the listing agreement. 

Subd. ~ [OVERRIDE CLAUSES.] ful Licensees shall not seek to enforce an override clause unless a protective list 
has been furnished to the seller within 72 hours after the expiration of the listing agreement. 

ill ~ listing agreement may contain an override clause of !!p. to two years in length when used in conjunction with 
the purchase or sale of a business. The length of the override clause must be negotiable between the licensee and the 
seller of the business. The protective list provided in connection with the override clause must include the written 
acknowledgment of each fE!!!Y named 2!!. -the protective ~ that the business which .!E. the subject of the listing 
agreement was presented to that ~ J2y the licensee. 

Subd. 2, [PROTECTIVE LISTS. J A broker or salesperson has the burden of demonstrating that each person on the 
protective list has, during the period of the listing agreement. either made an affirmative showing of interest in the 
property J2y responding to ~ advertisement Q!. Qy contacting the broker .Q!. salesperson involved or has been 
physically shown the property !!v. the broker or salesperson. For the purpose of this section. the mere mailing or other 
distribution !!v. !!. licensee of literature setting forth information about the property in question does not, of itself, 
constitute an affirmative showing of interest in the property on the part of a subsequent purchaser. 

For listings of nonresidential real property which do not contain the notice described in subdivision b. clause i!Q1. 
the protective list must contain the following notice in boldface ~ 

"IF YOU RELIST WITH ANOTHER BROKER WITHIN THE OVERRIDE PERIOD AND THEN SELL YOUR 
PROPERTY TO ANYC5NE WHOSE NAME APPEARS ON .THIS LIST, YOU COULD BE iJABLE FOR FULL 
COMMISSIONS TO BOTH BROKERS. IF THIS NOTICE IS NOT FULLY UNDERSTOOD, SEEK COMPETENT 
ADVICE." 

Sec. 8. [82.196J [BUYER'S BROKER AGREEMENTS.J 

Subdivision 1. [REQUIREMENTS.] Licensees shall obtain!!. signed buyer's broker agreement from a buyer before 
performing any acts ~ ~ buyer's representative. 

Subd. b. [CONTENTS.] All buyer'S broker agreements must be in writing and must include: 

ill a definite expiration date; 

ill the amount of ~ compensation or commission. or the basis for computing the commission; 

ill a clear statement explaining the services to be provided to the buyer!zv. the broker, and the events or conditions 
that will entitle !!. broker to a commission or other compensation; 
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ill a provision for cancellation of the agreement Qy either £!!!!y upon terms agreed upon Qy the parties; 

ill information regarding an override clause, if applicable, induding a statement to the effect that the override 
clause will not be effective unless the licensee supplies the buyer with !!. protective list within 72 hours after the 
expiration of the buyer's broker agreement; 

@ the following notice in not less than ten point bold face ~ immediately preceding any provision of the buyer's 
broker agreement relating to compensation of the licensee: ' 

"NOTICE: THE COMMISSION RATE FOR THE PURCHASE, LEASE, RENTAL, OR MANAGEMENT OF REAL 
PROPERTY IS NEGOTIABLE AND SHALL BE DETERMINED BETWEEN EACH INDIVIDUAL BROKER AND ITS 
CLIENT."; 

ill if the broker chooses to represent both buyers and sellers, !!. "dual agency" disclosure statement; and 

ill for buyer's broker agreements which involve residential real property, a notice stating that after the expiration 
of the buyer's broker agreement, the buyer will not be obligated to ~ the licensee a fee or commission if the buyer 
has executed another valid buyer's broker agreement pursuant to which the buyer ~ obligated to ~ ~ fee Q!. 
commission to another licensee for the purchase, lease, or exchange of real property. 

Subd. ~ [PROHIBITED PROVISIONS.] Licensees shall not include in a buyer's broker agreement a holdover clause, 
automatic extension, or any other similar provision, or an override clause the length of which~!!!Q!!: than six months 
after the expiration of the buyer's broker agreement. 

Subd.1:. [OVERRIDE CLAUSES.] Licensees shall not seek to enforc::e an override clause unless a protective list has 
been furnished to the buyer within 72 hours after the expiration of the buyer's broker agreement. 

Subd. ~ [PROTECTIVE LISTS.] A licensee has the burden of demonstrating that each ptoperty on the protective 
list has been shown to the buyer, or specifically brought to the attention of the buyer, during the time the buyer's 
broker agreement was in effect. 

Subd . .2:. [APPLICATION.) This section applies only to residential real property transactions. 

Sec. 9. [82.197] [DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS.] 

Subdivision 1. [AGENCY DISCLOSURE.] The listing agreement or a buyer's broker agreement must include a clear 
and c::omplete explanation of how the broker will represent the interests of the seller or buyer, and. !! the broker 
represents both sellers and buyers, state how that representation would be altered in ~ dual ~ situation, and 
require the seller or buyer to choose whether to authorize the broker to initiate ~ transaction which would give rise 
to dual agency. Disclosure to a customer of a licensee's agency relationship with other parties must be made ati!. time 
and in a manner sufficient to protect the customer's bargaining position. 

Subd. b. [CREATION OF DUAL AGENCY.] If circumstances create a dual ~ situation. the broker must make 
full disclosure to all parties to the transaction as to the change in relationship of the parties to the broker due to dual 
agency. d broker. having made full disclosure, must obtain the consent of all parties to these circ::umstances before 
accepting the dual agency. 

Subd. ~ [SCOPE AND EFFECf.] The requirements for disclosure of agency relationships set forth in this chapter 
are intended only to establish a minimum standard for regulatory purposes, and are not intended to abrogate common 
law. 

Subd . .! [AGENCY DISCLOSURE FORMS.] W Disclosures of agency relationships shall be made in substantially 
the form set forth in paragraphs fhl to !!ili 

ill ADDENDUM TO LISTING AGREEMENT 

.... (Broker) .... will be representing you ~ your broker in the sale of your property located at ...................... This 
relationship is called an agency. As your agent, .... (Broker) .... owes you the duties of loyalty. obedience. disclosure, 
confidentiality, reasonable care and diligence, and full accounting. However, .... (Broker) .... also represents buyers 
looking for properties. !f ~ buyer represented .Qy .... (Rroker) .... becomes interested in your property, a dual ~ 
will be created. lhis means that .... (Broker) .... will owe the same duties to the buyer'that ~~ to you. This conflict 
of interest will prohibit .... (Broker) .... from advocating exclusively on your behalf when attempting to effect the sale 
of your property. Dual agency will limit the level of representation which .... (Broker} .... can provide. 
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!f !!. dual ~ should arise, you will need to agree that confidential information about price, terms, and 
motivation will still be kept confidential unless you instruct .... (Broker) .... in writing to disclose specific information 
about you 2!. your property. All other information will be shared. Regardless of whether a dual agency occurs, 
.... (Broker) .... must disclose to the buyer any material facts of which .... (Broker) .... is aware that may adversely and 
significantly affect the buyer's use or enjoyment of the property. In addition, .... (Broker) .... must disclose to both 
parties any information of which .... (Broker) .... is ~ that ~ ~ will not perform in accordance with the terms 
of the purchase agreement or similar written agreement to convey real estate . 

.... (Broker) .... cannot act as a dual agent unless both you and the buyer agree to the dual agency after it is disclosed 
to you. .fu:. agreeing to ~ possible dual agency, you will be giving .!!£ the right to exclusive representation in ~ 
in-house transaction. However, if you should decide not to agree to !!. possible dual agency, and you want 
.... (Broker) .... to represent you, you may give !!E. the opportunity to sell your property to buyers represented £y 
.... (Broker) ... .. 

SELLER'S INSTRUCTIONS TO BROKER 

Having read and understood this information about dual ~ you ~ instruct .... (Broked .... as follows: 

.:.:.!!. Seller agrees to dual agency representation and will consider offers made!!y buyers represented £y .... (Broked ..... 

.:.:.!!. Seller does not agree to dual agency representation and will not consider offers made £y buyers represented £y 
.... (Broker) ..... 

Seller 

Dated: 

(Broker) 

BY: 

Salesperson 

hl ADDENDUM TO BUYER REPRESENTATION AGREEMENT 

.... (Broker) .... will be representing you as your broker to assist you in finding and purchasing a property. This 
relationship is -called an agency. As your agent. .... (Broker) .... owes you the duties of loyalty. obedience, disclosure, 
confidentiality, reasonable care and diligence, and full accounting. However, .... (Broked .... also represents sellers Qy 
listing their property for sale. !f you become interested in a property listed h .... (Broker) ..... a dual ~ will be 
created. This ~ that .... (Broker) .... will owe the same duties to the seller that .... (Broker) .... owes to you. This 
conflict of interest will prohibit .... (Braked .... from advocating exclusively on your behalf when attempting to effect 
the purchase of the property. Dual ~ will limit the level of representation .... (Broker) .... can provide. 

!! !!. dual agency should arise. you will need to agree that confidential information about price. terms, and 
motivation will still be kept confidential unless you instruct .. ,,(Broker) .... in writing to disclose specific information 
about you. All other information will be shared. Regardless of whether a dual ~ occurs, .... (Broker) .... must 
-disclose to the buyer any material facts of which .... (Broker) .... is aware that may adversely and significantly affect the 
buyer's use or enjoyment of the property. In addition ..... (Broker) .... must disclose to both parties any information of 
which .... (Broker) .... is aware that a ~ will not perform in accordance with the terms of the purchase agreement 
Q!. similar written agreement to convey real estate . 

.... (Broker) .... cannot act as a dual agent unless both you and the seller agree !Q. the dual ~ after it is disclosed 
to you. .fu:. agreeing to ~ possible dual agency. you will be giving .!!£ the .!igh! to exclusive representation in ~ 
in-house transaction. However, if you should decide not to agree to ~ possible dual ~ and you want 
.... (Broker) .... to represent you, you may give !!£ the opportunity to purchase .the properties listed h .... (Broker) ..... 
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BUYER'S INSTRUCTIONS TO BROKER 

Having read and understood this information about dual agency, you now instruct .... (Broker) .... as follows: 

.!.:,.:.;. Buyer will agree to £. dual agency representation and will consider properties listed Qy .... (Broker) ..... 

.:.:.!!. Buyer will not agree to ~ dual agency representation and will not consider properties listed J2y .... (Broker) ..... 

Buyer 
Dated: 

BY: 
(Broker) 

Salesperson 

@ DISCLOSURE TO CUSTOMER 

Before .... (Broker) .... ~ !Q assist you in finding and purchasing! property, we must disclose to you that 
.... (Broker) .... will be representing the seller in the transaction . 

.... (Broker) .... will disclose to you all material facts about the property of which .... (Broker) .... is aware, that could 
adversely and significantly affect your ~.Q!: enjoyment of the property ..... (Broker) .... will also assist you with the 
mechanics of the transaction. 

When i!~ to the price and terms of ~ offer, .... (Brokerl .... will ask you to make the decision as to how much 
to offer for any property and upon what terms and conditions. .. .. (Broker) .... can explain:-your options to you. but the 
ultimate decision is yours. .. .. (Broker) .... will attempt to show you properties in the price range and category you 
desire so that you will have information on which to base your decision . 

.... (Broker) .... will present!Q. the seller any written offer that you ask .... (Broker) .... to present ..... (BrokerL .. asks you 
to keep to yourself!!!!y information about the price or terms of your offer . .Q!: your motivation for making an offer, 
that you do not want the seller to know ..... (Broker) .... would be required. ~ the seller's agent, to disclose this 
infonnation to the seller. You should carefully consider sharing any information with .... (Broker) .... that you do not 
want disclosed to the seller. 

Customer (Broker) 
BY: 

Customer Salesperson 
Dated: .,"', ... , .. ,., ... "., .. ,' 

W. DISCLOSURE TO BUYER AND SELLER AT TIME 
OF OFFER TO PURCHASE 

.... (Broker) .... represents the seller at the property located at ................................................................ . 

.... (Broker) .... also represents! buyer who offered to purthase the seller's property. 

When .... (Broker) .... represents both the buyer and the seller in a transaction, a dual ~ is created. This ~ 
that ,,,,(Broker),,,, and its agents l!l:U ~ fiduciary duty to both buyer and seller, Because buyer and seller may have 
conflicting interests, .... (Broker) .... and its agents are prohibited from advocating exclusively for either £!tlY.:. 

.... {BrokerL .. cannot represent both the buyer and seller in this transaction unless both the buyer and seller agree 
to this dual agency. 

Buyer and seller acknowledge and agree that: 

L. Confidential infonnation communicated to " .. (Broker) .... which regards price. terms, or motivation to buy or sell 
will remain confidential unless buyer or seller instructs .... (Broker) .... in writing to disclose this information about the 
buyer .Q!: seller. Other information will be shared. 
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b. .... (Broker) .... and its salespersons will disclose to buyer all material facts of which they ~ ~ which could 
adversely and significantly affect the buyer's use or enjoyment of the property or any intended use of the property 
of which .... (Broker) .... or its salespersons are aware (this disclosure is required!!y law whether or not a dual agency 
i§. involved), 

J.:. .... (Broker).. .. and its salespersons will disclose to both parties all information of which they ~~ that either 
~ will not perform in accordance with the terms of the purchase agreement or other written agreement to convey 
real estate (this disclosure is required ~ law whether or not! dual agency is involved), 

1:. .... (Broker)"" and its salespersons will not represent the interests of either ~ to the detriment of the other. 

~ Within the limits of dual agency, .... (Broker) .... and its salespersons will work diligently to facilitate the 
mechanics of the sale. 

With the knowledge and understanding of the explanation above. buyer and seller authorize and instruct 
.... (Broker) .... and its salespersons !Q. act M dual agents in this transaction. 

Buyer 
Date: 

Seller 
Date: 

Subd. ~ [APPLICATION.] The disclosures reguired h subdivision 1 ~ only to residential real property 
transactions. 

Sec. 10. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 82.20, subdivision 15, is amended to read: 

Subd.15. [EXEMPTION.] The following persons, when acting ~ closing agentsL are exempt from the requirements 
of sections 82.19 and 82.24 unless otherwise required in this section or chapter: 

(1) a direct employee of a title company, or a person who has an agency agreement with a title company in which 
the agent agrees to perform closing services on the title company's behalf and the title company assumes responsibility 
for the actions of the agent as if the agent were a direct employee of the title company; 

(2) a licensed attorney or a direct employee of a licensed attorney; 

(3) a licensed real estate broker or salesperson; 

(4) a direct employee of a licensed real estate broker if the broker maintains all funds received in connection with 
the closing services in the broker's trust account; and 

(5) any bank, trust company, savings and loan association, credit wtion, industrial loan and thrift company, 
regulated lender under chapter 56, public utility, or land mortgage or farm loan association organized under the laws 
of this state or the United States, when engaged in the transaction of businesses within the scope of its corporate 
powers as provided by law. 

Sec. 11. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 82.21, subdivision 1, is amended to read: 

Subdivision 1. [AMOUNTS.] The following fees shall be paid to the cOrrurUssioner: 

(a) A fee of $100 ~ year for each initial individual broker's license, and a fee of $50 ~ year for each """"'* 
renewal thereof; 

(b) A fee of $50 ~ year for each initial salesperson's license, and a fee of $20 ~ year for each """"'* renewal 
thereof; 

(c) A fee of $55 ~ year for each initial real estate closing agent license, and a fee of $30 ~ year for each """"'* 
renewal; 
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(d) A fee of $100 ~ year for each initial corporate or partnership license, and a fee of $50 £f!: year for each €tflf'tt:I:ftl 
renewal thereof; 

(e) A fee flet is e)(€eea of $40 per year for payment to the education, research and recovery fund in accordance with 
section 8~.34; 

(f) A fee of $20 for each transfer; 

(g) A fee of $50 for a corporation or partnership name change; 

(h) A fee of $10 for an agent name change; 

(i) A fee of $20 for a license history; 

(j) A fee of $10 for a duplicate license; 

(k) A fee of $50 for license reinstatement; 

(1) A fee of $20 for reactivating a corporate or parmership license without land; 

(m) A fee of $100 for course coordinator approval; and 

(n) A fee of $lG $20 for each hour or fraction of one hour of course approval sought. 

Sec. 12. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 82.21, is amended by adding a subdivision to read: 

Subd.2a. [BROKER PAYMENT CONSOLIDATION.] For all license renewal fees. recovery fund renewal fees, and 
recovery fund assessments pursuant to this section and section 82.34, the broker must remit the fees or assessments 
for the company, broker. and all salespersons licensed to the broker, in the form of ~ single check. 

Sec. 13. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 82.22, subdivision 6, is amended to read:' 

Subd. 6. [INSTRUCTION; NEW LICENSES.] (a) Afte. January 1, 1987, Every applicant for a salesperson's license 
shall be' required to successfully complete a course of study in the real estate field consisting of 30 hours of instruction 
approved by the commissioner before taking the examination specified in subdivision 1. AfteF JaRl:lary 1, 1987, Every 
applicant for'a salesperson's license shall be required to successfully complete an additional course of study in the 
real estate field consisting of 60 hours of instruction approved by the commissioner, of which three hours shall consist 
of training in state and federal fair housing laws, regulations, and rules, before filing an application for the license. 
Every salesperson lieeflsea: aftel Jahl:lalY 1, 1997, shall, within one year of licensure, be required to successfully 
complete a course of study in the real estate field consisting of 30 hours of instruction approved by the commis~ioner. 

(b) PAtef Deeemeel 31, 1983, aft(;;i BefsFe JiHiI:lary 1, 1987, e. ery appliea:nt faf a salespefssfl's lieeR5e sfia:ll Be feE):l:lifea 
ta sueeessfttlly eSB"LfIlete a eSL:lfse af sfM:ay ifl tHe Feal estate fiela esftsistffig sf 3Q hSI:lFS sf mSfflfeesH appls.ea By 
the eaftlHtissiaftel Befale taltiRg the e)(aJf'l:iftatisft sfleeifiea ift sliBelit4siaft 1. AfteF DeeeffiBel 31, 1983, aHa Befsfe 
Jaf'luary 1, 1987, ellery apfllieant fal a salespeFssfl's lieeflse sllall Be FeEJ:t:HFea te sl:leeessfttlly eaffifllete aft aelaitiaRa:l 
eeUFse af sffiei;' iF. tHe Feal estate fielEl eaRsistb ig af 3Q ftSlfFS af mSHl:letieR ap19le. eel By the eeHlfflfssisftel Befsfe filiflg 
aft af'f'lieatiaft fef the lieeRSe. e. e17 salespeFseR li:eeftseEl aftel Deeemeel 31,1983, ar.El Befele J6fl.tlB:f, 1,1987, shall, 
.. W"jFt aFte :) eftf af the Elate a lieeRse was filSt isstleEl, Be Feql;lifeEl te sl:l€€essfaH:) eSB"LfIlete a €al:lfSe ef sffiay in tAe 
Feal estate :bela eSflSisB:ftg af 3Q Aauls af Histrtleaafl apple. eel B, the eeffifldssisfleF. 

te1 The commissioner may approve courses of study in the real estate field offered in educational institutions of 
higher learning in this state or courses of study in the real estate field developed by and offered Wlder the auspices . 
of the national association of realtors, its affiliates, or private real estate. schools. The commissioner shall not approve 
any course offered by, sponsored by, or affiliated with any person or company licensed to engage in the real estate 
business. The commissioner may by rule prescribe the curriculum and qualification of those employed as instructors. 

(el) l.ltfteF JB::R-liftI'} I, 1988, hl An applicant for a broker's license must successfully complete a course of study in 
the real estate field consisting of 30 hours of instruction approved by the conunissioner, of which three hours shall 
consist of training in state and federal fair housing laws, regulations, and rules. The course must have been completed 
within six months prior to the date of application for the broker's license. 
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(e) AfteF Al:lgtlst 1, 1989, @ An applicant for a real estate closing agent's license must successfully complete a 
course of shldy relating to closing services consisting of eight hours of instruction approved by the commissioner. 

Sec. 14. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 82.22, subdivision 13, is amended to read: 

Subd. 13. [CONTINUING EDUCATION.] <al Afte. J~ly 1, 1987, All real estate salespersons and all rEial eslate 
brokers shall be required to successfully complete 15 hours of real estate education, either as a student or a lecturer, 
in courses of study approved by the commissioner, each year after their initial annual renewal date or after the 
expiration of their currently assigned three year continuing education due date. All salespersons and brokers shall 
report continuing education on an annual basis no later than Jlcl::Ite ag, 1999 May 31. Hours in excess of 15 earned in 
anyone year may be carried forward to the following year. 

(b) The commissioner shall adopt rules defining the standards for course and instructor approval, and may adopt 
rules for the proper administration of this subdivision. 

(c) Any program approved by Minnesota continuing legal education shall be approved by the commissioner of 
commerce for continuing education for real estate brokers and salespeople if the program or any part thereof relates 
to real estate. 

(d) As part of the continuing education requirements of this section, the commissioner shall require that all real 
estate brokers and salespersons receive at least two hours of training every even-numbered year in courses in state 
and federal fair housing laws, regulations, and rules, or other antidiscrimination laws. 

Sec. 15. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 82.24, subdivision I, is amended to read: 

Subdivision 1. [GENERALLY.] WAll trust funds, received by a broker or the broker's salespeople or dosing agents 
shall be deposited forthwith upon receipt in a trust account, maintained by the broker for such purpose in a hank, 
savings and loan association, credit union, or an industrial loan and thrift company with deposit liabilities designated 
by the broker or closing agent, except as such money may be paid to one of the parties pursuant to express written 
agreement between the parties to a transaction. The depository bank shall be a Minnesota bank or trust company or 
any foreign hank and shall authorize the commissioner to examine its records of such deposits upon demand by the 
commissioner. The industrial loan and thrift company shall be ·organized under chapter 53. The savings and loan 
association or credit union shall be organized under the laws of any state or the United States. 

ill All trust accounts opened or maintained pursuant to requirements of paragraph ill-must be established through 
the use of ~ employer identification number. Any trust account currently identified with a broker's personal social 
security number must be changed to reflect the broker's employer's identification number rather than the ·broker's 
personal social security number. 

Sec. 16. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 82.27, subdivision I, is amended to read: 

Subdivision 1. The commissioner may by order deny, suspend or revoke any license or may censure a licensee if 
the commissioner finds (1) that the order is in the public interest, and (2) that the applicant or licensee or, in the case 
of a broker, any officer, director, partner, employee or agent or any person occupying a similar status or performing 
similar functions, or any person directly or indirectly controlling the broker or closing agent or controlled by the 
broker or closing agent: 

(a) has filed an application for a license which is incomplete in any material respect or contains any statement 
which, in light of the circumstances under which it is made, is false or misleading with respect to any material fact; 

(b) has engaged in a fraudulent, deceptive, or dishonest practice; 

(c) is permanently or temporarily enjoined by any court of competent jurisdiction from engaging in or continuing 
any conduct or practice involving any aspect of the real estate business; 

(d) has failed to reasonably supervise brokers, salespersons, or closing agents so as to cause injury or harm to the 
public; 

(e) has violated or failed to comply with any provision of this chapter Of any rule or order under this chapter; 6f' 
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(f) has, in the conduct of the licensee's affairs under the license, been shown to be incompetent, untrustworthy, or 
financially irresponsiblei. or 

f.g2 has acted .Q!l behalf of any E!!!!Y to a transaction. where the licensee has a conflict of interest that may affect 
the licensee's ability to represent that ~ without the knowledge and consent of the~, 

Sec. 17. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 82.33, subdivision 2, is amended to read: 

Subd. 2. No person required by this chapter to be licensed shall be entitled to or may bring or maintain any action 
in the courts for any commission, fee or other compensation with respect to the purchase, sale, lease or other 
disposition or conveyance of real property, or with respect to the negotiation or attempt to negotiate any sale, lease 
or other disposition or conveyance of real property unless there is a written agreement with the person SFiitgiRg SF 

maiRtaifliflg the aeaSR required to be licensed. 

Sec. 18. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 82.33, is amended by adding a subdivision to read: 

Subd. ~ No person required £y this chapter to be licensed shall be entitled to bring !!ill:: action to recover ~ 
commission, ~ or other compensation with respect to the purchase, sale, lease, or other disposition or conveyance 
of residential real property. 2!. with respect to the negotiation 2!. attempt to negotiate ~ sale. lease. or other 
disposition or conveyance of residential real property unless the person's agency relationships have been disclosed 
to the parties to the transaction in accordance with the requirements of this chapter. 

Sec. 19. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 82.33, is amended 'by adding a subdivision to read: 

Subd. 1:. No person required to be licensed Qy this chapter may maintain an action in the courts of this state to 
enforce ~ provision of a purchase agreement, earnest money contract, or similar contract for the purchase, rental, 
Q£lease of real property if the provision to be enforced violates section 82.19, subdivision 4a. 

Sec. 20. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 82.34, subdivision 3, is amended to read: 

Subd.3. [FEE FOR REAL ESTATE FUND.] Each real estate broker, real estate salesperson, and real estate closing 
agent entitled under this chapter to renew a license shall pay in addition to the appropriate renewal fee a further fee 
of $25 ~ year which shall be credited to the real estate education, research, and recovery fund. Any person who 
receives a ~ initial license shall pay the fee of $50 in addition to all other fees payable. 

Sec.21. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 82.34, subdivision 7, is amended to read: 

Subd. 7. When any aggrieved person obtains a final judgment in any court of competent jurisdiction regardless 
of whether the judgment has been discharged by a bankruptcy court against an individual licensed tmder this chapter, 
on grounds of fraudulent, deceptive, or dishonest practices, or conversion of trust funds arising directly out of any 
transaction when the judgment debtor was licensed and performed acts for which a license is required under this 
chapter, or performed acts permitted by section 327B.04, subdivision 5, the aggrieved person may, upon the judgment 
becoming final, and upon termination of all proceedings, including reviews and appeals, file a verified application 
in the court in which the judgment was entered for an order directing payment out of the fund of the amount of 
actual and direct out of pocket loss in the transaction, but excluding any attorney's fees, interest on the loss and on 
any judgment obtained as a result of the loss, up to the sum of $150,000 of the amount unpaid upon the judgment, 
provided that nothing iIi. this chapter shall be construed to obligate the fund for more than $150,000 per claimant, per 
transaction, subject to the limitations set forth in subdivision 14, regardless of the number of persons aggrieved or 
parcels of real estate involved in the transaction~ provided that regardless of the number of claims against a licensee, 
nothing in this chapter may obligate the fund for more than $250,000 per licensee. An aggrieved person who has a 
cause of action under section 80A.23 shall first seek recovery as provided in section 80A.05, subdivision 5, before the 
commissioner may order payment from the recovery fund. For purposes of this section, persons who are joint tenants 
.or tenants in common are deemed to be a single claimant. A copy of the verified application shall be served upon 
the commissioner and upon the judgment debtor, and a certificate or affidavit of service filed with the court. For the 
purpose of this section, "aggrieved person" shall not include a licensee unless (1) the licensee is acting in the capacity 
of principal in the sale of interests in real property owned by the licensee; or (2) the licensee is acting in the capacity 
of principal in the purchase of interests in real property to be owned by the licensee. Under no circumstances shall 
a licensee be entitled to payment under this section for the loss of a commission or similar fee. 
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For the purposes of this section. recovery is limited to transactions where the property involved is intended for the 
direct personal habitation or commercial use of the buyer. 

Except for securities permitted .!Q be sold h a licensee pursuant to section 82.19. subdivision Z. for any action 
commenced after h!!Y L. 1993, recovery under this section !§. not available where the buyer's participation ~ for 
investment purposes only, and i§.limited to providing capital to fund the transaction. 

Sec. 22. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 82B.02, is amended by adding a subdivision to read: 

Subd.14. [TRANSACTION VALUE.] "Transaction value" ~ 

ill for loans or other extensions of credit, the amount of the loan or extension of credit; 

ill for sales, leases, 'purchases, and investments in or exchanges of real property, the market value of the real 
property interest involved; and 

ill for the pooling of loans .Q!: interests in real property for resale or purchase, the amount of the loan or market 
value of the real property calculated with respect to each such loan or interest in real property. 

Sec. 23. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 82B.05, subdivision 5, is amended to read: 

Subd.5. [CONDUCT OF MEETINGS.] Places of regular board meetings must be decided by the vote of members. 
Written notice must be given to each member of the time and place of each meeting of the board at least ten days 
before the scheduled date of regular board meetings. The board shall establish procedures for emergency board 
meetings and other operational procedures~ subject to the approval of the commissioner. 

The members of the board shall elect a chair from among the members to preside at board meetings. 

A quorum of the board is eight members. 

The board shall meet at least Ejl:ltH'tE:FI) ~ e~(eeflt fr.at a meetiRg may Be ear.eeles, Sl:lBjeet te the apple. al By tP.e 
eemmissieRef if as determined Qy a majority vote of the members aeteF.A.'l:iRe tflat the meeti.-.g is Ret ReeessaFY 2!:. ~ 
call of the commissioner. 

The eeffift'lfssief'lel eF a majeFit) ef tlle memlgeFs HLa) seheEll:lle aaaitisRal meetiftgs as Reeessa~. 

Sec. 24. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 82B.ll, is amended to read: 

82B.ll [CLASSES OF LICENSE.] 

Subdivision 1. [GENERALLY.] There are five classes of license for real estate appraisers. 

Subd.2. [£+A+B REGISTERED REAL PROPERTY APPRAISER] When a net income capitalization analysis is not 
required by the uniform standards of professional appraisal practice, a sffife registered real property appraiser may 
appraise residential real property or agricultural property. 

Subd.3. [PIlIlIlRAL RE8IDIl~JTIAL LICENSED REAL PROPERTY APPRAISER] A ledeFal Fesideftliallicensed real 
property appraiser may appraise noncomplex eRe te ieeF residential tI:Rits property or agricultural property having 
a transaction value less than $1,000,000 and complex eRe ts islit' residential i:!ftHs or agricultural property having a 
transaction val"e less than $250,000. 

Subd.4. [CERTIFIED PIlDIlRAL RESIDENTIAL REAL PROPERTY APPRAISER] A certified fedeFal residential real 
property appraiser may appraise sf'le ts feel' residential 1::I:'Aifs property or agricultural property without regard to 
transaction value or complexity. 

Subd. 5. [CERTIFIED PIlIlIlRAL GENERAL REAL PROPERTY APPRAISER] A certified fedeFal general real 
property appraiser may appraise all types of real property. 

Subd.6. [TEMPORARY PRACTICE.] The commissioner shall issue a license for temporary practice as a real estate 
appraiser under subdivision 3, 4~ or 5 to a person certified or licensed by another state if: 
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(1) the property to be appraised is part of a federally-related transaction and the person is licensed to appraise 
property limited to the same transaction value or complexity provided in subdivision 3, 4, or 5; 

(2) the .appraiser's business is of a temporary nature; and 

(3) the appraiser registers with the commissioner to obtain a temporary license pftef-te before conducting appraisals 
within the state. 

Sec. 25. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 82B.14, is amended to.read: 

826.14 [EXPERIENCE REQUIREMENT.] 

(a) A license under section 82B.11, subdivision 3, 4, or 5, may not be issued to a person who does not have the 
equivalent of two years of experience in real property appraisal supported by adequate written reports or file 
memoranda. 

(b) Each applicant for license under section 82B.11, subdivision 3, 4, or 5, shall give under oath a detailed listing 
of the real· estate appraisal reports or file memoranda for each year for which experience is claimed by the applicant. 
Upon request, the applicant shall make available to the commissioner for examination, a sample of appraisal reports 
that the applicant has prepared in the course of appraisal practice. 

i£l Applicants may not receive credit for experience accumulated while unlicensed, if the experience is based on 
activities which required .! license under this section. 

Sec. 26. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 82B.19, subdivision 2~ is amended to read: 

Subd.2. [RULES.l 1& The co'mmissioner may adopt rules to assure that persons renew~g their licenses as licensed 
real estate appraisers have current knowledge of real property appraisal theories, practices, and techniques that will 
provide a high degree of service and protection to those members of the public with whom they deal in a professional 
relationship under authority of their license. The rules m'l;:l5t iRelaae the felle •• iRg. 

f2) stafteial'Bs, meffitSI'H.g Metkses, ana Sj stem:s fef reesfEli=Ag atteReM'iee te he eRif'ls} ea B} eS1:lf'se Sf'Bf'lSSlS as 
a f'l'ele~l:Hsite ts aflpfs". al sf eS\::Ipses fer ereeiit; aRe 

(3) eeelaiftftHSR ,.itk leal estate eSRtiR-Hir.g'eaaeatieR fe~l:lireH.eRts 518 tftat as tfle eeftl:ft'l.issief'ler eef'l:5iael's eeaf'ses 
8r palts sf ee\:ifses aflflfsflfiate -fr.e} I'RB:} Be \::Isee ts saasi} Beth leal estate Bfie Bf3flFaisel' eefl~g eel\::leaaeR 
reEJtiil'emeflts. 

ru To the extent the commissioner considers it appropriate, courses or parts of ~ may be considered to satisfy 
both continuing education reauirements under this section and continuing real estate education requirements. 

i£l As a prerequisite for course approvaL sponsors shall submit proposed monitoring methods, and systems for 
recording attendance sufficient to ensure that participants receive course credit only for portions actually attended. 

Sec. 27. Minnesota Statutes 1992, secti'on 507.45, subdivision 4, is' amended to read: 

Subd. 4. [CHOICE OF CLOSING AGENT; LISTING NOTICE; RULES.] (a) No real estate salesperson, broker, 
attorney, auctioneer, builder, title company, financial institution, or other person making a mortgage loan may require 
a person to use any particular licensed attorney, real estate broker, real estate salesperson, or real estate ~losing agent 
in connection with a residential real estate closing. 

(b) All listing agreements must include a notice informing sellers of their rights under this subdivision. The notice 
must require the seller to indicate in writing whether it is acceptable to the seller to have the licensee arrange for 
closing services or whether the seller wishes to arrange for others to conduct the closing. The notice must also include 
the disclosure of any controlled business arrangement, as the term is defined in United States Code, title 12, section 
1602, between the licensee and the real estate closing agent through which the licensee proposes to arrange closing 
services. 

(e) +he eeMmissieRer ef eelflfiieree may- aele~t rtiles \::l:I.eer ekBf3tel Ii ts iH\f31em.ent, aelmiAistel', ftftEI eftfefee tltis 
s'l:ll:Jei; isisR. ' 
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Sec. 28. Laws 1992, chapter 555, article 1, section 12, is amended to read: 

Sec. 12. [PENDING CLAIMS.] 

The change in the per year limit contained in section 6 does not apply to a eal:ise sf aeUeR civil or administrative 
proceeding that was conunenced before August I, 1992. 

Sec. 29. [REVISOR INSTRUCTION.] 

The revisor shall change terms in Minnesota Statutes and Minnesota Rules to reflect the changes in the names of 
the five classes of licenses for real estate appraisers made in section 24. 

Sec. 30. [REPEALER.] 

1& Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 82.22. subdivision "2, and 462A.201. subdivision ~ are repealed. 

ill Minnesota Rules, part 2805.1200, is repealed. 

Sec.31. [EFFECTIVE DATE.] 

Sections 1 to 2.l§.l2,. and 30 are effective October h 1993. 

Sections 10 to 1Z. 20 to 'lL and 29 are effective l!!!y h 1993. 

Section 28 ~ effective retroactive to the effective date of ~e seCtion being amended." 

Amend the title as follows: 

Page 1, line 9, delete "subdivisions 7, 8, and" and insert "subdivision" 

Page 1, line 13, delete "4" and insert "7" 

Page 1, lines 14 and 15, delete "82B,09, subdivision 1;" 

Page 1, line 19, delete "section" and insert "sections" and after the semicolon insert "and 462A.201, subdivision 5;" 

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Economic 
Development, Infrastructure and Regulation Finance. 

, 
The report was adopted. 

Anderson, 1., from the Committee on Local Government and Metropolitan Affairs to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 1147, A bill for an act relating to the city of Floodwood and the towns of Floodwood, Van Buren, Halden, 
Cedar Valley, Ness, Arrowhead, Fine Lakes, and Prairie Lake, and Wlorganized territory 52-21; authorizing 
establishment of a joint ambulance district and imposition of a tax to finance the district. 

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill pass and he Ie-referred to the Corrunittee on Taxes. 

The report was adopted. 

Skoglund from the Committee on Judiciary to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 1153, A bill for an act relating to civil actions; clarifying the limits on recovery for economic loss caused 
by components of manufactured goods; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 604.10. 

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill pass. 

The report waS adopted. 
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Simoneau from the Committee on Health and Human Services to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 1174, A bill for an act relating to health; changing the membership requirements of the board of nursing; 
amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 148.181, subdivision 1. 

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill pass. 

The report was adopted. 

Reding from the Committee on Financial Institutions and Insurance to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 1179, A bill for an act relating to health; implementing recommendations of the Minnesota health care 
commission; defining and regulating integrated service networks; requiring regulation of all health care services not 
provided through integrated 'service networks; establishing data reporting ane!. collection requirements; establishing 
other cost containment measures; providing for voluntary conurutments by health plans and providers to limit the 
rate of growth in total revenues; permitting expedited rulemaking; requiring certain studies; providing penalties; 
appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 3.732, subdivision 1; 60A.02, subdivision la; 
62A.021, subdivision 1; 62A.65; 62E.02, subdivision 23; 62E.10, subdivisions 1 and 3; 62E.11, subdivision 12; 62).03, 
subdivisions 6, 8, and by adding a subdivision; 62).04, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, and by adding a subdivision; 62).09, 
subdivisions 2, 5, and 8; 62).15, subdivisions 1 and 2; 62).17, subdivision 2, and by adding subdivisions; 62).23, by 
adding a subdivision; 62).30, subdivisions 1, 6, and 7; 62).33; 62L.02, subdivisions 16, 26, and 27; 62L.03, subdivisions 
3 and 4; 62L.04, subdivision 1; 62L.05, subdivisions 4 and 6; 62L.09, subdivision 1; 136A.1355, subdivisions 1, 3, 4, and 
by adding a subdivision; 136A.1356, subdivisions 2 and 5; 136A.1357, subdivisions 1 and 4; 137.38, subdivisions 2, 3, 
and 4; 137.39, subdivisions 2 and 3; 137.40, subdivision 3; 144.1484, subdivisions 1 and 2; 214.16, subdivision 3; 
256.9351, subdivision 3; 256.9353, subdivisions 2, 3, 5, and 6; 256.9657, subdivision 3; 295.50, subdivisions 3, 4, 7, and 
by adding subdivisions; 295.51, subdivision 1; 295.52, by adding subdivisions; 295.53, subdivision 1; 295.55, 
subdivision 4; 295.58; and 295.59; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 16B; 62); 62N; 620; 
256; and 295; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 62).17, subdivisions 4, 5, and 6; 62).29; 62L.09, subdivision 
2; 295.50, subdivision 10; and 295.51, subdivision 2; and Laws 1992, chapter 549, article 9, section 19, subdivision 2. 

Reported the same back with the following amendments: 

Page 2, line 5, delete "allows" and insert "allow" 

Page 3, line 5, delete "§." and insert "z" 
Page 4, line 14, delete "may" and insert "shall" 

Page 4, line 15, delete everything after the first comma 

Page 4, line 16, delete "ill" 

Page 4, line 20, delete the semicolon, and insert ".:. The conunissioner may include in the rules the following:" 

Page 4, delete lines 26 to 30 

Renumber the remaining clauses 

Page 6, delete lines 12 to 14 

Pages 8 and 9, delete section 6, and insert: 

"Sec. 6. [62N.06] [PERMmED NETWORK STRUCTURE.] 

Subdivision 1. [NONPROFIT CORPORATION.] A corporation organized under chapter 317 A may operafe one or 
more integrated service networks. A corporation that operates one or more integrated service networks is governed 
£y chapter 317 A. except in the case of a conflict with this chapter, in which case this chapter governs. The corporation 
shall not engage in activities unrelated to integrated service networks, without the prior written approval of the 
commissioner. An entity that is not a corporation organized under chapter 317 A shall not operate a network but may 
establish and own a corporation organized under chapter 317 A to operate one or more networks. 
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Subd. b [SEPARATE ACCOUNTING REQUIRED.] !i corporation operating more than one integrated service 
network must maintain separate accounting and record keeping procedures, acceptable to the conurussioner, for each 
integrated service network." 

Page 9, delete section 7, and insert: 

"Sec. 7. [62N.065] [UNREASONABLE EXPENSES.] 

Integrated service networks are subject to section 62D.19, on the ~ basis!!§. health maintenance organizations. 

Sec. 8. [62N.07] [PURPOSE.] 

The legislature finds that previous cost containment efforts have focused on reducing benefits and services, 
eliminating access to certain provider groups. and otherwise reducing the level of care available. Under!. system of 
overall spending controls. these cost containment approaches will. in the absence of controls on cost shifting, shift 
costs from the ~ to the consumer. to government programs, and to providers in the form of lUlcompensated care. 
The legislature further finds that the integrated service network benefit package should be designed to promote 
coordinated, cost-effective delivery of all health services an enrollee needs without cost shifting. The legislature further 
finds that affordability of health coverage is ~ high priority and that lower cost coverage options should be made 
available through the use of copayments, coinsurance, and deductibles to reduce premium costs rather than through 
the exclusion of services or providers. 

Sec. 9. [62N.075) [COVERED SERVICES.] 

fill. An integrated service network must provide to each person enrolled a comprehensive set of appropriate and 
necessary health services. For purposes of this chapter, "appropriate and necessary" means services needed to 
maintain the enrollee in good health including as a minimum, but not limited !2L emergeney care, inpatient hospital 
and physician care, outpatient health services, and preventative health services. The commissioner may modify this 
definition to reflect changes in commtmity standards, development of practice parameters, ~ technology 
assessments, and other medical innovations. These services must be delivered ~ authorized practitioners acting 
within their scope of practice. An integrated service network i§. not responsible for health services that are not 
appropriate and necessary. 

ill A network may define benefit levels through the ~ of consumer cost sharing but remains financially 
accountable for costs of the full set of comprehensive health services required. 

@ Netvvorks must comply with all continuation and conversion of coverage requirements applicable td health . 
maintenance organizations under state or federal law . 

. ~ Netvvorks must comply with sections 62A.047, 62A.27, and any other coverage of newborn infants, dependent 
children who do not reside with .! covered person, handicapped children and dependents, and adopted children. a 
network providing dependent coverage must comply with section 62A.302. " 

Page 10, line 3, delete "needed" and insert "comprehensive health" 

Page 10, line 4, delete "£y rules adopted £y the" 

Page 10, line 5, delete "commissioner," 

Page 10, line 6, delete everything after the period 

Page 10, delete lines 7 to 11 

Page 10, line 13, delete "needed" and insert "appropriate and necessary health" 
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Page 10, after line 15, insert: 

"Sec. 11. [62N.085] [ESTABLISHMENT OF STANDARDIZED BENEFIT PLANS.] 

,The cOrrmUssioner of health shall adopt emergency and permanent iules to establish not -~ than five 
standardized benefit plans which must he offered .Qy integrated service networks. The plans must comply with the 
requirements of sections 62N.07 to 62N.08 and the other requirements of this chapter. The plans must encompass a 
range of cost sharing options from ill lower premium costs combined with higher enrollee cost sharing, to ill higher 
premium costs combined with lower enrollee cost sharing. A network may offer additional benefits in its discretion. 

Sec. 12. [62N.087] [COST SHARING.] 

.!ru. A network may define benefit levels through the use of consumer cost sharing. For the purposes of this chapter, 
"consumer cost sharing" means copavments, deductibles. coinsurance. and other out-of-pocket expenses paid Qy the 
individual consumer of health care services. 

ill The following principles ~ to, cost sharing in ~ integrated service nemork: 

ill consumers must have!!. voice in decisions regarding cost sharing. and the process for establishing consumer 
cost sharing should have consumer representation and input: 

ill consumer ~ sharing must be administratively feasible and consistent with efforts to reduce the overall 
administrative burden of the health care system: 

ill cost sharing must be based .Q!l income' and an enrollee's ability to E!!Y for servIces and should not create !!. 
barrier to ~ to appropriate and effective services; -

ill cost sharing must be capped at a predetermined annual limit to protect individuals and families from financial 
catastrophe and to protect individuals with substantial health ~ needs; 

ill child health supervision services. immunizations, prenatal care, and other prevention services must not be 
subjected to cost sharing; and 

121 additional requirements for networks should be established to assist enrollees for whom an inducement in 
addition to the elimination of cost sharing is necessary in order to encourage them to use cost-effective preventive 
services. These requirements may include the provision of educational information. assistance or' guidance. and 
opportunities for responsible decision making !!v. enrollees that minimize potential out-of-pocket costs." 

Page 10, delete section 9 

Page 11, line 23, after the period insert "The rules must be consistent with Minnesota Rules. parts 9505.5200 to 
9505.5260 governing participation.Qy health maintenance organizations in public heal'th ~ programs." 

Page tl,-line 28, after "commissioner" insert a comma 

Page II, line 33, after "entity" insert a comma 

Page 15, line 11, delete '?days'" and insert "days" 

Page 20, delete lines 28 to 36 

Page 21, delete lines 1 to 13 

Page 21, line 16, delete "An entity" and insert "A corporation" and delete "under" 

Page 21, line 17, delete everything before "~" 
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Pages 21 and 22, delete section 18 and insert: 

"Sec.21. [62N.18] [INSOLVENCY.] 

Subdivision 1. [EFFECTS ON ENROLLEES.] Corporations that operate an integrated service network are not 
members of the life and health insurance guaranty association under chapter 61B. When! corporation operating!. 
network becomes insolvent. its. enrollees have the right to receive the ~ alternative coverage provided Q:£. the 
comprehensive health association under section 620.181 to enrollees in insolvent health maintenance organizations. 

Subd. b [NOTICE TO ENROLLEES.] Prospective enrollees in an integrated service network must be given, prior 
to their commitment to enroll,!. written notice • .Q!l! form approved ~ the commissioner. describing the effects 2L 
and their rights in the event .2t. an insolvency of the corporation operating the network. ,. 

Page 22, line 23, delete "services" and insert "service" 

Page 23, line 11, delete "greater" and insert "lesser" 

Page 23, line 13, delete "and" and .. insert "or" 

Page 23, delete lines 14 to 18, and insert: 

'ill i!!l amount equal to at least 16-2(3 percent of the sum of all expenditures expected to be incurred in the 
network's first 12 months of operation .Q!i for !!1 existing network, at least 16-2/3 percent of the sum of all 
exp~ditures incurred in the most recent calendar year." 

Page 23, lines 22, 24, 28 and 31, delete "I'and insert "~" 

Page 23, delete lines 34 to 36 

Page 24, delete lines 1 to 8 

Renumber the subdivision.s in sequence 

Page 24, line 26, delete "pledge real" and insert "~all2!, ~ part 2f.!. network's net worth requirementEl:: 
issuing to the network a promissory note fully" 

Page 24, delete line 27 

Page 24, line 30, after the period insert "A promissory note fully secured as described in this subdivision counts 
toward the net worth requirement in the amount of the note." 

Page 24, line 31, after "appraisal" insert "of the real estate securing the promissory note" 

Page 26, line 9, delete everything after "must" and insert "include the hold harmless provision stated in section 
62D.I23, subdivision 1" 

Page 26, delete line 10 

Page 26, line 11, delete everything before the period 

Page 28, line 31, delete "RULES" and insert "IMPLEMENTATION" 

Page 28, line 32, after "!ru" insert "fu:: Januarv .11994," 

Page 28, line 33, delete everything after "shall" 

Page 28, delete lines 34 and 35 

Page 28, line 36, delete everything before the period and insert "report to the legislature recommendations for the 
design and implementation of the all-payer system. The commissioner may use .!! consultant or other technical 
assistance to develop .!! design for the all-payer system" and delete "commissioner" and insert "corrunissioner's 
recommendations~' and delete "in" 
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Page 29, line 1, delete "the rules" 

Page 29, line 23, delete "eliminating" and insert "eliminate" 

Page 29, delete lines 31 to 35, and insert: 

"Jhl On l!!!Y.1. 1994, the regulated all-payer system shall begin to be phased in with full implementation Qy l!!!Y. 
.L 1996. During the transition period. all premium rates and provider fees shall be set in accordance with sections 3 
and~" 

Pages 29 and 3D, delete section 3, and insert: 

"Sec. 3, [620,04] [PROVIDER PRICE RESTRAINTS.] 

Subdivision L [RESTRAINT.] No health care provider, as defined in section 62!.02, subdivision ~ shall2!l or after 
March ~ 1993, increase the price or other charge that i! charges for ~ health ~ service provided to ~ Minnesota 
resident except as permitted under this section. This section does not ~ to So price change agreed to Qy written 
contract prior to March 1. 1993. This section does not ~ to health ~ services provided through integrated 
service networks. The corrurussioner of health shall enforce this section and has, for purposes of this section, all 
enforcement and rulemaking powers otherwise available to the commissioner. 

Subd. b [CERTAlN INCREASES PERMITTED.].@), On and after Ianuary 1.1994, j!health care provider as defined 
in section 62!.03, subdivision.§.z. may increase ~ price 2!: other charge Qy no more than a percentage determined Qy 
adding five percentage points to the percentage change in the regional consumer price index for urban consumers for 
the most recent twelve month period for which that index ~ available as of November b 1993. The commissioner 
of health shall determine, announce, and publish in the state register, no later than December b 1993, the percentage 
increase permitted under this paragraph. To determine the amount of the maximum permitted increase in .e price 
or charge. the percentage determined under this paragraph is applied to the price .Q!: charge used as of lanuary b 1993. 

ill On or after lanuary .1. 1995. an increase in a price 2!: charge is permitted in addition to the increase permitted 
under paragraph.!ill.:. The permitted maximum increase ~ determined as under paragraph hl except that the 
percentage is multiplied £Y.:2 and ~ applied to the price 2r. charge used as of Ianuary .1. 1994. 

Sec, 4. [620.05] [HEALTH CARRIER PRICE RESTRAINTS.] 

Subdivision 1. [RESTRAINT.] No health carrier, as defined in section 62A.Oll, shall increase the premiums. 
subscriber charges, enrollee fees or similar charges for its health plans on or after March ~ 1993, so as to increase its 
total revenues ~ Minnesota resident covered £y its health plans, except M permitted under this section. 1ms 
subdivision does not prohibit an increase in the charge for ~ particular health plan, so long as the health carrier's 
aggregate revenues ~ covered Minnesota resident for all of its health plans do not increase. This section does not 
~ to integrated service networks or to filings for rate increases or adjustments submitted to the commissioners 
of commerce or health prior to March ~ 1993. 

Subd. b [CERTAlN lNCREASES PERMITTED,]!l health carrier may increase its charges 2!l and after Ianuarv 1. 
1994. and.Q!! and after lanuary b 1995. ~ ~ to increase its revenues ~ covered Minnesota resident. to the extent 
permitted under subdivision 4. 

Subd, 2. [ENFORCEMENT.] The commissioners of health and commerce shall enforce this section with respect to 
the health carriers that each commissioner respectively regulates. Each commissioner has under this section all 
enforcement and rulemaking authority that the commissioner otherwise has with respect to the health carrier. 

Subd, ~ [CERTAlN lNCREASES PERMITTED,] Any increased charges under subdivision 2 must be approved in 
advance Qy the relevant commissioner under subdivision ~ The relevant commissioner shall disapprove any 
requested increase in revenues ~ covered person, unless the health carrier provides actuarial analysis establishing, 
to the satisfaction of the commissioner, that the health carrier i§. fully passing on to its customers the health care 
provider price restraints provided under section 3. An increase in revenues permitted under subdivision ~ and this 
subdivision must not exceed the percentages provided under section 3 for health care providers. The commissioner 
may consider and take into account substantial changes in So health carrier's ~ of health plans and ~ of persons 
covered if necessary to prevent evasion of this section. 



892 JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE [29TH DAY 

Subd.2,. [NEW PRODUCTS.] No health carrier may offer 2!:. issue i!= health plan form or certificate form unless 
the health carrier has provided the relevant commissioner with actuarial analysis establishing, to the satisfaction of 
the commissioner. that the proposed charges or method of determining charges takes account of the price restraints 
on health care providers under section 3. This subdivision applies. without limitation. to products sold in the small 
employer market under chapter 62L. If ~ form covered ~ this subdivision has not. as of Ianuary 1. 1994 or Ianuary 
L,I99S. been in existence during the entire previous calendar year. M!Y. revenue increase otherwise permitted!!y' this 

. section must be prorated, based upon the fraction of the prior calendar year in which the form ~ available for 
purchase." 

Page 30, line 15, delete ";!" and insert "~' 

Page 84, line 9, after the period insert tit! health carrier shalL at the time of first issuance or renewal of a health 
benefit plan 2!:2£ after l!!!y.1.1993, credit against any preexisting condition limitation or exclusion permitted under 
this section, the time period prior to .I!:!!y 1. 1993, during which ~ eligible employee or dependent was covered Qy 
qualifying existing coverage or qualifying prior coverage. if the person has maintained continuous coverage." 

Page 87, after line 11, insert: 

"Sec. 9. [REPEALEK] 

Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 62L.09. subdivision k. is repealed." 

Page 87, line 12, delete "2" and insert "10" 

Page 92, line 12, after the period insert "f!. health carrier shall. at the time of first issuance or renewal of a health 
plan 2!l Q!. after .l!!!Y 1. 1993, credit against any preexisting condition limitation or exclusion permitted under this 
section. the time period prior to h!J.y, 1. 1993. during which the person ~ covered £y qualifying existing coverage 
or qualifying prior coverage, as defined in section 62L.02, if the person has maintained continuous coverage." 

Renumber the sections in sequence 

Correct internal references 

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Education. 

The report was adopted. 

Skoglund from the Committee on Judiciary to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 1191, A bill for an act relating to trusts; prohibiting trustees from exercising certain powers; proposing 
coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 501B. 

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill pass. 

The report was adopted. 

Kahn from the Committee on Governmental Operations and Gambling to-which was referred: 

H. F. ,No. 1199, A bill for an act relating to state government; the legislative commission on employee relations; 
modifying provisions relating to certain plans; ratifying certain salaries; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 
43A.18, subdivision 4; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 43A.24, subdivision 3. 
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Reported the same back with the following amendments: 

Page I, after line 8, insert: 

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 15A.083, subdivision 4, is amended to read: 

Subd.4. [RANGES FOR OTHER JUDICIAL POSITIONS.] Salaries or salary ranges are provided for the following 
positions in the judicial branch of government. The appointing authority of any position for which a salary range has 
been provided shall fix the individual salary within the prescribed range, considering the qualifications and overall 
performance of the employee. The supreme court s,hall set the salary of the state court administrator and the salaries 
of district court administrators. The salary of the state court administrator or a district court administrator may not 
exceed the salary of a district court judge. If district court administrators die, the amounts of their unpaid salaries 
for the months in which their deaths occur must be paid to their estates. The salaries of the district administrators 
of the second, fourth, and sixth judicial districts may be supplemented by the appropriate county board in an amount 
not to exceed $10,000 per year. The salary supplement may be made effective only until January I, 1988. The salary . 
of the state public defender shall be 95 percent of the salary of the attorney general. 

Board on judicial standards 
executive director 

Page 2, delete lines 18 to 26 

Page 2, line 27, delete "Subd.;t." and insert "Subdivision 1." 

Page 2, after line 30, insert: 

Salary -or Range 
Effective 
July 1, 
~1994 

$44,000 - $69,OOG $70,000" 

"Subd. b [UNIT 1.] The collective bargaining agreement between the state of Minnesota and state bargaining unit 
.1. represented Qy the Minnesota law enforcement association. approved Qy the legislative commission on employee 
relations on March ~ 1993, ~ ratified. 

Sec. 4.· [SETTLEMENT DOCUMENTS.] 

The department of employee relations must complete the uniform collective bargaining agreement settlement 
documents prescribed under Minnesota Statutes, section 179A.04, subdivision ~ clause .fu1. for collective bargaining 
agreements effective after Tune ~ 1993. 

Sec. S. [STUDY; RECOMMENDATIONS.] 

The legislative commission on employee relations must study and make recommendations to the legislature 
regarding the criteria Qv. which the community college system assigns positions in the professional employees unit. 
unit 214, to the classified or unclassified service. The report must be completed Qy February .1. 1994. " 

Page 2, line 35, before "Sections" insert "Section 1~ effective l.!!!y 1. 1994." and delete "1 to~" and insert ".f. to.1" 

Renwnber the sections in sequence 

Amend the title as follows: 

Page 1, line 4, after "salaries" insert "and a bargaining agreement; requiring certain reports and documents" 

Page 1, line 5, delete "section" and insert "sections 15A.083, subdivision 4; and" 

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Ways and 
Means. 

The report was adopted. 



894 JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE [29TH DAY 

Skoglund ' from the Committee on Judiciary to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 1220, A bill for an act relating to crimes; prohibiting persons from interfering with access to medical 
facilities; prescribing penalties; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 609. 

Reported the same back with the following amendments: 

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert: 

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 488A.I01, is amended to read: 

488A.IOI [COUNTY ATTORNEY AS PROSECUTOR, NOTICE TO COUNTY.] 

A municipality or other subdivision of government seeking to use the county attorney for violations enumerated 
in section 488A.I0, subdivision 11 shall notify the county board of its intention to use the services of the county 
attorney at least 60 days prior to the adoption of hoard's annual budget each year. A municipality may enter into 
an agreement with the COlUlty board and the county attorney to provide prosecution services for ~ criminal offense 
.Q!! ~ case-by-case basis. 

Sec. 2. [609.749] [INTERFERENCE WITH ACCESS TO MEDICAL FACILITIES; PENALTY.] 

Subdivision 1. [DEFlNITIONS.] For the purposes of this section, the terms defined in this subdivision have the 
meanings given them. 

~ "Medical facility" means a hospital or other health institution licensed under sections 144.50 to 144.56 or defined 
under section 144.561, or an ~ dinic,.Q!: office operated under the direction of the commissioner of health or a 
community health board. ~ defined- in section 14SA.02. 

ill "Person" does not include: 

ill the chief executive officer of the medical facilityi 

ill a designee of the chief executive officer of the medical facilityi 

ill ~ agent of the medical facilityi Or 

ill ~ law enforcement officer. 

Subd. b. [OBSTRUCTING ACCESS PROHIBITED.] !1 person ~S!!illY of i! gross misdemeanor who, with the intent 
to inhibit or block access to a medical facility. physically obstructs or impedes. or attempts to obstruct or impede ~ 
individual's passage. 

Subd.l. [NOT APPLICABLE.] Nothing in this section shall be construed to impair the right of!!!}Y individual or 
group to engage in speech protected Qv. the United States Constitution or the Minnesota Constitution. including but 
not limited to peaceful and lawful picketing. 

Subd.1,. [CIVIL REMEDIES.] !i!l.!1Ei!!!Y. who is aggrieved £y an act prohibited £y this section may bring!!!! action 
for damages, injunctive or dedaratory relief, ~ appropriate. in district court ,against any person or entity who has 
violated or has conspired to violate this section. 

ill fl ~ who prevails in ~ civil action under this subdivision is entitled to recover from the violator damages, 
costs. attorney's fees, and other relief as determined Qv. the court. In addition to all other damages. the court may 
award to the aggrieved E.ill!Y. ~ civil penalty of !!E. to $1.000 for each violation . 

.!fl The remedies provided Qv. this subdivision are in addition to any other legal or equitable remedies the aggrieved. 
E.ill!Y. may have and are not intended to diminish or substitute for those remedies or to be exclusive. 

Sec. 3. [EFFECTIVE DATE.] 

Sections 1 and 2 are effective the day following final enactment and ~ to acts committed on or after that date." 
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Delete the title and insert: 

"A bill for an act relating to crimes; prohibiting persons from interfering with access to medical facilities; prescribing· 
penalties; authorizing civil and equitable remedies; amending Mirmesota Statutes 1992, section 488A.I01; proposing 
coding fo'i- new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 609." 

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass. 

The report was adopted. 

Skoglund from the Committee on Judiciary to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 1280, A bill for an act relating to criminal and juvenile justice information; providing for implementation 
and oversight of integrated criminal justice information systems; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 
1992, section 241.012, subdivision 1; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 299C. 

Reported the same back with the following amendments: 

Page I, after line 8, insert: 

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 168.345, is amended by adding a subdivision to read: 

Subd.;h [REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION; SURCHARGE ON FEE.] The commissioner shall impose a surcharge 
of 25 cents Q!2 each fee charged !!y the commissioner under section 13.03, subdivision ~ for copies Q!. electronic 
transmittal of public information concerning motor vehicle registrations. The commissioner shall forward the 
surcharges collected under this subdivision to the commissioner of finance Q!! a monthly basis. Upon receipt. the 
commissioner of finance shall credit the surcharges to the general fund. 

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 171.12, i's amended by adding a subdivision to read: 

Subd. §.,. [REQUES1S FOR INFORMATION; SURCHARGE ON FEE.] The commissioner shall impose a surcharge 
of 25 cents Q!2 each fee charged. !!y the commissioner under section 13.03, subdivision ~ for copies Q!. electronic 
transmittal of_ public information concerning driver's license and Minnesota identification card applicants. The 
commissioner shall forward the surcharges collected under this subdivision to the commissioner of finance on ! 
monthly basis. Upon receipt. the commissioner of finance shall credit the surcharges to the general fund." 

Page 3, after line 27, insert: 

"Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 299C.l0, is amended to read: 

299C.l0 [IDENTIFICATION DATA.] 

Subdivision 1. [LAW ENFORCEMENT DUTY.] It is hereby made the duty of the sheriffs of the respective counties 
and of the police officers in cities of the first, second, and third classes, under the direction of the chiefs of police in 
such cities, to take or ·cause to be. taken immediately finger and thumb prints, photographs, and such other 
identification data as may. he requested or required by the superintendent of the bureau; of all persons arrested for 
a felony, gross misdemeanor, of all juveniles committing felonies as distinguished from those committed by adult 
offenders, of all persons reasonably believed by the arresting officer to be fugitives from justice, of all persons in 
whose possession, when arrested, are found concealed firearms or other dangerous weapons, burglar tools or outfits, 
high-power explosives, or articles, machines, or appliances usable for an unlawful purpose and reasonably believed 
by the arresting officer to be intended for such purposes~ and within 24 hours thereafter to forward such fingerprint 
records and other identification data on such forms and in such manner as may be prescribed by the superintendent 
of the bureau of criminal apprehension. 

Subd. b [LAW ENFORCEMENT EDUCATION.] The sheriffs and police officers who take finger and thumb prints 
must obtain training in the proper methods of taking and transmitting finger prints under this section consistent with 
bureau requirements. 
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Subd . .1. [BUREAU DUTY.] The bureau must enter in the criminal records system finger and thumb prints within 
five working days after they are received under this section." 

Page 5, line 2, delete "~biennial" and insert "~annual" 

Page 5, after line 22, insert: 

"ffil two public defenders appointed !'!y the board of public defense;" 

Renumber the clauses in sequence 

Page 5, line 30, delete "citizens" and insert "public members" 

Page 5, lines 32 and 34, delete "a member" and insert "two members" 

Page 6, lines 17 and 18, delete "$ ....... " and insert "$25,000" 

Page 6, lines 20 and 21, delete "for the purposes of' and insert "to reimburse local correctional agencies for costs 
incurred to comply with" 

Page 6, line 21, delete "1" and insert "3" 

Page 6, line 22, delete "$ ....... " and insert "$110,000" 

Page 6, line 23, delete "$ ....... " and insert "$100,500" 

Page 6, line 29, delete "$ ....... " and insert "$174,600" 

Page 6, line 30, delete "$ ....... " and insert "$152,100" 

Page 6, line 38, delete "$ ....... " and insert "$129,200" 

Page 6, line 39, delete "$ ...... ." and insert "$99,120" 

Page 6, line 46, delete "$ ...... ." and insert "$125,000" 

Page 7, after line 6, insert: 

"Sec. 6. [REPEALER.] 

Section ~ is repealed effective December ~ 1996," 

Renumber the sections in sequence 

Amend the title as follows: 

Page 1, line 6, delete "section 241.012" and insert "sections 168.345, by adding a subdivision; 171.12, by adding a 
subdivision; 241.021" and after "1;" insert "and 299C.l0i" 

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Economic 
Development, Infrastructure and Regulation Finance. 

The report was adopted. 



29TH DAY] THuRSDAY, APRIL 1, 1993 897 

Anderson, I., from the Committee on Local Government and Metropolitan Affairs to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 1296, A bill for an act relating to Pine county; permitting the county board to extend certain tern-porary 
land use controls. . 

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill pass and be placed on the Consent Calendar. 

The report was adopted: 

Anderson, I., from the Committee on Local Government and Metropolitan Affairs to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 1353, A bill for an act relating to Aitkin county; permitting a local liquor and restaurant tax. 

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill pass and he Ie-referred to the Committee on Taxes. 

The report was adopted. 

Anderson, I., from the Committee on Local Government and Metropolitan Affairs to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 1419, A bill for an act relating to Cook county; providing for the imposition of a sales tax and motor 
vehicle excise tax on sales transactions in Cook county; providing for the use of the sales tax revenues; authorizing 
the issuance of bonds to finance the expansion of and -improvements to the North Shore hospital. 

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Taxes. 

The report was adopted. 

Sarna from the Committee on Commerce and Economic Development to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 1446, A bill for an act relating to economic development; creating an urban challenge grant program; 
requiring rulemaking; appropriating money; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 116M. 

Reported the same back with the following amendments: 

Page 4, line 35, delete "$100,000" and insert "$150,000" 

Page 5, delete lines 9 to 11 

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass and be re-referred to the Committee on 
Governmental Operations and Gambling. 

The report was adopted. 

Anderson, 1., from the Committee on Local Government and Metropolitan Affairs to which was referred: 

H. F. No. 1454, A bill for an act relating to the city of Hutchinson; permitting the city to erect certain signs. 

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill pass and be placed on the Consent Calendar. 

The report was adopted. 
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Simoneau from the Committee on Health and Human Services to which was referred: 

S. F. No. 247, A bill for an act relating to medical records; clarifying a patient's right of access to medical records; 
amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.335, by adding a subdivision. 

Reported the same back with the following amendments: 

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert: 

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.335, is amended by adding a subdivision to read: 

Subd.3b. [INDEPENDENT MEDICAL EXAMINATION.] The provisions of this section which i!PP!Y to i! patient 
and a patient's health records also i!PP!Y to ~ subject of an independent medical examination and the subject's health 
records. Notwithstanding subdivision ~ a provider may release health records created ~ part of ~ independent 
medical examination to the third ~ who requested or paid for the examination. 

Sec. 2. [EFFECTIVE DATE; APPLICATION.] 

Section 1 is effective the day following final enactment and applies to health records created before, Q!1. 2£ after 
that date. Nothing in section 1 creates a physician-patient relationship." 

Delete the title and insert: 

"A bill for an act relating to medical records; clarifying a patient's right of access to medical records; amending 
Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 144.335, by adding a subdivision." 

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Judiciary. 

The report was adopted. 

Simoneau from the Committee on Health and Human Services to which was referred: 

S. F. No. 419, A bill for an act relating to health care; modifying and making corrections to the health right act; 
amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 43A.317, subdivisions 2, 7, and 10; 62A.011, subdivision 3; 62A.021, 
subdivision 1; 62A.65, subdivision 5; 62J.04, subdivisions 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7; 62}.09, subdivisions 1, 2, and 6; 62J.15, 
subdivision 2; 62).17, subdivisions 2, 4, 5, and 6; 62).19; 62).23;62).29, subdivisions 1 and 4; 62).30, subdivisions 4, 7, 
8, and 10; 62).31, subdivisions 2 and 3; 62).32, subdivisions 1 and 4; 62).34, subdivisions 2 and 3; 62L.02, subdivisions 
8,11,15, and 16, and by adding a subdivision; 62L.03, subdivisions 2 and 5; 62L.05, subdivisions 1,4, and 10; 62L.09, 
subdivision 2; 62L.13, subdivisions 1, 3, and 4; 62L.14, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, and 9; 62L.15, subdivision 2; 
62L.16, subdivision 5, and by adding a subdivision; 62L.17, subdivisions 1 and 4; 62L.19; 62L.20, subdivisions 1 and 
2; 144.147, subdivision 4; 144.1481, subdivision 1; 256.045, subdivision 10; 256.9353, subdivisions 2, 6, and by adding 
a subdivision; 256.9354; 256.9355, subdivision 3; 256.9356, subdivision 2; 256.9357; 256B.0644; Laws 1992, chapter 549, 
articles 1, section 15; 2, sections 24 and 25; 3, section 24; and 4, section 18; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota 
Statutes, chapter 62J; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 62J.05, subdivision 5; 62J.09, subdivision 3; and 62J.21. 

Reported the same back with the following amendments: 

Page 40, line 30, delete "SUBROGATION" and insert "LIEN" and delete "commissioner" and insert "state agency" 

Page 40, line 32, delete "commissioner" and insert "agency" and delete "care" and insert "the covered health services" 

Page 40, lines 34 and 35,' delete "injuries necessitating" and insert "the occurrence that necessitated the payment 
for the" 
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Page 40, line 35, after the period insert "All liens under this section shall be subject to' the provisions of 
section 256.015." 

Page 42, after line 5, insert: 

"Subd. 1a. [COOPERATION.] To be eligible for MinnesotaCare, individuals must cooperate with the state agency 
to identify potentially liable third E!.!:!Y payers and assist the state in obtaining third ~ payments. "Cooperation" 
includes, but i! not limited ~ identifying any-third ~ who may he liable for ~ and services provided under 
MinnesotaCare to the enrollee. providing relevant information to assist the state in pursuing a potentially liable third 
~ and completing forms necessary to ~ third E!!!Y payments." 

Page 55, after line 35, insert: 

"Sec. 13. MiImesota Statutes 1992, section 144.1486, is ,amended to read: 

144.1486 [RURAL COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTERS.] 

The commissioner of health shall develop and implement a program to establish community health centers in rural 
areas of Minnesota that are underserved by health care providers. The program shall provide rural conununities and 
conununity organizations with technical assistance, capital grants for start-up costs, and short-term assistance with 
operating costs. The teclmical assistance component of the program must provide assistance in review of practice 
management, market analysis, practice feasibility analysis, medical records system. analysis, and scheduling and 
patient flow analysis. The program must: (1) ~clude a local match requirement for s,tate dollars received; (2) require 
local communities, through instrumentalities of the state of Mirmesota or nonprofit boards comprised of local 
residents, to operate and own their community's health care program; (3) encourage the use of midlevel practitioners; 
and (4) incorporate a quality assurance strategy that provides regular evaluation of clinical performance and allows 
peer review comparisons for rural practices. The commissioner shall report to the legislature on implementation of 
the program by February 15, 1994." 

Page 55, line 36, delete "13" and insert "14" 

Page 56, line 1, delete "12'! and insert "13" 

Amend the title as follows: 

Page 1, line 21, after "1;" insert "144.1486;" 

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Financial 
Institutions and Insurance. 

The report was adopted. 

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILLS 

H. F. Nos. 37, 199,431,444,511,580,588,655,665,670,732,747,846,879,893,902, 976, 994,1018,1058,1095,1153, 
1174, 1191, 1220, 1296 and 1454 were read for the second time. 
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INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING OF HOUSE BILLS 

The following House Files were introduced: 

Lourey, Greiling, McGuire, Goodno and Perlt introduced: 

H. F. No. 1612; A bill for an act relating to ethics in government; establishing standards of conduct; changing duties 
of the ethical practices board; imposing penalties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 10A.02, subdivision 12; 
lOA.09, subdivision 5; 13.99, subdivisions 4 and 5; and 43A.38; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, 
chapter lOA; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 10A.02, subdivisions 11 and 11a. 

The bill was read .for the first time and referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations and Gambling. 

Dempsey and Lindner introduced: 

H. F. No. 1613, A bill for an act relating to the criminal code; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 609.1352, 
-by adding a subdivision; and 609.346, subdivision 5. ' 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary. 

Lasley; Bauerly; Johnson, V.; Kelso and Olson, E., introduced: 

H. F. No. 1614, A bill for an act relating to transportation and transit; providing for transit system throughout 
Minnesota; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 123.39, subdivision 8b. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred. to the Committee on Transportation and Transit. 

Van Dellen; Commers; Olson, M" and Bergson introduced: 

H. F. No. 1615, A bill for an act proposing an amendment to the Minnesota Constitution; adding a section to article 
IY; providing for initiative and referendum. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Rules and Legislative AdmiJ)istration. 

Van Dellen, Abrams, Erhardt, Bergson and Rhodes introduced: 

H. F. No. 1616, A bill for an act proposing an amendment to the Minnesota Constitution, article Xl, section 1; 
providing limits on appropriations. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Rules and Legislative AdmiJ)istration. 

Leppik introduced: 

H. F. No. 1617, A bill for an act relating to the institute for child and adolescent sexual health; requiring 
continuation of planning for the institute; appropriating money. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services. 

Sarna and Milbert introduced: 

H. F. No. 1618, A bill for an act relating to corrunerce; regulating late fees charged by wire communication 
companies; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 238. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the ·Committee on Commerce and Economic Development. 
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McCollum, Mariani, Garcia and Lieder introduced: 

H. F. No. 1619, A bill for an act relating to· transportation; authorizing cities to impose and collect transportation 
utility fees; providing for the determination of average trip generation ranges; providing for notice and appeal of fees; 
proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 465. 

The bill was read for the first time and-referred to the Committee on Transportation and Transit. 

Waltman introduced: . 

. H. F. No. 1620, A bill for an act relating to taxation; motor vehicle excise; exempting unmarked vehicles used by 
county sheriffs; exempting vehicles used by fire departments for initial response to medical emergencies; amending 
Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 2978.03. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Conunittee on Taxes. 

Waltman introduced: 

H. F. No. 1621, A bill for an act relating ·to shoreland management; authorizing municipalities to allow 
redevelopment of certain shoreland property on Lake Pepin; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 103F.221, 
subdivision 1. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Environment and-Natural Resources. 

Bergson, Trimble, Mahon, Rodosovich and Rhodes introduced: 

H. F. No. 1622, A bill for an act relating to state government; revising procedures governing state contracts for 
professional, technical, and 'consultant services; limiting uses of funds saved from leaving positions vacant; limiting 
funds spent on certain contracts; amending MinneSota Statutes 1992, section 16B.17, by adding a subdivision. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the: Committee on Governmental operations and Gambling. 

Haukoos, Simoneau, Stanius, Gruenes and Jennings introduced: 

H. F. No. 1623, A bill for an act relating to shelters for battered women; transferring the funding and authority for 
adm:inistration of shelter programs to the commissioner of corrections; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 
256.01, subdivision 2; 2560.04; 256D.05, subdivision 1; and 2560.06, subdivision 5; proposing coding for new law in 
Minnesota Statutes, chapter 611A; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 2560.05, subdivisions 3 and 3a. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Health and Human ,Services. 

Bertram introduced: 

H. F. No. 1624, A bill for an act relating to taxation; fermented malt beverages; changing the brewers credit; 
extending the credit to importers; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 297C.02, subdivision 3. 

The bill was read for the ,first time and referred to the Committee on Taxes. 

Bertram and Krueger introduced: 

H. F. No. 1625, A bill for an act relating to crime; expanding scope of registration provision for sex offenders to 
include other predatory offenders; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992; section 243.166 .. subdivisions 1, 2, 3, and 6. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary. 
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Ozment, Lynch, Greiling, McCollum and Tomassoni introduced: 

H. F. No. 1626, A bill for an act relating to education; providing equalized program revenue for adults with 
disabilities; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 121.88, subdivision 7; and 124.2715, subdivisions 1, 2, and 3. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Education. 

Asch, Opatz, Evans, Kalis and Rhodes introduced: 

H. F. No. 1627, A bill for an act relating to agriculture; clarifying procedures for the use of certain organisms; 
amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 116C.91, subdivisions 3, 6, 7, and by adding a subdivision; and 116C.94. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources. 

Kahn, Knicke~bocker, Osthoff, Hausman and Jennings introduced: 

H. F. No. 1628, A bill for an act relating to taxation; imposing a tax on the value of sports bookmaking bets; 
proposing coding for new law in Mirmesota Statutes, chapter 349. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Taxes. 

Delmont, Skoglund, Luther, Jacobs and Osthoff introduced: 

H. F. No. 1629, A bill for an act relating to traffic regulations; increasing fine for speeding violation; appropriating. 
money for highway work zone safety enforcement and public education efforts; amending Minnesota. Statutes 1992, 
section 169.14, subdivision 5d. . 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Transportation and Transit. 

Johnson, V., and Haukoos introduced: 

H. F. No. 1630, A bill for an act relating to economic development; limiting certain daily payments; amending 
Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 469.011, subdivision 4. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Economic Development, Infrastructure and 
Regulation Finance. 

Dom introduced: 

H. F. No. 1631, A bill for an act relating to the city of Mankato; extending the duration of a tax increment financing 
district. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Taxes. 

Tompkins and Pawlenty introduced: 

H. F. No. 1632, A bill for an act relating to health; providing an exception to the nursing home moratorium for 
subacute care; allowing medical assistance coverage of subacute care; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 
144A.071, subdivision 3; and 256B.431, subdivision 2e. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services. 

• 
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Blatz, Carruthers, Pugh and Smith introduced: 

H. p, No. 1633, A bill for an act relating to motor vehicles; authorizing issuance of special arts license plates; 
creating special account for the arts;. appropriating money; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, 
chapter 168. 

The bill was read fo,r the first time and referred to the Committee on Transportation and Transit. 

Mosel. Vellenga, Bauerly and Onnen introduced: 

H. F. No. 1634, A bill for an act relating to education; authorizing a fund transfer for the Glencoe school district. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Education. 

Evans, Kahn, Jefferson, Krueger and Knickerbocker introduced: 

H. F. No. 1635, A bill for an act relating to commerce; regulating registered combined charitable organizations; 
amending Minnesota statutes 1992, section 309.501. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Goverrunental Operations and Gambling. 

Pugh introduced: 

H. F. No. 1636, A bill for an act relating to commerce; franchises; regulating actions; amending Minnesota Statutes 
1992, section 8OC.17, subdivisions 1 and 5. 

The bill was rea.d for the first time and referred to the Committee on Conunerce and Economic Development. 

Greiling, Carlson, Bergson and Ozment introduced: 

H. F. No. 1637, A bill for an act relating to education; providing. for the assignment of nonlicensed employees 
affected by school district consolidation to the newly created distrkt; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 
12223, subdivision 18, and by adding a subdivision. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Education. 

Winter introduced: 

H. F. -No. 1638, A bill for an act relating to education; modifying the child care grant program administered by the 
higher education coordinating board; amending MiIUlesota Statutes 1992, section 136A.125, subdivisions 2, 4, and by 
adding a subdivision. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Education. 

Wenzel introduced: 

H. F. No. 1639, A bill for an act relating to agriculture; changing the bases for certain milk payments; amending 
Minnesota Statutes 1992, sectiOrt 32.25, subdivision 1. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Agriculture. 
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Frerichs, Munger and Ozment introduced: 

H. F. No. 1640, A bill for an act relating to solid waste; placing waste composting higher on the state's waste 
management hierarchy; setting recycling and waste composting goals; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 
11SA.02; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter lISA. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources. 

Brown, C., introduced: 

H. F. No. 1641, A bill for an act relating to education; validating a referendum levy. 

The-bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Education. 

Greiling, Vellenga, Leppik, Seagren and Kelley introduced: 

H. F. No. 1642, A bill for an act relating to education; changing educational effectiveness; creating school 
improvement grants; creating requirements for financial training for school boards; changing training and experience 
revenue; creating cost-of-living revenue; creating school restruchlring pilots and teacher compensation task forces; 
appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992? sections 120.105; 121.918; 123.33, by adding a subdivision; 
123.951; 124A.22, subdivisions 1, 4a, 4b, and by adding a subdivision; 124A.28, subdivision 1; 124A.29, subdivision 
1; and 126.70, subdivision 2a; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 121. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Education. 

Bauerly, Lasley, Vellenga, Bertram and Koppendrayer introduced: 

H. F. No. 1643, A bill for an act relating to education; placing limits on financial arrangements for PSEO courses 
provided according to agreement; counting each PSEO shldent as a portion of a pupil unit; amending Minnesota 
Statutes 1992, sections 123.3514, subdivisions 6 and 6c; and 124.17, subdivision 1, and by adding a subdivision. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Education. 

Mosel introduced: 

H. F. No. 1644, A bill for an act relating to education; clarifying which cooperating districts are eligible to levy for 
severance and allowing certain districts to levy for severance; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 124.2725, 
subdivision 15. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Education. 

Krueger and Long introduced: 

H. F. No. 1645, A bill for an act relating to state government; establishing an innovative program initiative to 
encourage innovation in state agencies; permitting waivers from certain statutes, rules, policies, and procedures; 
appropriating money; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 16B. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations and Gambling. 
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Kahn, Osthoff and Knickerbocker introduced: 

H. F. No. 1646, A bill for an act relating to gaming; authorizing the state lottery to operate video lottery terminals; 
prohibiting the sale of pull-tabs to the public; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 297 A.259; 349.12, 
subdivisions 18,21,22,23,24, and 31; 349.163, subdivision 5; 349.168, subdivision 3; 349.212, subdivisions 1, 4, and 
7; 349.2121, subdivisions 1, 2, and 2a; 349.2125, subdivision 1; 349A.01, subdivisions 7, 8, 11, 12, and by adding 
subdivision~; 349A.04; 349A.05; 349A.06, subdivisions 1,5,6,8,10, and by adding subdivisions; 349A.08, subdivisions 
1,5, and 8; 349A.09, subdivision 1; 349A.10, subdivisions 2, 3, and 4; 349A.11; 349A.12, subdivisions 1 and 2; 349A.13; 
609,651, subdivision 1; and 609.75, subdivision 4; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 349A; 
repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 349.163, subdivision 7; 349.172; 349.174; 349.19, subdivision 10; and 349.211, 
subdivision 2a. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations and Gambling. 

Kahn, Bertram, Osthoff and Knickerbocker introduced: 

H. F. No. 1647, A bill for an act relating to lawful gambling; authorizing the use of pull-tab dispensing devices; 
amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 349.12, subdivision 18; 349.13; and 349.151, subdivision 4. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations and Gambling. 

Kahn, Solberg, Osthoff, Knickerbocker and Pugh introduced: 

H. F. No, 1648, A bill for an act relating to lawful gambling; authorizing and r~gulating the use of electronic 
pull-tab dispensing devices; imposing taxes; requiring the board to adopt rules; :'appropriating money to the 
commissioner of human services for compulsive gambling programs; amending M~esota Statutes 1992, sections 
349,12, subdivisions 18 and 32; 349.18, subdivision 1; ap.d 349.212, subdivision 7, and by adding a subdivision; 
proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 349. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations and Gambling. 

Kelley, Pawlenty, Neary and Pugh introduced: 

H. F. No. 1649, A bill for an act relating to state and local government; establishing the Minnesota information 
netw'ork; establishing the metropolitan public information network pilot program; authorizing rulemaking; proposing 
coding for new law as Minnesota Statutes, chapter 116S. 

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations and Gambling. 

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE 

The following messages were received from the Senate: 

Madam Speaker: 

] hereby announce the passage by the Senate of the following House File, herewith returned: 

H. F. No. 203, A bill for an i!:ct relating to occupations and professions; board of medical practice; modifying 
requirements for licensing United States, Canadian, and foreign medical school graduates; providing for temporary 
permits; providing for residency permits; adding a requirement for students exempt from penalties for practicing 
without a license; adding to licensed professionals subject to reporting obligations; indemnifying board members, 
consultants, and persons employed by the board; adding registration requirements for physical therapists from other 
states and, foreign-trained physical therapists; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 62A.46, subdivision 7; 
147.02, subdivision 1, and by adding a subdivision; 147.03; 147.037, subdivision 1, and by adding a subdivision; 147.09; 
147.111, subdivision 4; 147.121, subdivision 2; and 148.71, subdivision 2, and by adding a subdivision; proposing 
coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 147. 

PATRICK E. FLAHA YEN, Secretary of the Senate 
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Madam Speaker: 

I hereby annOWlce that the Senate has concurred in and adopted the report of the Conference Committee on: 

H. F. No. 585, A bill for an act relating to human rights; prohibiting unfair discriminatory practices on the basis 
of sexual or affedional orientation; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 363.01, subdivision 23, and by adding 
a subdivision; 363.02, subdivisions I, 2, 4, and by adding a subdivision; 363.03, subdivisions I, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7; 8, and 8a; 
363.05, subdivision 1; 363.11; 363.115; and 363.12, subdivision 1; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, 
chapter 363. 

The Senate has repassed said bill in accordance with the recommendation and report of the Conference Committee. 
Said House File is herewith returned to the House. 

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

S. F. No. 99, A bill for an act relating to towns; clarifying certain provisions for the terms of town supervisor; 
providing for the compen,sation of certain town officers and employees; amending Minnesota -Statutes-1-992, sections 
367.03, subdivision 1; and 367.05, subdivision 1. 

The bill was read for the third time and placed upon its final passage. 

The question was taken on the passage 6f the bill and the roll was called. There were 131 yeas and 0 nays as 
follows: 

Those who voted in the affirmative were: 

Abrams Davids Hausman Krinkie Murphy Reding Tompkins 
Anderson, I. Dawkins Holsten Krueger Neary Rest Trimble 
Anderson, R. Dehler Hugoson Lasley Nelson Rhodes Tunheim 
Asch Delmont Huntley Leppik Ness Rice Van Dellen 
Battaglia Dempsey Jacobs Lieder Olson, E. Rodosovich Vellenga 
Bauerly Dom Jaros Limmer Olson, K. Rukavina Vickerman 
Beard Erhardt Jefferson Lindner Olson, M. Sarna Wagenius 
Bergson Evans Jennings Lourey Onnen Seagren Waltman 
Bertram Farrell Johnson, A. Luther Opatz Sekhon Weaver 
Bettermann Frerichs Johnson, R. Lynch Orenstein Simoneau Wejcman 
Bishop Garcia Johnson, V. Macklin Osthoff Skoglund Welle 
Blatz Girard Kahn Mahon Ostrom Smith Wenzel 
Brown, C. Goocmo Kalis Mariani Ozment Solberg Winter 
Brown, K. Greenfield Kelley McCollum Pauly Sparby Wolf 
Carlson Greiling Kelso Milbert Pawlenty Stanius Worke 
Carruthers Gruenes Kinkel Molnau Pelowski Steensma Workman 
Conuners Gutknecht Klinzing Morrison PerIt Sviggum Spk. Long 
Cooper Hasskamp Knickerbocker Mosel Peterson Swenson 
Dauner Haukoos Koppendrayer Munger Pugh Tomassoni 

The bill was passed and its title agreed to. 

S. P. No. 98, A bill for an act relating to towns; eliminating distribution of certain reports relating to town roads 
and bridges; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 164.03, subdivision 4. 

The bill was read for the third time and placed upon its final passage. 
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The question was taken on the passage of the bill and the roll was- called. There were 131 yeas and 0 nays as 
follows: 

Those who voted in the affirmative were: 

Abrams Davids Hausman Krueger Neary Reding Tompkins 
Anderson, 1. Dawkins Holsten Lasley Nelson Rest Trimble 
Anderson, R- Dehler Hugoson Leppik Ness Rhodes Twlheim 
Asch Dehnont HlUltley Lieder Olson, E. Rice Van Dellen 
Battaglia Dempsey Jacobs Limmer Olson, K. Rodosovich Vellenga 
Bauerly Dom Jaros Lindner Olson, M. Rukavina Vickerman 
Beard Erhardt Jefferson Lourey Onnen Sarna Wageruus 
Bergson Evans Johnson, A. Luther Opatz Seagren Waltman 
Bertram Farrell Johnson, R. Lynch Orenstein Sekhon Weaver 
Bettermann Frerichs Johnson, V. Macklin Orfield Simoneau Wejcman 
Bishop Garcia Kahn Mahon Osthoff Skoglund Welle 
Blatz Girard Kalis Mariani Ostrom Smith Wenzel 
Brown, C. Goodno Kelley McCollum Ozment Solberg Winter 
Brown, K. Greenfield Kelso Milbert Pauly SparlJy Wolf 
Carlson Greiling Kinkel Molnau Pawlenty Stanius Worke 
Carruthers Gruenes Klinzing Morrison Pelowski Steensma Workman 
Commers Gutknecht Knickerbocker Mosel PerIt Sviggum Spk. Long 
Cooper Hasskamp Koppendrayer Munger Pet~rson Swenson 
Dauner Haukoos Krinki~ Murphy Pugh Tomassoni 

The bill was passed and its title agreed to. 

S. F. No. 313; A bill for an act relating to Dakota county; providing for the composition and powers of the county 
housing and redevelopment authority and the county extension committee; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 
383D.41, subdivisions 1, 3, and by adding a subdivision; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, 
chapter 383D. 

The bill was read for the third time and placed upon its final passage. 

The question was taken on the passage of the bill and the roll was called. There were 131 yeas and 0 nays as 
follows: 

Those who voted in the affirmative were: 

Abrams Davids Hausman Krinkie Murphy Reding Tompkins 
Anderson, I. Dawkins Holsten Krueger Neary Rest Trimble 
Anderson, R Dehler Hugoson Lasley Nelson Rhodes Tunheim 
Asch Delmont Huntley Leppik Ness Rice Van Dellen 
Battaglia Dempsey Jacobs Lieder Olson, E. Rodosovich Vellenga 
Bauerly Oom Jaros Limmer Olson, K Rukavina Vickerman 
Beard Erhardt Jefferson Lindner Olson,M. Sarna Wagenius 
Bergson Evans Jennings Lourey Onnen Seagren Waltman 
Bertram Farrell Johnson, A. Luther Opatz Sekhon Weaver 
Bettennann - Frerichs Johnson, R. Lynch Orenstein Simoneau Wejcman 
Bishop Garcia Johnson, V. Macklin Orfield Skoglund Welle 
Blatz Girard Kahn Mahon Ostrom Smith Wenzel 
Brown, C. Goodno Kalis Mariani Ozment Solberg Winter 
Brown, K Greenfield Kelley McCollum Pauly SparlJy Wolf 
Carlson Greiling Kelso Milbert Pawlenty Stanius Worke 
Carruthers Gruenes Kinkel Molnau Pelowski Steensma Workman 
Commers Gutknecht Klinzing Morrison Perlt Sviggum Spk. Long 
Cooper Hasskarnp Knickerbocker Mosel Peterson Swenson 
Dauner Haukoos Koppendrayer Munger Pugh Tomassoni 

The bill was passed and its title agreed to. 
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H. F. No. 113, A bill for an act relating to traffic regulations; specifying that a pedestrian lawfully in a crosswalk 
with pedestrian control signals must be given the right-of-way by all vehicles; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, 
section 169.06, subdivision 6. 

The bill was read for the third time and placed upon its final passage. 

The question was taken on the passage of the bill and the roll was called. There were 131 yeas and 0 nays as 
follows: 

Those who voted in the affirmative were: 

Abrams Davids Hausman Krinkie Murphy Reding Tompkins 
Anderson, I. Dawkins Holsten Krueger Neary Rest Trimble 
Anderson, R. Dehler Hugoson Lasley Nelson Rhodes Tunheim 
Asch Delmont Huntley Leppik Ness Rice Van Dellen 
Battaglia Dempsey Jacobs lieder Olson, E. Rodosovich Vellenga 
Bauerly Dom Jaros Limmer Olson, K. Rukavina Vickerman 
Beard Erhardt Jefferson Lindner Olson, M. Sarna Wagenius 
Bergson Evans jennings Laurey Onnen Seagren Waltman 
Bertram Farrell Johnson, A. Luther Opatz Sekhon Weaver 
BeUermann Frerichs Johnson, R. Lynch Orenstein Simoneau Wejcman 
Bishop Garda johnson, V. Macklin Orfield Skoglund Welle 
Blatz Girard Kahn Mahon Osthoff Smith Wenzel 
Brown, C. Goodno Ka1is Mariani Ostrom Solberg Winter 
Brown, K. Greenfield Kelley McCollum Ozment Sparby Wolf , 
Carlson Greiling Kelso Mi1bert Pauly Stamus Work< 
Carruthers Gruenes Kinkel Molnau Pawlenty Steensma Workman 
Commers Gutknecht Klinzing Morrison Pelowski Sviggum Spk.Long 
Cooper Hasskarnp Knickerbocker Mosel PerIt Swenson 
Dauner Haukoos Koppendrayer Munger Pugh Tomassoni 

The bill was passed and its title agreed to. 

S. F. No. 434, A bill for an act relating to traffic regulations; making technical changes and clarifications; prohibiting 
buses from following too closely; providing exceptions to restrictions on installing television screens in motor vehicles; 
providing for auxiliary lights when headlights are obstructed by snowplow blade; requiring use of shoulder belt when 
motor vehicle is so equipped; providing exception for law enforcement vehicles to restriction on objects hanging 
between driver and windshield; abolishing authority for designating official stations for adjusting vehicle lights and 
brakes; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 169.14, subdivision 10; 169.18, subdivisions 5 and 8; 169.471, 
subdivision 1; 169.56, subdivisions 3, 4, and by adding a subdivision; 169.60; 169.686, subdivision 1; and 169.71, 
subdivision 1; repe~ing MilU1esota Statutes 1992, section 169.77. 

The bill was read for the third time and placed upon its final passage. 

The question was taken on the passage of the bill and the ,roll was called. There were 130 yeas and 0 nays as 
follows: 

Those who voted in the affirmative were: 

Abrams Bishop Dehler Goodno Huntley Kelley Lieder 
Anderson, I. Blatz Delmont Greenfield Jacobs Kelso Limmer 
Anderson, R. Brown, K. Dempsey Greiling Jaros Kinkel Lindner 
Asch Carlson Dom Gruenes Jefferson Klinzing Lourey 
Battaglia Carruthers Erhardt Gutknecht jennings Knickerbocker Luther 
Bauerly Commers Evans Hasskarnp johnson, A. Koppendrayer Lynch 
Beard Cooper Farrell Haukoos Johnson, R. Krinkie Macklin 
Bergson DaW'\er Frerichs Hausman Johnson, V. Krueger Mahon 
Bertram Davids Garcia Holsten Kahn Lasley Mariani 
Bettermann Dawkins Girard Hugoson Kalis Leppik McCollum 
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Milbert Olson, E. Ozment Rice Solberg Tunheirn Wenzel 
Molnau Olson, K Pauly Rodosovich Sparby Van Dellen Winter 
Morrison Olson, M. Pawlenty Rukavina Stanius Vellenga Woll 
Mosel Onnen Pelowski Sarna Steensma Vickerman Worke 
Munger Opatz Perlt , Seagren Sviggum Wagenius Workman 
Murphy Orenstein Pugh Sekhon Swenson Waltman Spk. Long 
Neary Orfield Reding Simoneau Tomassoni Weaver 
Nelson Osthoff Rest Skoglund Tompkins Wejcman 
Ness Ostrom Rhodes Smith Trimble Welle 

The bill was passed and its title agreed to. 

H. F. No. 648, A bill for an act relating to counties; permitting Itasca and Polk counties to consolidate the offices 
of auditor and treasurer. 

The bill was read for the third time and placed upon its final passage. 

The question w~ taken on the passage of the bill and the roll was called. There were 130 yeas and 1 nay as follows: 

Those who voted in the affirmative were: 

Abrams Davids Hausman Krueger Neary ResL Trimble 
Anderson, 1- Dawkins Holsten Lasley Nelson Rhodes Tunheim 
Anderson, R. Dehler Hugoson Leppik Ness Rice Van Dellen 
Asch Delmont Huntley Lieder Olson, E. Rodosovich Vellenga 
Battaglia Dempsey Jacobs Limmer Olson, K. Rukavina Vickerman 
Bauerly Dom Jaros Lindner Olson, M. Sarna Wagenius 
Beard Erhardt Jefferson Lourey Onnen Seagren Waltman 
Bergson Evans Jennings Luther Opatz Sekhon Weaver 
Bertram Farrell Johnson, A. Lynch Orenstein Simoneau Wejcman 
Bettermann Frerichs Johnson, R Macklin Orfield Skoglund Welle 
Bishop Garcia Johnson, V. Mahon Osthoff Smith Wenzel 
Blatz Girard Kahn Mariani Ostrom Solberg Winter 
Brown,C. Goodno Kalis McCollum Ozment Sparby Wolf 
Brown, K. Greenfield Kelley Milbert Pauly Stanius Worke 
Carlson Greiling Kelso Molnau Pawlenty Steensma Workman 
Carruthers Gruenes Klinzing Morrison Pelowski Sviggum Spk. Long 
Commers Gutknecht Knickerbocker Mosel PerIt Swenson 
Cooper Hasskamp Koppen~rayer Munger Pugh Tomassoni 
Dauner Haukoos Krinkie Murphy Reding Tompkins 

Those who voted in the negative were: 

Kinkel 

The bill was passed and its title agreed to. 

CONSIDERATION UNDER RULE 1.10 

Pursuant to rule 1.10, Solberg requested immediate consideration of H. F. No. 661. 

H. F. No. 661 was reported to the House. 
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The Speaker called Bauerly to the Chair. 

Steensma; Bauerly; Wenzel; Koppendrayer; Cooper; Bertram; Mosel; Dauner; Olson, K.; Nelson; Reding; Winter; 
Molnau; Rukavina and BeUermann moved to amend H. F. No. 661, the second engrossment, as follows: 

Page 17, after line 14, insert: 

"Sec. 13. [32A.067] [SALES BELOW RETAIL COST PROHIBITED; EXCEPTION.] 

illlJ! ~ the intent of the legislature that small volume retailers of milk products in Minnesota receive protection 
from unfair competition and predatory pricing .£y large volume retailers. While the legislature views deregulation 
of the retail milk industry as desirable. it is the intent of the legislature to accomplish this goal with ~ minimum of 
negative impact upon small volume retailers. 

ill A retailer may not sell or offer for sale a selected dairy product at a retail price lower than the retailer's basic 
cost. A retailer may not ~ any method. or device in the sale or offer for sale of a selected dairy product that results 
in a violation of this section. This prohibition does not ~ to: 

.ill. ~ sale complying with section 325D.06, clauses ill to i!12!: 

!ill. giving away selected dairy products free if the customer is not required to make a purchase," 

Renumber the sections in sequence 

Correct internal references 

Amend the title accordingly 

A roll call was requested and properly seconded. 

The Speaker resumed the Chair. 

The question was taken on the Steensma et al amendment and the roll was called. There were 92 yeas and 38 nays 
as follows: 

Those who voted in the affirmative were: 

Anderson, I. Dawkins Haukoos Koppendrayer Nelson Rodosovich Wagenius 
Anderson, R. Dehler Holsten Krinkie Ness Rukavina Waltman 
Battaglia Dempsey Hugoson Krueger Olson, E. Sarna Wejcman 
Bauerly Dom Huntley Lieder Olson, K. Sekhon Welle 
Beard Evans Jacobs Lindner Opatz Simoneau Wenzel 
Bergson Farrell Jaros Lourey Orenstein Skoglund Winter 
Bertram Frerichs Jefferson Luther Orfield Solberg Worke 
Bettermann Garcia Johnson, A. Mahon Osthoff Sparby Spk. Long 
Brown,C. Girard Johnson, R. Mariani Ostrom Steensma 
Brown,K Goodno Kalis Molnau Ozment Swenson 
Carruthers Greenfield Kelley Mosel Pelowski Tomassoni 
Cooper Greiling Kelso Munger Perlt Tompkins 
Dauner Gruenes Kinkel Murphy Peterson Vellenga 
Davids Hasskamp Klinzing Neary Rice Vickerman 
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Those who voted in the negative were: 

Abrams Dehnont Knickerbocker McCollum Pawlenty 
Asch Erhardt Lasley MHbert Pugh 
Bishop Gutknecht Leppik Morrison Reding 
Blatz Hausman Limmer Olson, M. Rest 
Carlson Jennings Lynch Onnen Rhodes 
Commers Johnson, V. Macklin Pauly Seagren 

The motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted. 

Smith 
Stanius 
Trimble 
Tunheim 
Van Dellen 
Weaver 

Wolf 
Workman 
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H. F. No. 661, A bill for an act relating to agriculture; regulating dairy trade practices; providing for fees; changing 
enforcement procedures; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 32A.Ol; 32A.02; 32A:04; 32A.05, subdivisions 1, 
4, and by adding subdivisions; 32A.07; 32A.071; 32A.08; and 32A.09, by adding subdivisions; proposing coding for 
new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 32A; repealing Mirmesota Statutes 1992, sections 32A.03; 32A.05, subdivision 
3; and 32A.09, subdivisions 5 and 6. 

The bill was read for the third time~ as amended, and placed upon its final passage. 

The question was taken on the passage of the bill and the roll was called. There were 118 yeas and 12 nays as 
follows: 

,,-, 

Those who voted in the affirmative were: 

Anderson, 1. Davids Hausman Krinkie Nelson Reding Tompkins 
Anderson, R. Dawkins Holsten Krueger Ness Rest Trimble 
Battaglia Dehler Hugoson Lasley Olson, E. Rhodes TW'lheim 
Bauerly Delmont Huntley Lieder Olson, K. Rice Van Dellen 
Beard" Dempsey Jacobs Limmer Olson, M. Rodosovich Vellenga 
Bergson Dorn Jaros Lindner Onnen Rukavina Vickerman 
Bertram Evans Jefferson Lourey Opatz Sarna Wagenius 
Bettermann Farrell Jennings Luther Orenstein Seagren Waltman 
Bishop Frerichs Johnson, A. Lynch Orfield Sekhon Weaver 
Blatz Garcia Johnson, R. Mahon Ostrom Simoneau Wejcman 
Brown, C. Girard Johnson, V. Mariani Ozment Skoglund Welle 
Brown, K. Greenfield Kalis Milbert Pauly Smith Wenzel 
Carlson Greiling Kelley Molnau Pawlenty Solberg Winter 
Carruthers Gruenes Kelso Mosel Pelowski Sparby Worke 
Commers Gutknecht Kinkel Munger PerIt Steensma Workman 
Cooper Hasskamp Klinzing Murphy Peterson Sviggum Spk Long 
Dauner Haukoos Koppendrayer Neary Pugh Swenson 

Those who voted in the negative were: 

Abrams Erhardt Knickerbocker Macklin Morrison Tomassoni 
Asch Goodno Leppik McCollum Stanius Wolf 

The bill was passed, as amended, and its title agreed to. 

SPECIAL ORDERS 

Anderson,!., moved that the bills on Special Orders for today be continued. The motion prevailed. 
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GENERAL ORDERS 

Anderson, I., moved that the bills on General Orders for today be continued. The motion prevailed. 

MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS 

Farrell moved that the names of Ness and Blatz be added as authors on H. F. No. 1185. The motion prevailed. 

Rest moved that the name of Milbert be added as an author on H. F. No. 1189. The motion prevailed. 

Trimble moved that the name of Steensma be added as chief author and the names of Mosel and Wenzel be added 
as authors on H. F. No. 1225. The motion prevailed. 

McGuire moved that the name of Macklin be added as an author on H. F. No. 1420. The motion prevailed. 

Neary moved that the name of Morrison be added as an author on H. F. No. 1559. The motion prevailed. 

Hausman moved that the name of Van Dellen be added as an author on H. F. No. 1581. The motion prevailed. 

Hausman moved that the name of Van Dellen be added as an author on H. F. No. 1582. The motion prevailed. 

Orfield moyed that the name of Greiling be added as an author on H. F. No. 1588. The motion prevailed. 

Sviggum moved that the name of Bauerly be added as an author on H. F. No. 1611. The motion prevailed. 

Van Dellen moved that the following statement be printed in the Journal of the House: "It was my intention to vote 
in the affirmative on Monday, March 29,1993, when the vote was taken on the final passage of S. F. No. 282." The 
motion prevailed. 

Bertram moved that H. F. No. 893, now on TeChnical General Order!?, be re-referred to the Committee on Judiciary. 
The motion prevailed. 

Farrell moved that H. F. No. 1042 be recalled from the Committee on Health and Human Services and be 
re-referred to the Committee on Judiciary. The motion prevailed. 

Mariani moved that H. F. No. 1159 be recalled from the Committee on Local Government and Metropolitan Affairs 
and be re-referred to the Committee on Taxes. The motion prevailed. 

Rest moved that H. F. No. 1570 be recalled from the Committee on Health and Human Services and be re-referred 
to the Committee on Taxes. The motion prevailed. 

Rest moved that H. F. No. 1579 be recalled from the Committee on Housing and be re-referred to the Committee 
on Taxes. The motion prevailed. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Anderson, 1., moved that when the House adjourns today it adjourn lUltil 2:30 p.m., Monday, AprilS, 1993. The 
motion prevailed. 

Anderson, I., moved that the House adjourn. The motion prevailed, and the Speaker declared the House stands 
adjourned until 2:30 p.m., Monday, April 5, 1993. 

EDWARD A. BURDICK, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives 




